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Almacenes Exito S.A.
Certification by the Parent's Legal Representative and Head Accountant

Envigado, February 17, 2020
We, the undersigned Legal Representative and Head Accountant of Amacenes ExitoS.A., Parent company, each of us duly empowered and under whose
responsibility the accompanying financial statements have been prepared, do hereby certify that regarding the consolidatedfinancial statements of the

Parent and its subsidiaries, at December 31,2019 and at December 31,2018, the following assertions therein contained have been veiified prior to making
them available to you and tothird parties:

1. All assets and liabilities included in the consolidated financial statements do exist, and all transactions included in such consolidated financial
statements have been achieved during the annual periods ended December 31, 2019 and December 31,2018.

2. Alleconomic events achieved by the Parent and its subsidiaries during the annual periods ended December 31,2019 and December 31,2018, have
been recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

3. Assets represent likely future economic benefits (rights) and liabllities represent likely future economic sacrifice (obligations) obtained by or in charge
of the Parent and its subsidiaries at December 31,2019 and December 31, 2018.

4. Allitems have been recognized at proper values.

5. All economic events affecting the Parent and its subsidiaries have been properly classified, described and disclosed in the consolidated financia
statements.

We do certify the above assertions pursuant tosection 37 of Law 222 of 1995.
Further, the undersigned legal representative of Almacenes Exito S.A., Parent company, does hereby certify that the consolidated financial statemerts
and the operations of the Parent and its subsidiaries at December31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018, are free from fault, inaccuracy or misstatement

that prevent users from having a true view of its financial position.

This certification is issued pursuantto section 46 of Law 964 of 2005.

' N

Carlos Mario Giraldo Moreno Jorge Nelson Ortiz Chica
Parent's Legal Representative Parent's Head Accountant
Professional Card 67018-T



Almacenes Exito S.A.

Consolidated statements of financial position

At December 31, 2019 and at December 31,2018
(Amounts expressed in millions of Colombian pesos)

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables and other accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Accounts receivable from related parties
Inventories

Other financial assets

Tax assets

Non-current assets held for trading

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Trade receivables and other accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Accounts receivable from related parties

Other non-financial assets with related parties
Other financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Investment property, net

Use rights, net

Goodwill

Intangible assets other than goodwill, net
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Tax assets

Defemed tax assets

Other non-financial assets

Total non-cument assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilties

Employee benefits

Other provisions

Accounts payable to related parties
Trade payables and other accounts payable
Lease labilities

Tax liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Other non-financial liabilities
Non-current liabilities held for trading
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabiities
Employee benefits

Other provisions

Trade payables and other accounts payable
Lease labilities

Defemed tax liabilities

Tax liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Other non-financial liabilities
Total non-cument liabilities

Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity, see accompanying statement
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Notes
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20
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December 31,
2019

2,562,674
379,921
43,351
55,044
1,900,660
43,237
333,850
37,928
5,356,665

34,310
9,631

15,000
48,329
3,845,092
1,626,220
1,303,648
2,929,751
304,215
210,487

177,269
398
10,504,350

15,861,015

616,822
2978
14,420
80,995
4,662,801
222,177
72,910
114,871
118,240

5,906,214

43,531
20,920
18,998
114
1,308,054
116,503
800

370

669
1,509,959

7,416,173
8,444,842
15,861,015

December 31,
2018 (1)

5,973,680
1,000,267
143,889
131,720
6,720,396
141,214
724,290
23,572,841
38,408,297

135,284
14,751
28,316

754,065
12,317,515
1,633,625
5,141,400
5,436,868
5,199,801
804,400
2,302,451
133,991
398
33,902,865

72,311,162

2,291,116
3,657
36,997
236,698
13,117,074
858,349
298,699
1,037,191
338,735
19,618,293
37,836,809

4,633,554
27,680
2,330,648
40,720
4,577,359
1,409,857
397,014
2,583,089
11,963
16,011,884

53,848,693
18,462,469
72,311,162

December 31,
2017 (2)

5,281,618
1,172,380
132,430
230,690
5,912,514
11,588
722,658
23,642,095
37,105,973

667,920
13,463
22,483
30,000

767,772

12,486,938
1,496,873
4,692,922
5,559,953
5,502,689

811,504

1,575,743
2,105,550
398
35,734,208

72,840,181

1,861,062
3,464
29,329
212,656
12,565,146
785,444
289,376
645,363
275,210
19,550,480
36,217,530

3,940,584
28,538
2,457,220
47,831
4,650,359
3,456,966
521,870
2,302,008
51,761
17,457,137

53,674,667
19,165,514
72,840,181

(1) Amounts include the effect of the adjustments arising from the retrospective application of IFRS 16 - Leases, adopted as of January 1, 2019. See Note 52 for a detail of adjustmens

applied and the comparison to the statement of finandial position presented with the annual finandal statements at Decerber 31, 2018.

(a) Amounts shown to comply with the requirements of IAS 1 regarding retrospective adoption of a new accounting policy.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Carl rio Giraldo Moreno
Parent's Legal Representative
(See accompanying certificate)

Jorge Nelson Ortiz Chica
Parent's Head Accountant
Professional Card 67018-T
(See accompanying cettificate)

Angela Jaimes Delgad
Parent's Statutory A
Professional Card

Appointed by Emst and Young Audit SA.S. TR-530
(See report attached, dated February 17, 2020)



Almacenes Exito S.A.

Consolidated statements of income

For the annual periods ended December 31, 2019 and December 31,2018
(Amounts expressed in milions of Colombian pesos)

January 1 to January 1to
December 31, December 31,
Notes 2019 2018 (1) (2) (3)

Continuing operations
Revenue from ordinary activities under contracts with customers 31 15,293,083 14,870,027
Costof sales 11 (11,338,977) (10,989,579)
Gross profit 3,954,106 3,880,448
Distribution expenses 32 (1,673,462) (1,660,580)
Administration and sales expenses 32 (329,244) (281,546)
Employee benefitexpenses 33 (1,232,813) (1,243,510)
Other operating revenue 34 54,342 30,673
Other operating expenses 34 (85,428) (66,634)
Other net (losses) 34 (13,314) (4,156)
Profit from operating activities 674,187 654,695
Financial revenue 35 634,863 296,982
Financial expenses 35 (1,127,793) (850,074)
Share of profits in associates and joint ventures accounted forusing the

equity method 36 (10,123) 40,516
Profit from continuing operations before income tax 171,134 142,119
Tax revenue (expense) 26 (23,296) 55,799
Net period profit from continuing operations 147,838 197,918
Net period profit from discontinued operations 48 774,838 1,014,764
Net income for the period 922,676 1,212,682

Profit is attributable to:
Profit attributable to the shareholders of the controlling entity 57,602 253,168

Profitattributable to non-controlinginterests 865,074 959,514
Eamings per share (*)
Earnings per basic share (*):
Basic earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of the controlling entity 37 128.69 565.61
Earnings perbasic share from continuing operations attributable to the shareholders of the controlling
entity 37 85.80 23132
Earnings perbasic share from discontinued operations attributable to the shareholders of the controling
entity 37 4289 334.29
Earnings per diluted share (*):
Diluted earnings pershare attributable to the shareholders of the controlling entity 37 128.69 565.61
Earnings perdiluted share from continuing operations attributable to the shareholders of the controlling
entity 37 85.80 23132
Earnings perdiluted share from discontinued operations attributable to the shareholders of the controlling
entity 37 4289 334.29

(1) Amounts include the effect of the adjustments arising from the retrospective application of IFRS 16 - Leases, adopted as of January 1, 2019. See Note 52 for a detail of
adjustments applied and the comparison to the statement of income presented with the annual financial statements at December 31, 2018.

(2) For comparison to the annual financial statements at December 31, 2019, the annual financial statements at December 31, 2018 include certain reclassifications in employee
benefit expenses, distribution expenses and cost of sales. See Note 11, Note 32 and Note 33 for the amounts reclassified.

(3) Amounts include the effect of the reclassification of revenue, costs and expenses of subsidiaries Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD, Ségisor S.A., Wilkes
Partipagdes S.A. and Gemex O & W S.A.S. to net gains for the period from discontinued operations, for purposes of comparison to the annual financial statements at December
31, 2019. See Note 48.2 for a detail of the results of these subsidiaries.

(*) Amounts expressed in Colombian pesos.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the interim consolidated financial statements.

P

)

Carlos Mario Giraldo Moreno Jorge Nelson Ortiz Chica Angela Jaimes Delgado,
Parents Legal Representative Parent's Head Accountant Parent's Statutory Ayditor
(See accompanying certificate) Professional Card 67018-T Professional Card 62183-T
(See accompanying cettificate) Appointed by Emst and Young Audit S.A.S. TR-530

(See report attached, dated February 17, 2020)



Almacenes Exito S.A.

Consolidated statements of comprehensiveincome

For the annual periods ended December 31, 2019 and December31, 2018
(Amounts expressed in millions of Coombian pesos)

Netincome forthe period
Other comprehensive income for the period

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to period resuilts,
net of taxes

(Loss) from new measurements of defined benefit plans

(Loss) from investmentsin equity instruments

Total other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to period results, net of taxes

Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to period results, net
of taxes

(Loss) from translation exchange differences

(Loss) from investment hedges abroad

Gain from the hedging of cash flows

Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method that will be reclassified to period results

Total other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to period results, net of taxes

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Profit is attributable to:
(Loss) attributable to the shareholders of the confrolling entity
Profit attributableto non-contradling interests

Earningspershare (*)
Earningsperbasic share (*):
(Loss) per basic share from continting operations

Earningsperdiluted share(*):
(Loss) per diluted share from continuing operations

(1) Amounts include the effect of the adjustments arising from the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases, adopted as of January 1, 2019. See Note
52 for a comparison to the statement of comprehensive income presented in the annual financial statements at December 31, 2018.

(*) Amounts expressed in Colombian pesos.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2 o

Carlos Mario Giraldo Moreno Jorge Nelson Ortiz Chica

Parent's Legal Representative Parent's Head Accountant

(See accompanying certificate) Professional Card 67018-T
(See accompanying certificate)

January 1to
December 31,

Notes 2019

922,676

(267)
(6,003)
(6,270)

30 (508,534)
30 (1,459)
30 3,827

30 41,486
(464,680)

(470,950)
451,726

(307,135)
758,861

37 (686.17)

37 (686.17)

Parent's Statutory Auditor
Professional Card 62183-T
Appointed by Ernst and Young Audit S.A.S. TR-530
(See report attached, dated February 17, 2020)

January 1to
December 31,
2018 (1)

1,212,682

(351)
(104,756)
(105,107)

(1,365,493)
9,052

(66,463)
(1,422,904)

(1,528,011)
(315,329)

(400,938)
85,609

(895.74)

(895.74)



Almacenes Exito S.A.

Consolidated statements of cash flows

For the annual periods ended December 31,2019 and December 31, 2018
(Amounts expressed in millions of Colombian pesos)

January 1 to January 1 to
D ber 31, D ber 31,
2019 2018 (1)

Cash flows provided by operating activities

Net income for the period 922,676 1,212,682
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period

Current income tax 76,257 96,596
Deferred income tax (52,961) (152,395)
Financial costs 735,698 962,560
Impairment of receivables 267,682 528,195
Reversal of receivable impaiment (276,027) (17,784)
Inventory impairment 3,690 1,552
Reversal of inventory impairment (4,906) (4,668)
Impairment 6,768 (2,386)
Employee benefit provisions 2,183 2,452
Other provisions 682,227 1,554,487
Reversal of other provisions (439,390) (851,269)
Expense from depreciation of property, plant and equipment, use rights and investment property 1,373,262 1,387,176
Amortization of intangible assets expense 103,143 146,482
Share-based payments 20,315 44,505
(Gain) loss from the application of the equity method 10,123 (40,516)
Loss (gain) from the disposal of non-current assets 9,762 (5,456)
Net gain from the disposal of discontinued operations (489,320) -
Other adjustments to reconcile period income in discontinued operations (165,302) -
Other adjustments for which the effects on cash are cash flows provided by investment or financing activities (463,895) (279,115)
Operating income before changes in working capital 2,321,985 4,583,098
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables and other accounts receivable 2,627,171 (782,859)
(Increase) in prepaid expenses (52,628) (20,730)
Decrease in receivables from related parties 54,876 106,211
(Increase) in inventories (319,404) (1,056,576)
(Increase) in tax assets (530,150) (1,207,119)
(Decrease) in employee benefits (10,005) (3,420)
(Decrease) in other provisions (383,259) (887,287)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables and cther accounts payable (1,773,654) 901,998
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable torelated parties (1,664) 9,140
(Decrease) in tax liabiities (38,226) (94,531)
(Decrease) increase in other non-financial liabilties (89,652) 35,869
(Increase) in non-current assets held for trading - 57,401
(Decrease) increase in non-current liabiities held for trading (2,267,707) 1,529,302
Net cash flows (used in) provided by operating activities (462,317) 3,170,497
Cash flows provided by investment activities

Net cash flows from the loss of control over subsidiaries or other businesses (4,608,124) 13,825
Cash flows used to gain control of subsidiaries or other businesses (1,619) (2,480)
Cash flows used to maintain joint control in joint ventures (26,309) (5,106)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,831,459) (2,437,741)
Acquisition of investment property (52,929) (150,801)
Acquisition of intangible assets (220,923) (464,436)
Proceeds of the sale of property, pant and equipment 6,584 383,302
Proceeds of the sale of intangible assets - 35
Net cash flows (used in) investment activities (6,734,779) (2,663,402)
Cash flows provided by financing activities

Cash flows provided by changes in interest in subsidiaries that do not result in loss of control 14,597 279,225
(Increase) in other financial assets (109,115) (164,857)
Increase in other financial liabilties 8,187,196 854,348
(Decrease) increase in financial liabilties (3,616,268) 1,124,124
(Decrease) in financial liabilties under lease agreements (3,303) (1,974)
Dividends paid (202,168) (310,726)
Financial yields 463,268 307,215
Interest paid (755,189) (981,726)
Transactions with non-controling entities (42,075) (690,981)
Other cash inflows 40,837 156
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 3,977,780 414,804
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,219,316) 921,899
Effects of variation in exchange rates (191,690) (229,837)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 5,973,680 5,281,618
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 2,562,674 5,973,680

(1) Amounts shown include the effect of the adjustments arising from the retrospective application of IFRS 16 - Leases, adopted as of January 1, 2019.

' R (op —

Carlos Mario Giraldo Moreno Jorge Nelson Ortiz Chica Angela Jaimes Del
Parent's Legal Representative Parent's Head Accountant Parent's Statutory/Auditor
(See accompanying cettificate) Professional Card 67018-T Professional Card 62183-T
(See accompanying certificate) Appointed by Emst and Young Audit S.A.S. TR-530

(See report attached, dated February 17, 2020)



Almacenes Exito S.A.
c

lidated ctat "

of changes in shareholders' equity
At December 31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018
(Amounts expressed in milions of Colombian pesos)
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Balance at December 31,2017
Cash dividend declared
et income for the period -
Other comprehensive income -
Appropriation for reserves -
Increase from changes in the ownership of subsidiaries

that do notresult in loss of contol -
Increase from other contributions of non-controling interests -
Decrease) from other distributions to non-controling interests -
Measurement ofthe putoption atfair value -
Other developments in shareholders' equity -
Balance at December 31,2018 (1) 4,482
Balance at December 31,2018 (1)
Cash dividend declared
et income for the period -
Other comprehensive income -
Appropriation for reserves -
Decrease) from the sale of Via Varejo S.A., Companhia Brasieira de

Distribuicdo — CBD, Ségisor S.A. and Wikes Partipagdes S.A. -
Increase from changes in the ownership of subsidiaries

that do notresult in loss of contol -
Other developments in shareholders' equity (2)
Balance at December 31,2019
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9,662 1,720,438
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awooul
aAISuaya.dwos
pajejnwnooe
18y10

Note 30
(50,269)
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(704,375)
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(364,737)

(1,069,112)
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Note 30

1,095,361
(108,857)
253,168

(108,856)

(130,161)
1,000,655

1,000,655

57,602

(279,403)

(160,823)
618,031
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10,873

(74,822)

490,120
426,171

426,171

(7,649)
228,302
646,824

Rypua Buijjonuod
ay} jo fynba ejo)

7,621,617
(108,857)

253,168
(654,106)

(74,822)

374,215
7,411,215

7,411,215
(139,706)

57,602
(364,737)

(7,649)
239,803
7,196,528
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11,543,897
(204,670)
959,514
(873,905)

350,331
1,483
(692,464)
22,791
(55,723)
11,051,254

11,051,254
(151,875)
865,074
(106,213)

(10,411,214)
(39,831)

41,119
1,248,314

fynba jau
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19,165,514
(313,527)
1,212,682
(1,528,011)

275,509
1,483
(692,464)
22,791
318,492
18,462,469

18,462,469
(291,581)
922,676
(470,950)

(10,411,214)

(47,480)
280,922
8,444,842

(1) Amounts shown include the effect of the adjustments arising from the retrospective application of IFRS 16 - Leases, adopted as of January 1, 2019. See Note 52 for a defail of adjustments applied to assets, liabilties and income, and the comparison to the statement of financial position and te

statement of income presented with the annual financial statements at December 31, 2018.

(2) Other shareholders' equity components include $265691 relevantto the equity method on the inflationary effect of subsidiary Libertad S.A. Retained eamings and Other reserves include $168,371 (offsetto each other) relevantto he equity method on the appropriation of results of subsidiary Spiee

Investment Mercosur S.A. and its subsidiaries.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe interim consolidated financial statements.

- e

CarloS¥ario Giraldo Moreno Jorge Nelson Ortiz Chica

Parent's Legal Representaive Parent's Head Accountant

‘See accompanying certificate) Professional Card 67018-T
(See accompanying certificate)

Angela Jaimes Delgad
Parent's Statutory A
Professional Card 62183-T

Appointed by Emst and Young Audit S.A.S. TR-530
(See report attached, dated February 17, 2020)



Note 1. General information

Almacenes ExitoS.A., (herehatter the Parent), was incomorated pursuant to Colombianlaws on March 24, 1950; its main place of business is at Carera48
No. 32B Sur - 139, Envigado, Cdombia. The life spanof the Parent goes to December 31, 2050.

The Parent is listed on the Colombia Stock Exchange (BVC) since 1994 and is under the control of the Financial Superintendence of Cdombia.

The Company's Board of Directors authorized theissuance of consolidated financial statements for the periods ended December 31,2019 and December
31, 2018, as recorded in the Minutes of such corporate body dated February 17, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

The Parent's main corporate purpose is:

Acquire, store, transform and, in general, distribute and sell under any trading figure, including funding thereof, all kinds of goods and products, produced
either locally or abroad, ona wholesale or retail basis, physicaly or online.

Provide supplementary services, namely grant credi facilities for the acquisition of goods, grant insurance coverage, carry out money transfers and
remittances, provide mobile phone services, trade tourist package trips and tickets, repair and maintain furnishings, complete paperwork.

Give or receivein leasetrade premises, receive orgive, in lease or underoccupancy, spaces or paints of sale or commerce withinits trade estabishments
intended for the exploitation of businesses of distribution of goods or products, and the provision of ancilary services.

Incorporate, fund or promote with other individuals or legd entities, enterprises or businesses intended for the manufacturing of objects, goods, articles or
the provision of services related with the exploitation of trade establishments.

Acquire property, build commercial premises intended for establishing stores, malls or other locations suitable for the disfribution of goods, without prejudice
to the possibility of disposingof entire floors or commercial premises, give them in lease or use themin any convenient manner with a rational exploitation
of land approach, as wellas investin property, promote and develop al kinds of real estate projects.

Investresources toacquire shares, bonds, frade papers and other securities of free movementin the market to take advantage of tax incentives establshed
by law, as well as make temporary investments in highly liquid securities with a purpose of short-term productive explaitation; enter into frm factoing
agreements usingits own resources; encumber its chattels orproperty and enter into financial transactions that enable it to acquire funds or otherassets.
In the capacity as wholesalerand retailer, distribute oi-based liquid fuels through service stations, alcohols, biofuels, natura gas for vehicles and any other

fuels used inthe automotive, industrial, fluvial, maritime and air transport sectors, of al kinds.

At December 31, 2019 the final controlling entity of the Company is Sendas Distrbuidora S.A., a subsidiary of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD.
This situation of contrd arises from compliance with the takeover bid presented on July 24, 2019 and accepted by the shareholders on November 27, 2019, As

result of such acceptance, the controlling entity has a 96.57% share in the Company's share capital.

At December 31,2018 the controliing entity was Casino Guichard Perrachon S.A andthe situation of controlwas registered with the Aburra Sur Chamber of

Commerce. The controling entity had a 55.30% participation inthe share capital of the Company.
The Parent registered before the Aburra Sur Chamber of Commerce a situation of entrepreneurial Group regardingits subsidiaries.
Note 1.1. Stock ownership in subsidiaries included in theinterim consolidated financial statements

Below is a detail of the stock owrershipin subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2019 and December 31,2018:

Stock ownership 2019 Stock ownership 2018
Name Segment Country Functional Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect ~ Total
) currency
Almacenes Exito Inversiones S.A.S. Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%  100.00%
Logistica, Transporte y Servicios Asociados S.A.S. Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%  100.00%
Marketplace Intemacional Exitoy Servicios S.A.S. Colombia  Colombia Colombian peso 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%  100.00%
Deposito y Soluciones Logisticas S.A.S. (a) Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.0% 0.00% 0.00%
Marketplace Intemacional Exito S.L. (b) Colombia ~ Spain Euro 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.0% 0.00% 0.00%
Fideicomiso Lote Girardot Colombia  Colombia Colombian peso 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%  100.00%
Gemex O&W SAS. () Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 85.00% 0.00%  85.00%
Exito Industrias S.A.S. Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 94.53% 3.42% 97.95% 94.53% 3.42% 97.95%
Exito Viajes y Tuismo S.A.S. Colombia  Colombia Colombian peso 51.00% 0.00% 51.00% 51.00% 0.00%  51.00%
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 51.00% 0.00% 51.00% 51.00% 0.00% 51.00%
Patrimonio Auténomo Iwana Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 51.00% 0.00% 51.00% 51.00% 0.00% 51.00%
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Viva Colombia  Colombia Colombian peso 0.00% 45.90% 45.90% 0.00% 4590%  45.90%
Bamanquilla
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Laureles Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 0.00% 40.80% 40.80% 0.00% 40.80% 40.80%
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo Colombia  Colombia Colombian peso 0.00% 26.01% 26.01% 0.00% 2601%  26.01%
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 0.00% 26.01% 26.01% 0.00% 26.01% 26.01%
Patrimonio Auténomo San Pedro Etapa | Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 0.00% 26.01% 26.01% 0.00% 26.01% 26.01%
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Colombia  Colombia Colombian peso 0.00% 26.01% 26.01% 0.00% 2601%  26.01%
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas Colombia ~ Colombia Colombian peso 0.00% 26.01% 26.01% 0.00% 26.01% 26.01%
Carulla Vivero Holding Inc. Colombia  British Virgin Colombian peso 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00%  100.00%

Islands
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Name

Spice Investment Mercosur S.A.

Devoto Hemanos S.A.

Mercados Devoto S.A.

Larenco S.A.

Geant Inversiones S.A.

Lanin S.A.

5Hemanos Ltda.

Sumelar S.A.

Tipsel S.A.

Tedocan S.A.

Raxwy Company S.A.

Supemercados Disco del Uruguay S.A.

Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A.

Ameluz S.A.

Fandale S.A.

Odaler S.A.

La Cabaiia S.RL.

Ludi SA.

Semin S.A.

Randicor S.A.

Setara SA.

Hiper Ahomo S.R.L.

Ciudad del Femol S.C.

Mablicor S.A.

Maostar S.A.

Onper Investment 2015 S.L.

Via Artika S. A.

Spice Espafia de Valores Americanos S.L.

Libertad S.A. (d)

Gelase S. A.

Geant Argentina S.A. (d)

Ségisor S.A. (e)

Wilkes Partipagdes S.A. (€)

Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigéo - CBD (e)

Sendas Distribuidora S.A. (e)

Bellamar Empreend. e Participagdes Ltda. (e)

GPA Malls & Properties Gestéo de Ativos e Servigos
Imobiliérios Ltda. (‘GPA M&P) (e)

CBD Holland B.V. (e)

GPA 2 Empreed. e Participagbes Ltda. (e)

GPA Logistica e Transporte Ltda. (e)

Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo Luxembourg
Holding S.ARL. (e)

SCB Distribuigdo e Comércio Varejista de Alimentos
Ltda. (e)

Bitz Fidelidade e Inteligéncia S.A. (€)

Leji Intermediagdo S.A. (e)

Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo Netherlands
Holding B.V. (e)

Novasoc Comercial Ltda. (€)

CNova Comércio Eletrdnico S.A. (f)

Via Varejo S.A. (f)

Indistria de Méveis Bartira Ltda. (f)

VVLOG Logistica Ltda. (f)

Globex Administracao e Servigos Ltda. (f)

Lake Niassa Empreend. e Participagdes Ltda. (f)

Globex Administradora de Consdrcio Ltda. (f)

(@) Asubsidiaryincorporatedon June 21,2019.

Segment

Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Argentina
Argentina
Argentina
Argentina
Argentina
Argentina
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil

Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil

Brazil

Brazil
Brazil
Brazil

Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil

(b) A subsidiary incorporated on October9, 2019.

Country

Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Uruguay
Spain
Uruguay
Spain
Argentina
Belgium
Argentina
France
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil

Holland
Brazil

Brazil
Luxembourg

Brazil

Brazil
Brazil
Holland

Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil

Functional
currency

Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Uruguayan
Colombian
Uruguayan
Euro

peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso
peso

Argentine peso

Euro

Argentine peso

Euro

Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real

Euro

Brazilian real
Brazilian real

Euro

Brazilian real

Brazilian real
Brazilian real

Euro

Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real
Brazilian real

Stock ownership 2019

Direct

100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Indirect

0.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
61.24%
31.87%
31.25%

0.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Total

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
61.24%
31.87%
31.25%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Stock ownership 2018

Direct

100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Indirect

0.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
61.24%
31.87%
31.25%

0.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

50.00%
50.00%
18.68%
18.68%
18.68%
18.68%

18.68%
18.68%
18.68%
18.68%

18.68%

18.68%
18.68%
18.68%

18.68%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%

(c) As mentioned in Note 1.2, this subsidiary's retained earnings at December 31, 2019 were shown under net income of discontinued operations for the

period.

(d) Libertad S.A.acquired GeantArgentina S.A. and merged with iton December 10, 2019.

(e) As mentioned in Note 1.2, these subsidiaries' assets andliabilities at September 30, 2019werereclassified tonon-current assets and liabilities avaiable
for trading, and retained earnings on the same date were shown under netincome of discontinued operations for the period . Later, these subsidiaries'
assetsand liabiliies were soldon November 27, 2019.

(f) Subsidiaries sdd on June 15,2019 as part of the divestment process carried out by subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigao - CBD.

1

Total

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
62.49%
61.24%
31.87%
31.25%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
50.00%
50.00%
18.68%
18.68%
18.68%
18.68%

18.68%
18.68%
18.68%
18.68%

18.68%

18.68%
18.68%
18.68%

18.68%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%
8.08%



Note 1.2. Colombian and foreign operating subsidiaries

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the annua period ended December 31,2019 include the same Colombianoperating subsidianes
and the same largest operating subsidiaries located abroad as included in the consdidated financial statements forthe annual period ended December
31, 2018, exception made of subsidiaries Depésito y Soluciones Logisticas S.A.S., incorporatedon June 21, 2019, and Marketplace Internaciona Exito
S.L., incorporated on October 9, 2019, and of subsidiaries that will be mentionedin the two paragraphs below.

Based on the authorization by the Parent's Board of Directors, and on the approval of such authorization by the Genera Meeting of Shareholders of the
Parent, the interest held in the operating subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD and in holding subsidiaries Ségisor S.A. and Wikes
Partipagdes S.A were sold on November 27, 2019. Consequently, the balances of assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries were not included in the
consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2019and the net retained earnings up to November30, 2019 were shown in the consolidated statement
of income under net income of discontinued operations, as an item separate from other consadlidated income of the Parentand its subsidiaries.

As part of its operating strategy, in August 2019 the Parent decidedto close the commercial operation of subsidiary Gemex O&W S.A.S. On the grounds
of this decision, retained earnings of this subsidiary at December 31, 2019 were shownin the consolidated statement of income under the net income of
discountinued operations, as an item separate from other consolidated income of the Parentand its subsidiaries.

Below is a detail of the corporate purpose and other company information regarding Colombian operating subsidiaries and the mostimportant operating
subsidiaries abroad:

Almacenes Exito Inversiones S.A.S.

A subsidiary incorporated by private document on September 27, 2010. Its corporate purpose is mainly (i) incomporate, finance, promote, invest, individually or
jointly with other individuals or legal entities, in the incorporation of companies o businesses whose purpose is the manufacturing or trading of goods, objects,
merchandise, articles or elements or the provision of services related with the explaitation of trade establishments andlink with such companies as associte,
by contributing cash, goods orservices; and (i) promote, invest, individually or jointly with other individuals or legal entities, in the provision of networks, services
and telecommunications added value, particularly dl activities permittedin Colombia or abroadrelated with telecommunications, mobile phone and added value
services. Itsmain place of business is at Carrera 48 No. 32B Sur - 139, Envigado, Cdombia. The company's life span is indefinite.

Logistica, Transporte y Servicios Asociados SAA.S.

A subsidiary incorporated on May 23, 2014, under Colombian laws. Its main comporate purpose is the provision of air, land, maritime, fluvial, railway and
multimodal domestic and intemational freight services for allkinds of goods in general. Its main place of business is at Carrera 48 No. 32B Sur - 139, Envigado,
Colombia. The company's life span is indefinite.

Marketplace Intemacional Exito y Servicios S.AS.

A subsidiary incorporated on September 12, 2018 under Colombian laws. Its main corporate purpose is carrying out the following activities in one or
several free-trade zones: (i) provision of services to access the e-commerce platform made available by the company, through which thoselogging in may
perform trade transactions; (ii) activities required to ensure an adequate performance of the e-commerce platform through which accessing sellers and
buyers conduct transactions: (i) issue, commercialzation, processingand reimbursement of IOUs, coupons, cards orbonuses, whether physicalor digital,
or through any other technological means used as a mechanism to access the goods and services offered. lts main place of business is at vereda
Chachafruto, ZonaFranca, oficina 11, Rionegro, Antioguia. The company's life span is indefinite

Depésito y Soluciones Logisticas S.A.S.

A subsidiary incorporatedon June 21,2019 under Coombian laws. Its main corporate purpose is the storage of goods under customs contrd. Its main place
of businessislocated at calle 43 sur No. 48-127, Envigado, Coombia. The company's life spanis indefinite.

Marketplace Intemacional Exito S.L.

A subsidiary incorporated on October 9,2019 under Spanish laws. Its main corporate purpose is to carry out marketing, business development and public
relations activities, as well as any activity and the provision of any service related with or ancillary to the above. Its main place of business is at cale
Constitucion No 75, 28946, Fuenlabrada (Madrid), Spain. The company's life span is indefinite.

Fideicomiso Lote Girardot

The plot of land was acquired by means of assignment of fiduciary rights on February 11, 2011 through Alianza Fiduciaria S.A. Its purpose is to acquire
title to the property on behalf of the Company. Its main place of business is at Carrera 10 and 11 with Calle 25, Girardot, Colombia.
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Gemex O&W S.A.S.

Incorporated on March 12, 2008. Its corporate purposeis the tradingof all kinds of goods and services through alternative sales channels, such as, without
limitation, direct sales or mail sales, web sites or e-commerce, through vending machines, and in general using all techndogy-based chanrels or specia
methods fo trade goods and services. Its main place of businessis at Carrera 43 No. 31 - 166, Medelin, Colombia. The company's life spanis indefinite.

Exito Industrias S.AS.

A subsidiary incorporated by private documenton June 26, 2014. Its corporate purpose is (i) acquire, store, transform, manufacture, sell and in general
distribute under any type of contract textile goods of domestic or foreign make, and acquire, give or receive property under lease agreements devoted for
opening stores, shoppingmalls and other locations adequate for the distribution of merchandise and the sale of goods or services; (ii) launch and operate
e-commerce activities in Colombia; (iii) enter into all kinds of contracts including, without limitation, lease, distribution, operation, association, purchase-
sale, technical assistance, supply, inspection, control and sewvice contracts seeking to adequately performits corporate purpose; (iv) provide all kinds of
services including, without limitation, the execution of administration, advisory, consultancy, technica and presentationagreements seeking to adequately
perform its corporate purpose; and (v) Its main place of business is at Carrera 48 No. 32 Sur - 29, Envigado, Colombia. The company's life span is
indefinite

Exito Viajesy Turismo SAS.

A subsidiary incorporated on May 30, 2013, under Colombian laws. Its main corporate purposeis the exploitation of tourism-related activities, as wel as
the representation of the tourism industry and the opening of travelagencies whatever its nature and the promotion of domestic and intemational tourism.
Its main place of business is at Carrera 43 No. 31 - 166, Medellin, Colombia. The company's life span is indefinite

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls

Established on July 15, 2016 by means of public deed 679 granted before the Notary 31st of Medellin as a stand-alone trustfund through Itat Fiduciaria.
Its main business purpose is the acquisiion, whether directly or indirectly, of material rights to real estate property, mainly shopping centers and the
development thereof, and the development of other real estate assets as well as the exploitationand operation thereof. The business purpose includes
to lease the trade premises to third parties or to related parties, grant concessions on spaces that are part of the property, exploit, market and maintan
the premises, raise funds and dispose of the assets, as well as perform allrelated activities as required to meet business goals. Its main place of business
is at Carrera 7 No. 27 - 18 14th floor, Bogata, Colombia.

Patrimonio Auténomo Iwana

Established on December 22, 2011 as a stand-alone trustfund through Fiduciaria Bancdombia S.A. Its business purpose is to operate Iwana shopping
mall, including maintaining legal title to the property; execute lease agreements and the extension, renewal, amendment and termination of such
agreements in accordance with the instructions received from the trustor (Parent) in its capacity as real estate administrator; the business purpose aso
includes manage resources, make payments as required to administer and operate the business premises and other units that are part thereof. The main
place of business of the shopping mal is at Carera 11 No. 50 — 19, Barrancabermeja, Colombia.

Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Viva Barranquila

Established on December 23, 2014 as a stand-alone trust fund through Fiduciaria Bancolombia S.A. Its business purpose is to develop, receive and
maintain legal title to Centro Comercial Viva Barranquilla and to other property as trustors may in future instruct or cortribute; execute lease agreements
and the extension, renewal, amendmentand termination of such agreementsin accordance with the instructions received from the trustor (Parent) in its
capacity as real estate administrator; manage resources, make payments as required to administerand operate the business premises and other unts
that are part thereof. The main place of business of the shopping mallis in the municipality of Barranquilla, Colombia at carrera 51 B No. 87 - 50.

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Laureles

Established on May 31, 2012 as a stand-alone trust fund through Fiduciaria Bancolombia S.A. Its business purpose is to operate Viva Laureles shopping
mall, including maintaining legal title to the building; execute lease agreements and the extension, renewal, amendment and termination of such
agreements in accordance with the instructions received from the trustor (Parent) in its capacity as real estate administrator; the business purpose aso
includes manage resources and make payments as required to administer and operate the business premises and other units that are part thereof. The
main place of business of the shopping mall is the municipality of Medellin, Colombia, at carrera 81 No. 37 - 100.

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo

Established on March 8, 2013 as a stand-alone trust fund through Fiduciaria Bancolombia S.A. Its business purpose is to operate Viva Sincelejo shopping
mall, including maintaining legal title to the property; execute lease agreements and the extension, renewal, amendment and termination of such
agreements in accordance with the instructions received from the trustor (Parent) in its capacity as real estate administrator; the business purpose aso
includes manage resources, make payments as required to administer and operate the business premises and other units that are part thereof. The main
place of business of the shopping mal is at Carera 25 No. 23 —49, Sincelejo, Colombia.
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Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio

Established on Apiil 1, 2013 as a stand-alone trust fund through Fiduciaria Bancolombia S.A. Its business purpose is tooperate Viva Villavicencio shopping
mall, including maintaining legal title to the property; execute lease agreements and the extension, renewal, amendment and termination of such
agreements in accordance with the instructions received from the trustor (Parent) in its capacity as real estate administrator; the business purpose aso
includes manage resources, make payments as required to administer and operate the business premises and other units that are part thereof. The main
place of business of the shopping centeris at Calle 7A No. 45— 185, Villavicencio, Colombia.

Patrimonio Auténomo San Pedro Etapa |

Established on June 30, 2005 as a stand-alone trust fund through Fiduciaria Bancolombia S.A. Its business purpose is to operate San Pedro Plaza
shopping mall, including maintaining legd title to the property; execute lease agreements andthe extension, renewal, amendment and termination o such
agreements in accordance with the instructions given by the trustors tothe retained real estate administrator; the business purpose also includes manage
resources, make payments as required to administer and operate the business premises and other units that are part thereof. The main place of business
of the shopping mall is at Carrera 8 between Calles 38 and 48, Neiva, Colombia.

Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial

Established on December 1, 2010 as a stand-alonetrust fund through Fiduciaria Bancolombia S.A. Its business purpose is to operate San Pedro Etapa
Il shopping mall, including maintaininglegal title to the property; execute lease agreements and the extension, renewa, amendment and termination of
such agreements in accordance with the instructions given by the trustors to the retained real estate administrator; the business purpose also includes
manage resources, make payments as required to administer and operate the business premises and other units that are part thereof. The main place
of business of the shopping mall is at Camera 8 between Calles 38 and 48, Neiva, Colombia.

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas

Established on April 17, 2015 as a stand-alone trust fund through Fiduciaria Bancoombia S.A. Its business purpose is to develop, receive and maintain
legal title to Viva Paimas shopping mall andto other buildings as trustors may in future instruct orcontribute; execute lease agreements and the extension,
renewal, amendment and temination of such agreements in accordance with the instructions received from the trustor (Parent) in its capacity as red
estate administrator; the purpose also includes to manage resources, and make payments as required toadminister and operatethe business premises.
Its main place of business isin rural area of the municipality of Envigado, Colombia.

Devoto Hermanos S.A.

A company with domicie in Uruguay. lts core business is the local market retailing of mass consumption products through a chain of supermarkets located
in the departments of Montevideo, Canelones and Maldonado.

Mercados Devoto S.A.

A company with domicie in Uruguay. lts core business is the local market retailing of mass consumption products through a chain of supermarkets located
in the departments of Montevideo and Maldonado.

Supermercados Disco del Uruguay S.A.

A company with domicie in Uruguay. Its core business is the local market retailing of mass consumption products through a chain of supermarkets located
in the departments of Montevideo, Canelones and Maldonado.

Libertad S.A.
A company with domicile in Argentina. Itwas incorporated onJuly 8, 1994, under registration number 618 with the Direction for Inspection of Legal Entities

(DIPJ) in the Argentine Republic. Its main corporate purpose is the explitation of supermarkets and wholesale stores, carrying outall kinds of ancillary
transactions relatedwithits core business. The life span of the company goes toJuly 8, 2084.
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Note 1.3. Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

At December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the following subsidiaries, as reporting entities, have been included in the consolidated financia

statements as subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests:

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio
Patrimonio Auténomo San Pedro Etapa |
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Laureles
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Viva Barranquila
Patrimonio Auténomo Iwana

Exito Viajes y Turismo S.A.S.

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls

Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A.

Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigio — CBD (2)

Material non-controlling
ownership percentage (1)

December 31,
2019

73.99%
73.99%
73.99%
73.99%
73.99%
59.20%
54.10%
49.00%
49.00%
49.00%
37.51%
00.00%

(1) Total non-controlling interest, considering the Parent's direct and indirectinterest.

(2) Subsidiary soldon November 27, 2019.

December 31,
2018

73.99%
73.99%
73.99%
73.99%
73.99%
59.20%
54.10%
49.00%
49.00%
49.00%
37.51%
81.32%
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Below is a summary of financial information relevant to assets, liabilities, period results and cash flows of subsidiaries that hold material non-controlling interests, taken as reporting entities and included in the consolidated financial statements. Balances are
shown before the eliminations required as part of the consolidation process.

Company

Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A.

Exito Viajes y Tuismo S.A.S.

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio
Patrimonio Auténomo San Pedro Etapa |
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial
Patrimonio Auténomo Iwana

Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Viva
Bamanquilla

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Laureles
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas

Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A.

Exito Viajes y Turismo S.A.S.

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio
Patrimonio Auténomo San Pedro Etapa |
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial
Patrimonio Auténomo Iwana

Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Viva
Bamanquilla

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Laureles
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigéo - CBD

Company

Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A.

Exito Viajes y Turismo S.A.S.

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio
Patrimonio Auténomo San Pedro Etapa |
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial
Patrimonio Auténomo Iwana

Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Viva Bamanquilla

Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Laureles
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD

Current
assets

412,185
35,820
53,541

3,000
8,643
1,005
3,261

89
7,195

1,764
1,571

405,482
27,070
92,004

3,548
21,460
1,296
8,439
127
21,007

1,721
2,306
33,372,752

Statement of financial position

Statement of comprehensive income

Non-
current Current  Non-current . Non- Revenue from  Income from Toll . Non-
A, A Shareholders’  Controlling Controlling ordinary continuing comprehensive  Controlling controlling
assets liabilities liabilities . . . - " . R .
equity interest interest activities operations income interest interest
At December 31, 2019
688,112 373,479 36,509 690,309 1,409,780 258,935 1,625,474 97,751 97,751 60,041 36,666
5,032 29,812 2.043 8,997 4,838 4,409 31,951 9,125 9,125 4,364 4,471
2,068,137 26,870 2,094,808 955,638 1,026,456 288,528 123,220 123,220 63,289 60,378
77,476 1,351 79,125 40,353 38,771 10,345 (1,779) (1,779) (907) 872)
216,843 4,982 220,504 109,582 108,047 24,187 14,944 14,944 7,705 7,323
32,548 504 33,049 16,855 16,194 4,025 2,520 2,520 1,285 1,235
109,920 1,457 111,724 56,112 54,745 11,404 7,301 7,301 3,749 3,577
5,961 124 5,926 3,220 2,904 331 (84) (84) (31) @1)
319,272 6,413 320,054 288,049 156,826 46,241 14,763 14,763 13,287 7,234
106,871 2,189 106,446 85,157 21,289 16,548 7,830 7,830 6,264 1,566
31,163 1,651 31,083 15,853 15,231 2,798 (2,303) (2,303) (1,174) (1,128)
At December 31, 2018
746,406 411,684 720,204 1,583,200 277,651 1,619,936 109,350 109,350 67,428 41,017
5,149 22,112 2417 7,690 4,146 3,768 24,439 5,448 5,448 2,849 2,670
2,076,119 42,345 2,125,778 962,533 1,041,631 206,885 81,473 81,473 40,281 39,922
79,835 2,037 81,346 41,486 39,860 11,690 5,628 5,628 2,870 2,758
211,655 12,015 221,100 109,803 108,339 26,909 18,577 18,577 9,895 9,103
33,468 845 33,919 17,298 16,620 3,752 2,316 2,316 1,181 1,135
109,337 3,384 114,392 57,446 56,052 10,457 6,206 6,206 3,293 3,041
6,107 160 6,074 3,284 2976 310 (131) (131) (48) (64)
315,765 22,043 314,729 283,256 31,473 43,79 12,943 12,943 11,649 1,294
109,304 2,551 108,474 86,779 21,695 15,775 8,083 8,083 6,467 1,617
32,134 2,545 31,895 16,266 15,629 3,211 (143) (143) (72) (70)
20,821,879 31,199,564 10,612,988 12,382,079 4,723,018 10,069,107 40,141,725 963,386 963,386 178,018 783,425
Cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2019 Cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2018
Activities Activities
Activities Activities financing Net increase (decrease) Activities Activities financing Net increase (decrease)
operating investment activities in cash operating investment activities in cash
146,050 (36,184) (39,416) 70,450 72,461 (34,105) (34,215) 4.141
8,804 (232) (2,487) 6,085 9,563 (256) (1,293) 8,014
105,274 38,941 (151,627) (7,412) 196,444 (309,221) 104,607 (4,170)
5,239 (3,805) (1,152) 282 6,505 @19) (5,676) 410
20,499 (10,942) (22,079) (12,522) 21,873 (1,903) (9,654) 10,316
3,373 - (3,667) (294) 2,723 - (2,339) 384
11,786 (3,485) (12,819) (4,518) 7,909 47 (4,330) 3,626
56 - (62) ©) 9 - (56) (47)
22,216 (4,389) (30,307) (12,480) 22,716 (2,194) (7,573) 12,949
10,821 (142) (10,163) 516 10,253 (225) (11,537) (1,509)
(932) (1,331) 1,527 (736) 1,062 (209) (846) 7
(507,767) (346,180) 7,762,944 6,908,997 3,282,399 (2,684,992) (4,302) 593,105
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Note 1.4. Restrictions on the transfer of funds

At December 31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018 there are no restrictions on the capability of subsidiaries totransfer funds tothe Parent in the fom of
cash dividends, or loan repayments or advance payments.

Note 2. Basis for preparation

The financial statements for the years ended December 31,2019and December 31,2018 have been prepared in accordance with accounting andfinancia
information standards accepted in Colombia, set out in Law 1314 of 2009 in line with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) officialy
translated and authorized by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), regulated in Colombia by Regulatory Decree 2420 of 2015, "Singe
Regulatory Decree on accounting, financial information and information assurance standards", amended on December 23, 2015 by Regulatory Decree
2496, on December 22, 2016 by Regulatory Decree 2131 and on December 22, 2017 by Regulatory Decree 2170, on December 28, 2018 by Regulatory
Decree 2483 and on December 13, 2019 by Regulatory Decree 2270. Neither the Parentnor its subsidiaries have applied any of the exceptions to the
IFRS contained in suchdecrees.

Accompanying financial statements

These consolidated financia statements of the Parentand its subsidiaries are comprised of the statements of financial position and statements of changes in
shareholders' equity at December 31,2019 and December 31,2018, as wellas the statements of income, the statements of comprehensiveincome and the
statements of cash flows for the annual periods ended on December 31, 2019and December31,2018.

These consoiidatedfinancial statements are preparedand include all reporting disclosures required for annual financid statements under IAS 1.
Statement of accountability

Parent's management are responsible for the information contained in these consolidated financial statements. Preparing such financial statements
pursuant to accounting and financial reporting standards accepted in Colombia, set out by Law 1314 of 2009 in line with the Intemational Financia
Reporting Standards (IFRS) officially translated and authorized by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), regulated in Colombia by
Regulatory Decree 2420 of 2015, "Single Regulatory Decree on accounting, financial reporting and information assurance standards", amended on
December 23, 2015, by Regulatory Decree 2496, on December 22,2016 by Regulatory Decree 2131 and on December 22, 2017 by Regulatory Decree
2170, on December 28, 2018 by Regulatory Decree 2483 and on December 13,2019 by Regulatory Decree 2270, without applying any of the exceptions
to the IFRS thereincontained, requires managementjudgment toapply theaccounting policies.

Accounting estimates and judgments

The Parent's and its subsidiaries' estimations to quantify some of the assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and commitments therein contained have been

used to prepare the accompanying financid statements. Basically, such estimations refer to:

- Thehypotheses used toestimate the fair value of financial instruments,

- The appraisal of financial assets to identify actual impairment losses,

- Theuseful lives of property, plant and equipmentand of intangible assets,

- Variables used and hypotheses used to assess and determine the indicatorof impaiment for nonfinancial assets,

- Variables used to assess and determine inventory losses and obsolescence,

- Actuarial assumptions used to estimate retirement benefits and long-term employee benefitliabilities, such as inflation rate, death rate, discount rate,
and the possibility of future salary increases,

- Thediscount rate used to estimate lease liabiliies and use rights,

- The probability of occurrence andthe value of liabilities that serve as a basis to recognize provisions related to lawsuits and business reorganizations,

- Theassumptions used to recognize liabilities arising from the customer loyalty program,

- The probability of making future profits to recognize deferred tax assets,

- Thevaluation technique applied to determine the fair values of elementsin business combinations.

- Time estimated to depreciate use rights; hypotheses usedin the calculation of growth rates in lease contracts registered as use rights, and variables
used to measure lease liabilties.

Such estimations are based on the best information available regarding the facts analyzed at the date of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, which may giverise to future changes by virtue of potential situations that may occur and would resut in prospective recognitionthereof; this
situation would be treated as a change in accounting estimations in future financial statements.

Distinction between current and non-current items
The Parent and its subsidiaries presenttheircurrentand non-current assets, as wel as their currentand non-current liabiliies, as separate categories in ther
statement of financial position. Forthis purpose, those amounts that will be realized or will become available in a term not to exceed one year are classified as

current assets, and those amounts that will be enforceable or payable alsoin a term nottoexceed one year are classified as current liabiities. All other assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current.
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Functional currency

The Parent and each subsidiary define their functional currency and their transactions are measured in such currency. The Parent's functiona currency
is the Colombian peso, and the functional currencies of subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 1 - General Information, under the subsection relevant to share
interest in subsidiaries included in theinterim consolidated financial statements.

Hyperinflation

Functional currencies of the Parent and of each of its subsidiaries belong to non-hyperinflationary economies, exception made of Argentina whose
accumulated inflation rate over the past three years at December 31, 2019 calculated using different consumer price index combinations has exceeded
100%, reason why the consdidated financial statements include inflation adjustments.

Domesticforecasts for such country suggest that thereis low probability that the inflation rate would significantly decrease under 100% during 2020. For
these reasons, Argentina economy is hyperinflationary.

Subsidiaries in Argentina present their financial statements adjusted for inflation as provided for in IAS 29 "Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies".

Reporting currency

These interim consolidated financial statements are expressed in Colombian pesos, functiona currency of the Parent, whichis the currency used in the
prime economic environmentwhere itrules. Figures shown havebeen stated in milions of Colombianpesos.

Subsidiaries' financid statements carriedin a functional currency otherthanthe Caombian peso have been translatedinto Cdombian pesos. Transactions
and balances are translated as folows:

- Assetsandliabilities are translatedinto Colombian pesos at the period closing exchange rate;

- Income+elated items are translated into Coombian pesos using the period's average exchange rate;

- Equity transactions in foreign currency are translated into Colombian pesos at the exchangerate in force on the date of each transaction.

Exchange differences arising from the translation are directly recognized in a separate component of equity andare reclassified to the statement of income
upon sale of the investmentin a subsidiary.

Foreign currencytransactions

Transactions in foreign currency are defined as those denominatedin a currency other than the functiona currency. During the reporting periods, exchange
differences arising from the settlement of suchtransactions, between the historical exchange rate when recognized and the exchangerate in force on the date
of collectionor payment, are accounted for as exchange gains or losses andshownas part of the netfinancial resultin the statement of income.

Monetary balances at period closing expressed in a curency other than the functional currency are updated based on the exchangerateat the closing of the
reporting period, and the resulting exchange differences arerecognized as part of the net financial results in the statement of income. Forthis purpose, monetary
balances are translated into the functiond currency using the market representative exchange rate (*).

Non-monetary items are not translated at period closingexchange rate butare measured at historical cost (at the exchange rates in force on the date of
each transaction), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value suchas forward and swap financial instruments, which are translated using the
exchange rates in force on the date of measurement of the fair value theredf.

(*) Market Representative Exchange Rate means the average of all market rates negotiated during the closing day (closing exchange rate), equivalent to
the international "spotrate”, as also defined by IAS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, as the spotexchange rate in force at the closing
of the reporting period.

Accounting accrual basis

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accounting accrual basis, except for information on cashflows.

Materiality

Economic events are recognized and presented in accordance with materiality thereof. An economic event is material wherever awareness or
unawareness theredf, given its nature or value and considering the circumstances, may havea material effect on the economic decisions to be made by
the users of the information.

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, includingthe notes thereto, the materiality for presentation purposes was defined on a 5% basis

applied to current and non-current assets, current and non-current liabilities, shareholders' equity, period results and to each individual account at a
general ledger level for the reporting period.
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Offsetting of balances and transactions

Assets and liabilities are offset and reported net in the consolidated financial statements, only if they arise from the same transaction, there is an
enforceable legal right on the closing date that makes it mandatory to receive or pay recognized amounts at net value, and wherever there is an intention
to offset on a net basis towards realizing assets and settling liabiliies simukaneously.

Classification as liability or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classifiedas financial liabilities or as equity, following the substance of the relevant legal agreement.
Fair value measurement

The fair value is the price to be received upon the sale of an asset, or paid out upon transferring a liability under an orderly transaction carried out by
market participants on the date of measurement.

Measurements of the fair value are carried out usinga fair value hierarchy that reflects the importance of inputs used to determine the measurements:

- Based on (unadjusted) prices quoted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Based on valuation models commonly applied by market participants whouse variables otherthan prices quoted, directly or indirectly perceptibe for
assets or liabilities (level 2).

- Based on the Company's own valuationmodels applying non-perceptible estimated variables for assets or liabiliies (level 3).

Note 3. Basis for consolidation

These interim consdidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent and all its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries (including speciak
purpose vehicles) are entities over which the Parenthas drrect or indirect control. Special-purpose vehicles (SPV) are stand-alone trust funds (Patrimonios
Auténomos) established with a defined purposeor limited term. Alisting of subsidiaries isincludedin Note 1.

"Control"is the power to govern relevant activities, such as the financial and operating policies of a controlled company (subsidiary). Contrdl is reached
when the Parent has power over a confrolled company, is exposed to variable benefits from its involvement and has the capability of influencing the
amount of benefits. Powerarises fromrights, generally along with the holding of 50% or more of votingrights, even though it sometimes is more complex
and results from one or more contracts, reason why there may be entities not having suchinterest percentage but whose activities are understood to be
carried out to the benefit of the Parentand the Parent is exposed to all risks and benefits attached to the controlled company.

Wherever there is contrd, the consolidationmethod applied is that of global integration method. Under this method, all of subsidiaries' assets, liabilites,
shareholders' equity and income are incorporated into the Parent's financial statements, after elimination of equity investments in such subsidiares,
account balances and intercompany transactions.

All significant transactions and material balances among subsidiaries have been eliminated upon consolidation; non-controlled interest represented by
third parties' ownership interests insubsidiaries (non-controlling interests) have been recognized and separately included in the consdidated shareholders'
equity.

At the time of assessing whether the Parent has control over a subsidiary, analysis is made of the existence and effect of potential vating rights currently
exercised. Subsidiaries are consolidated as of the date on which control is transferred to the Parent and excluded from consolidation upon termination of
control.

All controlled companies are consolidated into the Parent's financial statements, regardless the ownership interest percentage.

Transactions involving a change in the Parent's ownership percentage without loss of contral are recognizedin shareholders' equity, given that thereis
no change of control over the business entity. Cash flows provided by changes in ownership interests not resulting in a loss of controlare classified as
financing activities in the statement of cashflows.

In transactions involving a loss of contral, the entire ownership interest in the subsidiary is derecognized, retained interests are recognized at fair vaue
and the gain or loss arising from the transaction is recognized in period income, including the relevant items of other comprehensive income. Cash flows
from the acquisition or loss of control over a subsidiary are classified as investment activities in the statement of cashflows.

Wherever a subsidiary is made available for sale or its operation is discontinued, but control over is it is still maintained, its assets and liabilities ae
classified under non-current assets held for trading, uponreciprocal offsetting of balances and are not part of the global integration of assets and liabilities
under the consolidation process. Neither is subsidiary's income part of the global integration of income under the consolidation process and is presented,
upon offsetting of reciprocal transactions, in the line item fornet income of discontinued operations, separate fromall other consolidatedincome of Parent
and its subsidiaries.

Period income and each component in other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the controlling entity and to non-controlling ownership
interests.
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In consolidating the financia statements, all subsidiaries apply the same policies and accounting principles implemented by the Parent, pursuant to
accounting and financial reporting standards accepted in Colombia, set outby Law 1314 0f2009 in linewith the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) officially translated and authorized by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), regulated in Colombiaby Regulatory Decree 2420 of
2015, "Single Regulatory Decree on accounting, financial reporting and information assurance standards", amended on December 23, 2015, by Regulatory
Decree 2496, on December 22, 2016 by Regulatory Decree 2131 and on December 22, 2017 by Regulatory Decree 2170, on December 28, 2018 by
Regulatory Decree 2483 and on December 13,2019 by Regulatory Decree 2270 without applying any of the exceptions tothe IFRStherein contained.

The Parent appraises its inventories by applying the first-infirst-out method, while subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD and its
subsidiaries appraise their inventories at the weighted average cost, basically due to the different taxes recognized upon the acquisition of inventories (n
the Brazil segment) that would have an effect on the final appraisal of the inventories under the FIFOmethod. This situation is not shownin the statement
of financial position at December 31, 2019, since the investmentin this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019 and its assets and liabilities are not
included in the consolidated statement of financial position at December 321, 2019.

Subsidiaries' assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses, as well as the Parent's revenue and expenses in foreign currency, have been translated into
Colombian pesos atmarket exchange rates on eachclosing date and at period average, as follows:

Closingrates Average rates
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
US Dollar 3,277.14 3,249.75 3,281.09 2,956.43
Uruguayan peso 87.57 100.25 93.17 96.36
Brazilian real 813.11 838.75 832.01 812.77
Argentine peso 54.73 86.29 69.68 111.63
Euro 3,678.63 3,714.98 3,671.68 3,486.88

Note 4. Significantaccounting policies

The accompanying interim consolidated financial statements at September 30, 2019 have been prepared using the same accounting policies,
measurements and bases used topresent the consolidated financial statements for the annual period ended December 31, 2018, except for the standards
mentioned in note 5.2 that came into effectas of January 1, 2019, pursuant to accounting and financial reporting standards accepted in Colombia, set
out in Law 1314 of 2009 in line with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), officially translated and authorized by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), regulated in Colombia by Regulatory Decree 2420 of 2015, "Single Regulatory Decree on accounting, financial
reporting and information assurance standards", amended on December 23, 2015 by Regulatory Decree 2496, on December 22, 2016 by Regulatory
Decree 2131 and on December 22,2017 by Regulatory Decree 2170, on December 28, 2018 by Regulatory Decree 2483 and on December 13, 2019 by
Regulatory Decree 2270, without applyingany of the exceptions tothe IFRStherein contained.

Adoption of new standards in force as of January 1, 2019 mentionedin Note 5.2 did not entai significant change to these accounting policies as compared
to those applied when preparing the financial statements at December 31, 2018 and no significant effects arose from adoption thereof, except for the
adoption of IFRS 16 whose effects were properly disclosed in the annual financial statements at December 31, 2018 and have been included in these
annual financial statements at December 31, 2019.

The most significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying consdidated financial statements are the fdlowing:
Investments in associates and joint arrangements

An associate is an entity over which the Parent is in a position of exercising significant influence, but not contrd or joint control, through the power of
participating in decisions regarding operating and financial policies of the asscciate. In general, significantinfluence is alleged in those cases where the
Parent has an ownership interest higher than 20%, even though such influence, as well as the control, mustbe assessed.

A joint arrangement is an agreement by means of which two or more parties maintain joint control. Joint arrangements can be joint businesses or jont
ventures. There is jointcontrol only whendecisions on significant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Acquisitions of
such arrangements are recorded using the principles applicable to business combinations setout by IFRS 3.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement by which the parties having joint control over the arrangement are entitled to the net assets of the arrangement.
Such parties are knownas participantsin a joint venture.

A joint operation is ajoint arrangement by means of which the parties having joint control over the arangement are entitied to the assets and liability-
related obligations associated with the arrangement. Such parties are known as joint operators.

Investmentsin associates or joint ventures are recognized using the equity method.
Under the equity method, investmentin associates and joint ventures is recorded at cost upon initial recognition and subsequently the book value wil be
increased or decreased to recognize the Parent's share of the invested company's comprehensive results for the period. Suchshare will be recognized

in period income or in other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Profit distributions or dividends receivedfrom the invested company are deducted
from the book value of the investment.
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Wherever the Parent's share of the losses of an asscciate or joint venture equals to or exceeds its interest therein, the Parent ceases to recognize its
share of furtherlosses. A provision is recognized once the Parent's interest comes to zero, only in as much as the Parent has incurred kegal or constructive
liabilities.

Unrealized gains or losses from transactions between the Parentand associates and joint ventures are eliminated in the proportion of the Parent's interest
in such entities upon application of the equity method.

Once the equity method has been applied, the Parent decides whether there is need to recognize impairment losses relatedwith its interest in the invested
company.

Transactions involving a significant loss of influence over an associate or joint venture are booked recognizingany ownership interest retained at its fair
value, and the gain or loss arisingfrom the transaction is recognized in period income including therelevantitems of other comprehensive income.

Regarding transactions not invavinga significantloss of influence over an associate or joint venture, the equity method continues being applied and the
portion of the gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income relevant to the decrease in the ownership interest is reclassified to income.

Related parties

The following are deemed related parties by the Parent: its associates and joint ventures; entities exercising joint confrol or significant influence over the
Parent and its subsidiaries; key management personnel, including members of the Board of Directors, CEOs, Vice-presidents, business corporate
managers and Officers with the ability of directing, planning and controlling the activities of the Parent and its subsidiaries; companies over which key
management personnel may exercise control or joint control, and the closerelatives of the key managementwho might have an influence on the Parent
and its subsidiaries.

All transfers of resaurces, services and obligations between the Parentand its related parties are deemed tobe related-party transaction.

No transaction contains special terms and conditions; transactions caried out are like those carried out with third parties, and do notinvolve market price
differences forsimiar transactions; sales and purchases are carried out arms'length.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are booked using the acquisition method; this involves the identificationof the acquirer, the definition of the acquisition date, the
recognition and measurement of identifiable assets acquired, liabiliies taken on and the recognition and measurement of goodwill.

If at the closing of the accounting period during which a business combination takes place the initial booking is incomplete, the Parent will inform in its
separate financial statements the provisiona amounts of assets and liabilities whose booking is incomplete, and within 12 months of the measurement
period the Parent will retroactively adjust such provisionalamounts recognized to reflect the new information obtained from the allocated purchase price
or Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) survey.

The measurement period will end as soon as the Parent has received information on the purchase price allocation survey or concludes that no further
information can be obtained, but in any event one year after the acquisition date at the latest.

The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is the aggregate of the fair values of theassets transferred by
the acquirer, the liabilities taken on by the acquirer vis-a-vis the former owners of the acquired company and the ownership interests in the equity issued
by the acquirer.

Contingent consideration is includedin the considerationtransferredat its fair value on the date of acquisition. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration, arisingfrom events and circumstances existing on the date of acquisition, are booked by adjusting the goodwill if occurring
during the measurement period, or directly to period resultsif arising after the measurement period, unless the liability is settled using variable-income
instruments, in which event the contingent considerationis not remeasured.

The Parent recognizes acquied identifiable assets and liabilities taken from a business combination, regardless of whether they have been recognized
prior to the acquisition in the financial statements of the business acquired. Identifiable assets acquiredand identifiable liabiliies taken on are booked at
fair values on the date of acquisition. Excess consideration transferredand the fair value of identifiable assets acquired (including intangible assets not
previously recognized) and identifiable liabilities taken on (including contingent liabilities) are recognized as goodwill.

For each business combination, the Parent measures non-confrolling interests at fair value and as a proportion of theidentifiable net assets of the business
acquired.

Inthe event of a business combination achieved in stages, the previous ownership interest in theacquireeis remeasured at fairvalue on the date control
is gained. The difference between thefair value and the book value of suchownership interest is directly recognized in period resuts.
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Disbursements related to a business combination, other than those related to the issue of debt, are booked as expensesin the periods they are incurred.
On the date of acquisition, goodwill is measured at fair value and subsequently monitored at the level of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-
generating units benefited from the business combination. Goodwill is notamortized, and is subject to impaiment testing within one year or earler, shoud
there be indications of impairment. Impairmentlosses applied to goodwill are booked to period results and the effect thereofis not reverted.

The method applied by the Parent to test for impairment is described in the assetimpairment policy. Negative goodwill arising from a business combination
is directly recognized in period results, upon recognition and measurement of identifiable assets, liabilities taken on and potential contingencies.

Put options granted to the holders of non-controlling interests

The Parent and its subsidiaries recognize put option agreements entered with the holders of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries pursuant to IAS 32
"Financial Instruments: Presentation". Liabilities arising from these agreements, related to subsidiaries consolidated under the global integration method,
are recognized as financial liabilities at fair value.

Intangible assets

Refer to non-monetary identifiable assets, with no physical substance, controlled by the Parent and its subsidiaries as a result of pastevents and fom
which future economic benefits are expected.

An intangible asset isrecognized as such wherever the item s identifiable, severable and will bring future economic benefit. Itis identifiable wherever the
asset is severable or arises fromrights. An assetis controllable if the company has the power to control future economic benefits associated tothe asset.

Intangible assets acquired under a business combinationare recognized as goodwillwherever they do not meet these criteria.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost, and intangible assets acquired undera business combination are recognized at far
value.

Internally generated trademarks are notrecognizedin the statement of financial position.

The cost of intangible assets includes acquisition cost, import duties, indirect not-recoverable taxes and costs directly incumed to bring the asset to the
place and use conditions foreseen by the Parent's and its subsidiaries' management, after trade discounts and rebates, if any.

Intangible assets having indefinite useful lives are notamortized, but are subject to impairment testing, on an annual basis or wherever thereis indication
of impairment.

Intangible assets having a defined useful life are amortized using the straightdine method over their estimated useful lives. The most significant usefu
lives are:

Acquired software Between 3and 5
years

ERP-like acquired software Between 5and 8
years

Intangible assets are subsequently measured using the cost model, and amortizationas a function of the estimated useful lives and impairment losses
are deducted from the amount initially recognized. The effects of amortization and potential impairment are taken to income for the period unless
amortization has been booked as a higher value in the construction or production of a new asset.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon its sale or wherever no future economic berefitis expected from the use or disposition thereof. The gainor loss
from derecognition of an asset is estimated as the difference between the net proceeds of sale and the carrying amount of the asset. Such effect is
recognized in period results.

Residual values, useful lives and amortization methods are reviewed at the closing of each annualperiod and changes, if any, are applied prospectively.
Research and development costs

Research costs are recognized as expenses as they are incurred. Disbursements for development of individual projects are recognized as intangie
assets wherever the Parent and its subsidiaries are in the capacity of demonstrating:

- Thetechnical feasibility of completing the intangible asset to have it available for use or sale;

- ltsintention of completing the assetand the ability touse or sell the asset;

- The ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- How the assetwill generate future economic benefit;

- Theavailability of resources to complete the asset; and

- The ability to accurately measure the disbursement during development.
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Development costs not complyingwith these criteria for capitalization are taken toperiod results. Development costsrecognized asintangible assets are
subsequently measured using the cost model.

Property, plant and equipment

The name property, plant and equipmentis given to all of Parent's and its subsidiaries'tangible assets held for use in production or in the production or

provision of goods and services, or for administration purposes, and which are further expected to be used during more than one period, thatis to say,

more than one year, and that meet the following conditions:

- Itis probable that the Parentand its subsidiaries wil obtain future economic benefit from the asset;

- The cost may be accurately measured,

- TheParent and its subsidiaries hold all risks and benefits arising from the use or possession of the asset, and

- They are assets whose individual acquisifion cost exceeds 50 UVT (Tax-Value Units), except for those assets defined by the Parent's and its
subsidiaries' management that are related to the core business purpose, and there is an interest in controlling them given that the Parent and its
subsidiaries procure such assets frequently and in significantamounts.

Property, plantand equipment are initially measured at cost; subsequently they aremeasuredat cost less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated
impairment loss.

The cost of property, plant and equipment items includes acquisition cost, import duties, non-recoverable indirect taxes, future dismantiing costs, if any,
loan costs directly attributable to the acquisition of a qualifying asset and the costs directly attributable to place the assetin the site and usage conditions
foreseen by the Parent's and its subsidiaries' management, net of trade discounts and rebates.

Costs incurred for expansion, modernization andimprovements thatincrease productivity, capacity or efficiency, or an increase in the useful lives theredf,
are carried as a higher value of the asset. Maintenance and repair costs from whichno future benefitis foreseenare taken to period results.

Land and buildings are deemed to be individual assets, wherever they are material and physical separation is feasible from a technical viewpoint, even i
they have been jointly acquired.

Constructions in progress are transferred to operating assets upon completion of the construction or commencement of operation, and depreciated as of
that moment.

The useful life of land is unimited and consequently it is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, considering nil residual value. The groups of property, plant and equipment and relevant useful ives
are as follows:

Low-value assets 3years

Computers 5years

Vehicles Syears

Machinery and equipment From 10to 20 years
Furniture and office equipment From 10to 12 years
Other transportation equipment From 5to 20 years
Surveillance team armament 10years

Buildings From 40 to 50 years

Improvements to third party 40 years or the term of the lease agreementor the remaining of thelease tem(*),
properties whichever s less.

(*) Urbanimprovements related to the construction or delivery of envionmentalresources and/or related to the visual or architectural improvement of
the zone affected by the construction or work under the responsibility of the Parent and its subsidiaries, are recognized in period results.

The Parent and its subsidiaries estimate depreciation by components, which means applying individual depreciation to the components of an asset wih
useful lives that are differentfrom the assetas a whole and has a material cost in relation to the entire fixed asset. Costis deemed material whenthe
component exceeds 50% of the total asset vaue, or when it can be individually identified, based on an individual cost of the component of 32 Minimum
Legal Monthly Wagesiin force (SMMLV).

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at the closing of each annualperiod and changes, if any, are applied prospectively.
An item of property, plantand equipment is derecognized upon its sale or wherever no future economic benefit is expected from the use or disposition
thereof. The gain or loss from derecognition of an asset is estimated as the difference between the net proceeds of sale and the book value of the asset.
Such effect is recognized in period results.

Investment property

Is property held to obtainrevenueor capita gains and notfor use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative use or sale in the
normal course of business. This category includes the shopping malls and other property owned by the Parent and its subsidiaries.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Following initial recognition, they are valued at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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Investment propertyis depreciated using the straight-ine method over the estimated useful life, consideringnil residud value. The useful life estimated to
depreciate buildings classified as investment property is from 40 to 50 years.

Transfers are made from investment properties toother assets and from otherassets to investment properties only wherever there is a changein the use
of the asset. For transfers frominvestment property to property, plant and equipmentor to inventories, the cost taken into consideration for subsequent
accounting is the book vaue on the date the use is changed. Ifa property, plant and equipment item would become investment property, it will be recorded
at book value on the date it changes.

Situations thatcan lead to transfer are:

- TheParent and its subsidiaries will occupy theasset classified as investment property; in this event, the asset is reclassified to property, plantand
equipment,
The Parent and its subsidiaries starta development on the investment property or property, plant and equipmenttowardsits sale, provided there is
a significant advance in the development of tangible assets or in the project to be sold as a whole. In these events, the asset is reclassified to
inventories,

- The Company and its subsidiaries enter intoan operating lease agreement with a third party on a property, plantand equipment item. In this evert,
the asset is reclassified to investment property.

Investment property is derecognized upon its sale or wherever no future economic benefi is expected from the use or disposition thereof.

The gain or loss from derecognition of investment properties is estimatedas the difference between the net proceeds of sale and the book value of the
asset. The effectis taken toincome during the period where the assetwas derecognized.

The fair values of investment property are updated on an annual basis for the purposes of disclosure in the financial statements.
Non-current assets held fortrading and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and the groups of assets for disposal are classified as held for trading if their book value wil be recovered via a sale instead of
continued use thereofand do not meet the conditions to be classified as real estate inventory.

Such condition is met wherever an asset or group of assets are available forimmediate sale, under current condition, and the sale is highly probable to
occur. For the sae to be highly probable, the Parent's and its subsidiaries' management mustbe committed to a plan tosell the asset (or assets or group
for disposition) and the sale is expected within the year following the classification date.

Non-current assets and groups of assets for disposition are measuredat the lower of book value or fair value, less costs of sae, and are not depreciated
oramortized as of the date they are classified as held for trading. Such assets or groups of assets are shown under current assets.

The revenue, costs and expenses from a discontinued operation are presented separately from those from continuing activities, in one single line item
after income tax, in the statement of income for the current period and the comparative period for the preceding year, even if a non-contralling interest in
the discontinued operation is keptafter the sale. An operation is deemed to be discontinued wherever it meets the definition of non-current assets held
for trading and represents a business line or geographical area of operations that are material to the Parent and its subsidiaries, or a subsidiary acquied
with trading purposes or are part of a single coordinated plan to maintain a business line or geographical area of operations that are material and are
deemed separate.

Finance leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when all risks and benefits of ownership of the leased property are substantially transferred to the lessee. Some
of the criteria to be taken into consideration todefine whether substantial risks and benefits have been transferredinclude (a) where the term of the lease
is equal to or higher than 75% of the economic life of the asset and/or (b) where the present value of minimum payments under the lease agreementis
equal to or higher than 90% of the fair value of the asset.

Contingent lease instalments are estimated based on the cause that results in the instalment variance for reasons other than the passage of time.
a. The Parent and its subsidiaries as lessees

Wherever the Parent and its subsidiaries actas the lessee of an assetunder finance lease, the leased assetis shown in the statement of financial
position as an asset, according to the nature of the asset pursuart to the lease agreement, and at the same time, a liability in the sameamourtis
recorded in the statement of financial position, estimated as the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of minimum instaiments
payable to the lessor, plus, as applicable, the price of the purchase option.

Regarding useful lives, such assets are depreciated or amortized with the same criteria applied to elements of property, plant and equipment, or
intangible assets for own use, provided the property of the asset is transferred to the Parent and its subsidiaries at the end of the contract, via
purchase option or else; otherwise, useful lives aresetas the term of the agreement or the useful life of the element of property, plantand equipment,
whichever s less.
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Lease instalments are splitbetweeninterestand the decrease of the principal. Financial expenses are recognizedin the statement of income for the
period.

b. The Parent and its subsidiaries as lessors

Wherever the Parent and its subsidiaries act as the lessor of an asset under finance lease, the leased asset is not shown as property, plant and
equipment, giventhatthe risks associated tothe property have been transferred to thelessee; instead, a financial asset is recognized for the present
value of the minimum lease instalments receivable plus the unsecured residual value.

Lease instalments received are split between interest and the decrease of the principal. Interest-related financial revenue is recognized in the
statement of income forthe period.

Operating leases
They are lease agreements under which all substantial risks and benefits attached to the asset remain with the lessor.

Payments or collections on account of operating lease are recognizedas expenses or revenue in the statement ofincome on a linear basis over the tem
of the lease agreement. Contingent payments or collections are recognized during the period they are incurred.

Wherever the Company makes advance payments or receives advance payments on account of lease agreements, related to the usage of assets, such
payments are carried as expenses paid in advance and colections are bookedas revenue received in advance, and both are amortized over the tem of
the lease agreement.

Use rights
Use rights assets are assets representing the right of the Parent and its subsidiaries as lessees to use anunderlying asset during the term of a lease agreement.

They are initially measured at cost, which includes the present value of payments under the lease agreement discounted at the incremental rate of loans
of the Parent and its subsidiaries, plus indirect costs incurred under the lease agreement, plus an estimation of the costs required to dismante the
underlying asset upon termination of the lease agreement. Later, they are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated
impairment losses, plus adjustments from measurements of lease liabilities relevant to the use right.

The useful lives of use rights are defined by theirrevocable terms of the lease agreements coveringunderlyingassets together with periods covered by
an option to extend the term or an option toterminate the lease agreement.

The Parent and its subsidiaries do not carry assets arising from the right touse:

- lease agreements whose underlying assets are low-cost assets such as furniture and fixtures, computers, machinery and equipment and office
equipment,

- lease agreements for underlying assets with a term of less than one year,

- lease agreements covering intangible assets.

Loan costs

Loan costs directly attibutable to the acquisition, construction or manufacturing of a qualifying asset, in other words an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time (generally more than six months) tobecome ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. Otherloan costs are accountedfor as expenses during the periodthey are incurred. Loan costs are made of interestand other costs incurred for
securing the loan.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the closing of each annual period, the Parentand its subsidiaries assess whetherthere is indication that the value of an asset may be impaired. Assets
with a defined useful life are subject to impairment testing, provided thereis objective evidence that, as resuit of one or more events subsequentto initial
recognition, the book value thereof cannot be recovered, in full or in part.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life not subject to amortization are tested for impairment atthe closing of each year, except for those intangible
assets attached to a business combination still undergoing a measuring period where the purchase price allocation survey has not been completed.

Impairment indicators as defined by the Parentand its subsidiaries, in additionto extemal data sources (economic environment and the market value of
the assets, among other), are based on the nature of assets:
- Movable assets attached to a cash-generating unit: ratio between the net book value of the assets related to each store and sales vaue (VAT
included). Should this proportion be higherthan the percentage defined for each format, then thereis indication of impairment;
Real estate: comparisonof the netbook vaue of assets to the market value thereof.

To assess impaiment losses, assets are grouped atthe level of cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units as applicable, and estimation

is made of the recoverable value thereof. The Parent and its subsidiaries have defined each store or each shop as an individual cash-generating un.
Regarding goodwill, the generating units are grouped based on the brand, which represents the lowest value at whichgoodwillis monitored.
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The recoverable value is the higher of the fair value less costs of sale of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating units and the valuein use.
This recoverable value is estimated for an individual asset unless such asset does not generate any cash flows independently from the cash inflows
obtained by other assets or groups of assets.

Impairment losses are recognized with charge to periodresults in amount of the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over recoverable value thered,
first reducing the book value of the goodwil allocated tothe cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units; should there be a remaining balance,
by reducing all other assets of the cash-generatingunit or group of units as a function of the carryingamount of each asset until suchbook value reaches
zero.

To determine the fair value less the costs of sae, a pricing model is used in accordance with the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating unis,
if it can be established.

Toassess thevalue in use:

- Estimation is made of future cash flows of the cash-generating unitor groups of cash-generatingunits over a period not to exceed five years. Cash
flows beyond the forecasted period are estimated by applying a steady or declining growth rate.

- The terminal value is estimated by applying a perpetual growth rate, according to theforecasted cash flow atthe end of the explicit period.

- Thecash flows and terminal value are discounted at present value, using a discount rate before taxes that corresponds to outstanding market rates
reflecting the value of money over time and the particular risks attached to the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating units.

The Parent and its subsidiaries assess whether the impaiment losses previously recognized no longer exist or have decreased; in such events, the book
value of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating units is increased to the revised estimation of the recoverable value, without exceeding the
book value that would have been determined if no previous impairmenthad been recognized. Such reversal is recognized as revenue in period resuis,
except for goodwillwhose impaiment is not reverted.

Inventories

Inventories include goods acquired with the purpose of being soldin the ordinary course of business, goods in process of manufacturing or construction
with a view to suchsale, and goods tobe consumedin the process of production or provision of services.

Inventories in transit are recognized upon receipt of all substantial risks and benefits attached to the asset, according to performance obligations satisfied
by the seller, as appropriate under procurement conditions.

Inventories also include real estate property where construction or development of a real estate projecthas beeninitiated with a view to future selling.

Inventories are valued by applying the first-in-first-out method (FIF O), while Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicio — CBD and its subsidiaries value ther
inventories at the weighted average cost, basically given the different taxes recognized upon the acquisition of inventories (in the Brazi segment) thet
would have an effect on the final valuation of the inventories under the FIFO method. The cost of initial recognition includes acquisition costs, costs of
processing and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, that is to say, upon completion of the production
process or receipt at thestore. Logistics costs and supplier discounts are capitalized as part of the inventories and recognized in the cost of goods sod
upon sale thereof.

Inventories are valued at period closing at the lower of costand net realization value.

The Parent and its subsidiaries assess whether impairment losses previously recognized in the inventory no longer exist or have decreased; in these
events, the book value ofinventoriesis thelower of costand net realizable value. This reversal is recognized as a decrease inimpairment cost.

The Parent and its subsidiaries make an estimation of obsolescence and physical inventory losses, based on the age of inventories, changes in
manufacturingand sale conditions, trade regulations, probability of loss and other variables affecting the recoverable value.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Parent and its subsidiaries become a party pursuant to the instrument
terms and conditions. Financial assets are classified in the following categories:

- Financial assets atfair valuethrough income;

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost, and

- Financial assets atfair valuethrough other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the business model used to manage financial assets and on the characteristics of the cash flows from the financial asset;

such classification is defined uponinitial recognition. Financial assets are classified as current assets, if they mature in less than one year; otherwise they
are classified as non-currentassets.

26



Financial assets measured at fairvalue through income

Includes financial assets incurred mainly seeking to manage liquidity through frequent sales of the instrument. These instruments are measured at
fair value and the variationsin value are taken to income upon their occurrence.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These are non-derivativefinancial assets with known payments and fixed maturity dates, for which there is an intention and capability of collecting
the cash flows from the instrument under a contract.

These instruments are measured atamortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized costes estimated by adding or deducting any
premium or discount, revenue or incremental cost, during the remaining life of theinstrument. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of
income by the amortization or if there were objective evidence of impairment.

These financial assets are shown as non-current assets, exception made of those maturingin less than 12 months as of the date of the statement of
financial position.

Financial assets atfair value through other comprehensive income

They represent variable-income investments not held for trading nor deemed an acquirer's contingent consideration in a business combination.
Regarding these investments, upon initial recognition irrevocable decision was made of presenting the gains or losses in other comprehensiveincome
based on a subsequent measurementat fair value.

The gains and losses arising from the new measurement at fair value arerecognized in other comprehensiveincome until the asset is derecognized.
In this event, the gains and losses previously recognized in equity are reclassified to retained earnings.

These financia assets are included as non-current assets unless the intention is to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the date of the
statement of financial position.

Derecognition

Afinancial asset, or a portion thereof, is derecognized uponits sale, transfer, expiry or loss of contrd over contractrights or over the cash flows from
the instrument. When substantially all risks and benefits of ownership are retained by the Parent and its subsidiaries, a financial asset continues
being recognized in the statement of financial position at its full vaue.

Effective interest method

Is the method to estimate the amortized cost of a financia asset and the allocation of interest revenue during the entire relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the ratethat exactly discounts the estimated net future cashflows receivable (including all charges and revenuereceived that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other rewards or discounts), duringthe expected life of a financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

Given that trade accounts receivable and other accounts receivable are deemed to be short-term receivables of less than 12 months as of the date
of issue and not containing a significant financial component, impairment thereofis estimated from initial recognition and on each presentation date
as the expected loss forthe following 12 months.

For financial assets other than those measured at fair value, expected losses are measured over the life of the relevant asset. For this purpose,
determination is made of whether the credit risk arising from the asset assessed on an individual basis has significantly increased, by comparing the
risk of default on the date of presentationagainstthaton the date of initid recognition; if so, an impairment loss is recognized in period results in the
amount of the creditlosses expected over the following 12 months.

Loans and accounts receivable

Loans and accounts receivable are financial assets issued or acquired in exchange for cash, goods or services delivered to a debtor.

Accounts receivable from sales transactions are measured at invoice values less accrued impairment losses. These accounts receivable ae
recognized when all risks and benefits have been transferred to a third party and all performance obligations agreed upon with the customer have

been met or are in the process of being met.

Long-term loans (more than one year of issuance date) are valued at amortized cost using the effective interest method wherever the amounts
involved are material. Impairment losses are recognizedin the statement of income.

These instruments are included as current assets, except for those maturing after 12 months of the date of the statement of financial position, which

are classified as non-curent assets. Accounts receivable expected to be settled over a period of more than 12 months and include payments duing
the first 12 months, are shown as non-current portion and current portion, respectively.

27



h. Cashand cash equivalents
Include cash athandand in banks, and highly liquidinvestments. To beclassifiedas cash equivalents, investments shoud meet the following criteria:
(@) Short-term investments, in other words, with terms less than or equal to three months as of acquisition date;
(b) High-liquidity investments;
(c) Readily converted into cash, and
(d) Subject to low risk of changein value.
In the statement of financial postion, the accounting accounts showing actual overdrafts with financial institutions are classified as financial liabilties.
In the statement of cash flows such overdrafts are shown as a component of cash and cash equivalents, provided they are an integral part of the
Parent's and its subsidiaries' cash management system.
Financialliabilities
Financial liabilities are recognized in the statement of financia position when the Parent and its subsidiaries become a party pursuant to the instrument
terms and conditions. Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through income and financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost.
a. Financial liabilities measured at fair value through income

Financial liabilities are classified under this category when held for trading or whenupon initial recognitionthey are designated at fair value through
income.

b. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Include loans received and bonds issued, which are initially measured at the actual amount received net of transactioncosts and later measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, recognizing interest expense based on effective profitability.

c. Derecognition
Afinancial liability or a part thereof is derecognized uponsettiement or expiry of the contractual obligation.
d. Effective interest method
The effective interest method is the method to calculate the amortized cost of a financial liabiity and the allocation of interest expenses over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that accurately discounts estimated future cash flows payable during the expected ffe of a
financial liability, or, as appropriate, a shorter periodwherever a prepayment option is associated to theliability and it is likely to be exercised.
Embedded derivatives
The Parent and its subsidiaries have implemented a procedure that enables assessing the existence of embedded derivatives in financial and non-financia
contracts. Should an embedded derivative exist, and if the main agreement is not accounted for at fair value, the procedure defines whether the
characteristics and risks thereof are not closely related with the core agreement, in which event separate booking is required.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value, both initidly and subsequently. Derivative instruments are recognized as financial assets
when its fair value involves a right, and as financial liabiities whenits fair value involves an obligation.

The fair value of these instrumentsis estimated on the closing date of presentation of the financial statements.

The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are directly recognized in the statement of income, except those
maintained under hedge accounting and deemed to be cash flow hedges or net investment hedges abroad.

Derivative transactions involve forwards and swaps, aimed at reducing the market risk of assets and liabilities by using the best hedging structures
available in the market, being able to stabiize debt service cash flows.

Regarding forwards the intention is managing the foreign exchange risk, and regarding swaps additionally managing the interest rate risk in foreign
currency. The effects of both, derivative financial instruments and elements hedged are recognized in the statement of income under the net financi
results line item.

Evenif it is true that the Parentand its subsidiaries do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes, in these financial statements such

derivatives have notbeen deemed hedge instruments given that they do not meet the requirements set by the International Financial Reporting Standards
accepted in Colombia.
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Forwards and swaps that meet hedge accounting requirements are recognized pursuant to the hedge accountingpolicy.

Financial derivatives are measured at fair value usingfinancia valuation techniques based on discounted cash flows. The variables used for valuation
are exchange rates in force on the valuation date applicable to the currencies agreedupon in the instrument and the interest rates associated thereto.

Hedge accounting

Parent and its subsidiaries carry out hedge transactions under term forward and swap contracts, to cover the risks associated with changesiin the exchange
rates applicable to theirinvestments and in the exchange rates and interests rates applicable to their liabilities.

Hedge instruments are measured at fair value and hedge accounting shall only be used if:
The hedge relationship has beenclearly defined and documented initially, and
The efficacy of the hedge may be evidenced initially and throughout its life.

Documents include the identification of the hedge instrument, the item or transaction hedged, the nature of the risk being hedged and the manner in which
the efficacy of the hedge instrumentwill be measured when offsetting the exposure to changes in the fair value of the item hedged or to changes in the
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

Hedges are deemed to be efficient when there is an economic relationship betweenthe item hedged and the hedge instrument, the effects of the credit
risk do not prevail over the value changes arising from such economic relationship, and the hedge ratio is the same as that arising from the item hedged
and the amount of the hedge instrumentused.

Hedge instruments are recognized initially at fair value, thatis onthe date of execution of the derivative contract, and subsequently measured at fair vaue.
They are shown as non-currentassets or non-current liabilities wherever the remaining maturity of the hedged item goes beyond 12 months, and, failng
that, as currentassets and current liabiliies if the maturity of the hedged item does notexceed 12 months.

Hedges are classified and booked as follows, upon compliance with strict hedge accounting criteria:

Cash flow hedges: this category includes hedges covering the exposure to the variation in cash flows arising from a particular risk associated to a
recognized asset or liability or to a foreseen transaction whose occurrence is highly probable and may havean impact on period results.

The effective portion of the changes in the fair value of derivative instruments defined as cash flow hedge instruments is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss related tothe non-effective portion is promptly recognized in the statement ofincome.

Values recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of income wherever the hedged transaction has an impacton
the results, on the same line item of the statement of income where the hedged itemwas recognized. However, when the foreseen transaction that
is hedged results in recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified atthe initial value of such asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued upon voiding of the hedge relation, when the hedge instrument matures or is sold, expires, or is exercised, or no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. In those events, any gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is maintained in shareholders'
equity and recognized when the foreseen fransaction has animpact on period results. When itis no longer expected that a foreseen transaction
would occur, then the accrued gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is immediately recognizedin the statement of income.

- Fair-value hedges: this category includes hedges covering the exposure to changes in the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or unrecognized
firm commitments.

A change in the fair value of a derivative that is a fair-value hedging instrumentis recognized in the statement of income as  financial expense or
revenue. A change in the fair value of a hedged item attributable to the hedgedrisk is booked as part of the book value of the hedged item, and is
also recognized in the statement of incomeas financial expense or revenue.

Wherever an unrecognized fim commitment is identified as a hedged item, the subsequent accrued change in the fair value of the firm commitment
attributable to the hedged risk will be recognized as an asset or liability and the relevant gain or loss wil be recognized in period results.

Net investment hedges abroad: this category includes hedges covering exposure to the variation in exchange rates arising from the translation of
foreign businesses to the Company's reporting currency.

The effective portion of the changes in thefair value of derivative instruments defined as instruments to hedge a netinvestment abroad is recognized
in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss related to the non-effective portionis promptly recognizedin the statement of income.

If the Parent and its subsidiaries would dispose of a foreignbusiness, in whae or in part, the accrued vaue of the effective portion recordedto other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of income.
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Share-based payments

Employees (including senior management) of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD, receive compensation in the form of share-based payments,
by means of whichemployees render services in exchange for equity instruments ("Transactions settled with shares").

The cost of transactions settled withshares is recognized as a period expense with an increase in net sharehadders' equity as balancing entry, over the
period during which the performance and service conditions are met. Service conditions require thatan employee complete a certain service period, and
performance condtions require than an employee complete a certain service period and certain performance goals.

Accrued expenses recognized from equity instruments at the closing of each period until the vesting date (irrevocability) of the benefit, reflectthe degree
in which the vesting period has expired and the best estimation of the number of equity instruments that will eventually vest. It is understood that the
vesting date is that on which Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD and employees reach agreement on share-based payments, that is to say,
when the parties reach understanding on the terms and conditions of theagreement. On such date, Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigéo — CBD corfer
upon its counterparty the right to receive equity instruments, subject to compliance, where appropriate, of certain vesting condttions (irrevocability).

When an equity instrument is amended, the minimum expense recognized is the expense that would have been incurred if the conditions had not changed;
additional expense is recognized for any change that may increase the fair value of the share-based payment, or is of benefit to the employee, measured
on the date of the amendment.

Upon cancellation of an equity instrument, treatment is givenas if fully vested on the date of cancellation, and any unrecognized expense related to the
premium is immediately recognized in period results. This includes any premium whose non-consolidation conditions, under the control of Companhia
Brasileira de Distribui¢do - CBD or under the control of the employee, are not met. However, if the plan thathas been cancelledis replacedby another
plan and is named as replacementon the date it is carried out, thegranting plan canceled and the new plan are treated as if they were and amendment
of the original plan, as described in the preceding paragraph. All cancellations of setled equity instrument transactions are treated equaly.

Employee benefits
a. Defined contribution plans

Post-employment benefit plans under which there is an obligationto make certain predetermined confributions to a separateentity (a retirement fund
orinsurance company) and there is no further legal or constructive obligation to pay additional contributions. Such contributions are recognized as
expenses in the statement of income, in as much as the relevant contributions are enforceable.

b. Defined post-employment benefit plans

Post-employment benefit plans are those under which there is an obligation todirectly provide retirrment pension payments and retroactive severance
pay, pursuant to Colombian legal requirements. The Parent and its subsidiaries have no specific assets intended for guaranteeing the defined
benefit plans.

Defined post-employment benefit plan liabilities are estimated severally for each plan, with the support of independent third parties, applying the
projected credit unit's actuarial valuation method, using actuarial assumptions on the date of the period reported, such as: salary increase
expectations, average time of employment, life expectancy and personnel turnover. For 2019 and 2018, information on actuarial assumptions
regarding the Parent and its Colombian subsidiaries is taken as a reference to Regulatory Decree 2131 of December 22, 2016. Actuarial gains or
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Interest expense on defined post-employment benefits, as well as settlements and pan
reductions, are recognized in period results as financial costs

c. Long-term employee benefits
These are benefits not expected to be fully settled within twelve months following the closing date of the statement of financia position regarding
which employees render theirservices. These benefits relate to time-of-service bonuses and similar benefits. The Parentand its subsidiaries have
no specific assets intended for guaranteeing long-term benefits.
The liability for long-term benefits is determined separately for each plan with the support of independent third parties, following the actuarial valuation
of the forecasted credit unit method, using actuarial assumptions on the date of the reporting period. The costof current service, cost of past sewice,
cost forinterest, actuarial gains and losses, as well as setiements or reductionsin the plan are immediately recognized in the statement of income.
d.  Short-term employee benefits
These are benefits expected tobe fully settled within twelve months and after the closing date of the statement of financial position regarding which

the employees render their services. Such benefits include a share of profits payable to employees based on performance. Short-tem benefit
liabilities are measured based on the best estimation of disbursements requiredto settle the obligations on the closing date of the reporting period.
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e. Employee termination benefits

The Parent and its subsidiaries pay to employees certain benefits upon termination, wherever decision is made to terminatea labor contract earier
than on the ordinary retirement date, or wherever an employee accepts a benefits offer in exchange for termination of his labor contract.

Termination benefits are classified as short-term employee benefits and are recognized in period results when they are expectedto be fully seftied
within 12 months of the closing of the reporting period; and are classified as long-tem employee benefits when they are expected to be settled after
12 months of the closing of the reporting period.

Lease liabilities

Initially, lease liabilities are comprised of payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the term of the lease agreement, including fixed
payments, variable lease payments and the payment of fines arising from termination of the lease agreement. Later, lease liabilities are measuredby
increasing the book value to reflect interests, reducing the book value to show rental instalment payments made and re-measuring the book value to
reflect new amendments to the lease agreement.

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

The Parent and its subsidiaries recognize as provisions all liabilities outstanding on the date of the statement of financial position, resulting from past
events, which may be accurately measured and setlement thereof may require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and whose timing
and/or amount are uncertain.

Provisions are recognized at the present value of the best estimation of cash outflows required to settle the liability. In those cases where there is
expectation that the provision will be reimbursed, in full or in part, the reimbursementis recognized as an independent asset with a revenue toincome as
balancing entry, only when such reimbursementis virtually certain.

The provisions are revised periodically, and quantified based on the best informationavailable on the date of the statement of financial position.

Provisions under contracts for consideration are present liabilities arising from contracts for consideration and recognized as provisions wherever
unavoidable costs to be incurred in performing under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected tobe received thereunder.

A business reorganization provisionis recognized wherever there is a constructive obligation to conduct a reorganization, that is to say, when a foma
and detailed plan of reorganization has been prepared and has raised a validexpectationin those affected becauseits overal conditions were announced
prior to the closing of the reporting period.

Contingent liabilities are obligations arising from pastevents, whose existence is subject to the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not entirely
under the control of the Parent and its subsidiaries; or current obligations arising from past events, from which the amount of the obligation cannot be
accurately estimated or it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Contingent liabilities are not included in the
financial statements; instead they are disclosed in notes to the financial statements, except forthose individually included in the purchase pricing repott
under a business combination, whose fair value may be accurately established and regarding which an outflow of resources to settle the obligation is
deemed remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future
events not entirely under the contrad of the Parent and its subsidiaries. Contingentassets are not recognized in the statement of financial position unti
revenue realization is virtually true; instead, they are disclosed in the notes to the financid statements.

Taxes

Taxes includeliabiliies payable to Government by the Parent andits subsidiaries, determinedbased on private assessments generated during the relevant
taxable period.

Taxes include:

Colombia:

- Incometax,

- Realestate tax, and

- Industry and trade tax.

Brazil:

- Financial Contribution toSocial Security (COFINS),
- Social Security Tax (PIS),

- Taxon Services (ISS),

- TaxonProperty (IPTU),

- Social Contributionon Net Income (CSLL), and

- Imposto de Renta de Personas Juridicas (IRPJ).
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Argentina:

- Incometax,

- Province taxes,

- Taxon personal property - substitute responsible party, and
- Municipal trade and industry tax.

Uruguay:
- Incometax (IRIC),

- Taxonequity,

- Real property tax,

- Industry and trade tax,

- Taxon Control of Stock Corporations (ICOSA),

- National tax on wine production (INAVI ), and

- Taxonthe Disposd or Transfer of Agricutural and Livestock Assets (IMEBA)

Current income tax
The current income tax for the Parentand its subsidiaries in Colombia is assessed on the higher of the presumptive income and the taxable net income
at the official rate applicableannually on each closing of presentation of financial statements. Currentincome tax expenseis recognized with charge to

income.

In the case of Brazilian subsidiaries, the income tax includes the “Imposto de Renda da Pessoa Juridica (‘IRPJ”)"and the “Contribuigéo Social sobre 0
Lucro Liquido (“CSLL")", assessed on the income adjusted pursuant to regulationsin force.

For subsidiaries in Uruguay, the income taxis assessedat officialtax rates on each yearclosing.
The income tax expense is recognized with charge to income.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset for presentation purposes if there is a legally enforceable right, they have been incurred with the same tax
authority and the intention is to settle them at net value, or realize the assetand settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax arises from temporary differences and other events that give rise to differences between the accounting base and the taxable base
of assets and liabiliies. Deferred income taxis recognized at the non-discounted value that the Company expects to recover from or pay to tax authorities,
assessed at expected tax rates tobe applied during the period when the asset will be realized or the liability will be settled.

Deferred income tax assets areonly recognized ifitis probable that there will be future taxable income against whichsuch deductible temporary differences
may be offset. Deferred income tax liabiliies are always recognized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from a business combinations have an
impact on goodwill.

The effects of the defemred tax are recognized in income for the period or in other comprehensive income depending on where the originating profits or
losses were booked, and they are shown in the statement of financial position as non-currentitems.

For presentation purposes, deferredtax assets and liabilities are offsetif there is a legally enforceable rightand they have been incurred withthe same
tax authority.

No deferred tax liabilities are carried for the total of the differences that may arise between the accounting balances and the taxable balances of
investments in associates and joint ventures, since the exemption contained in IAS 12 is applied when recording such deferred income tax liabilities.

Share capital
The Parent's contributed capital is made of common shares.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown under shareholders' equity as adeduction from the amount received,
net of taxes.

Revenue fromordinary activities under contracts with customers
Revenue from ordinary activities under contracts with customers include retail sales at stores, provision of services, sales of real estate projects and
inventories, sale of extended waranties, lease of property and physical space and supplementary businesses such as insurance, travel, telephone,

transportation and financing to customers, among other.

Revenue is measuredat the fair value of the consideration received or to be received, net of trade rebates, cashdiscounts and volume discounts; value
added tax is excluded.

Revenue from retail salesis recognized when (a) significantrisks and benefits attached to the ownership of goods are transferred to purchaser and the

performance obligations withthe customerhave been satisfied, in most cases upon transfer of legal fitle, (b) such revenue can be reliably measuredand
(c) there is a probability thateconomic benefits from the transaction wil be received.
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Revenue from the provision of services is recognized in the period of realization provided the performance obligations agreed upon with the customer
have been satisfied. |f performance obligations of the provision of services are subject to compliance with several commitments, then the adequate time
for recognition is assessed, eitherover the time of service provision or at a singletime. Consequently, revenue from the provision of services can either
be recognized immediately (when the serviceis deemed rendered) or be deferred over the period during which the serviceis provided or the commitment
is fulfilled.

When goods are sold along with customer loyalty incentives, the revenue is allotted to retail sales and to the sale of incentives, at fair values. Defemed
revenue from the sale of incentives is recognized in the statement of income upon customer redemption of products, or upon expiry.

Intermediation contracts are analyzed on the grounds of specific criteria to determine whenthe Parentand its subsidiaries act as principa and when as a
commission agent.

Revenue from dividends is recognized when the right to receive payment for investments classified as financial instruments arise; dividends receved
from associates and joint ventures that are recognized using the equity method are recognized as a lower value ofthe investment.

Revenue from royalties is recognized upon fulfilment of the conditions set outin the agreements.
Revenue from operating leases on investment properties is recognized on a linear basis over the term of theagreement.
Revenue from interestis recognized usingthe effective interestmethod.

Revenue from barter transactions is recognized upon actua bartering and (a) assets are recognized at the fair value of the consideration received on the
date of exchange; or (b) at the fair value of goods delivered.

Loyalty programs

Under their loyalty programs, certainsubsidiaries award customer points on purchases, which may be exchanged in future for benefits such as prizes or
goods available at the stores, means of payment or discounts, redemption with allies and continuity programs, among other. Points are measured at far
value, which is the value of each point received by the customer, taking the various redemption strategies into consideration.  The fair value of each point
is estimated atthe end of each accounting period.

The obligation of awarding such points is recorded in the liability side as a deferred revenue that represents the portion of unredeemed benefits at far
value, considering for such effect the redemption rate and the estimated portionof points expected not to be redeemed by the customers.

Costs and expenses

Costs and expenses are recognized in period results upon a decrease in economic benefits, associated with a decrease in assets or an increase in
liabilities, and the valuethereof may be reliably measured.

Costs and expenses include all cash outflows necessary to complete the sales as well as the expenses required to provide the services, such as
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, personnel expenses, payments under service agreements, repairs and maintenance, operating costs,
insurance, fees and lease expenses, among other.

Earningsperbasic and diluted share

Earnings per basic share are calculated by dividing the net prdfit for the period attributable to the Parent, not including the average number of Parent
shares held by a subsidiary, if any, by the weighted average of common shares outstanding during the period, excluding, if any, common shares acquied
by the Parent and held as Treasury shares.

Earnings per diluted share are calculated by dividingthe net profit for the period attributable to the Parent, by the weighted average of commonshares
that would be issued should all potential common shares be converted with dilutive effect. The net profit for the period, if any, is adjusted by the amount
of dividends and interest related to convertible bonds and subordinated debt instruments.

The Parent has not carried out any transaction having a potential dilutive effect leadingto earnings per share on a diluted basis other thanthe earnings
per basic share.

Operation segments

An operating segment is a component that develops business activities from which it obtains revenue under ordinary activiies and incurs costs and
expenses and whose operatingresults are reviewed on an ongoing basis by the highest operating decision-making autharity of the Parent, namely the
Board of Directors, and regarding which distinct financial information is available. Parent's Management assesses the profitability of such segments besed
on the revenue from ordinary activities under contracts with customers.

For presentation purposes, non-operating companies - holding companies thathold interests in the operating companies - are allocated by segments to

the geographical area to which the operating companies belong. Should a holdingcompany hold interests in various operating companies, it is allocated
to the most significant operating company.
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Total assets and liabilities by segment are not reported internally formanagement purposes and consequently they are notdisclosed in the note regarding
disclosure of information by segment.

Information by segmentis prepared underthe same accounting policies as those appliedto consolidated financid statements.
Note 5. New and modified standards and interpretations
Note 5.1. Standards issued during the annual period ended December 31,2019

During the annual period ended December 31, 2019, Colombia enacted Regulatory Decree 2270 of December 13, 2019, to compile and update the
technical frameworks that rule the preparation of financial information set by Reguatory Decree 2420 of 2015, amended by Regulatory Decree 249 of
2015, Regulatory Decree 2131 of 2016 and Regulatory Decree 2170 de 2017, which had already been compiledin Regulatory Decree 2483 of December
28, 2018. Enactmentofthis Regulatory Decree allows adopting the International Financial Reporting Standards authorized by the International Accounting
Standards Board that are applicable as of January 1, 2020 and all those in force at December 31, 2019, exception made of the amendment to IFRS 9
issued in September 2019.

During the annual period ended December 31, 2019 the International Accounting Standards Board |ASB issued the following new standards and
amendments:
- Amendment to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, applicable as of January 2020.

Amendment to IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" (September 2019)

The amendment provides solutions to the uncertainty faced by companies due to the progressive elimination of interestrates-related reference indexes
such as interbanking rates (IBOR). Changes introduced modify certain hedge accounting requirements, including the provision of additiona information
toinvestors regarding their hedge relationships that are directly affected by suchuncertainties.

No material effects are expected from the application of this amendment.
Note 5.2. Standards applied as of 2019, issued prior to January 1, 2019

The following standards started to be applied as of January 1, 2019 according to the adoption date setby the |ASB:
- IFRS16-Leases

- Amendment to IAS28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

- Amendment to IFRS 9

- Annualimprovementto IFRSCycle 20152017

- Amendment to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits

- IFRIC 23 - Uncertainties over Income Tax Treatments

In Colombia, these standards and amendments were enacted by means of Regulatory Decree 2483 of December 28, 2018. No significant effects arose
from application of these standards, exception made of IFRS 16 whose effects were properly disclosed in the annual financial statements at December
31, 2018, and are further includedand recorded in these annual financial statements at December 31,2019. In Colombia, the Amendments to IAS 19 and
IFRIC 23 wereenacted by means of Regulatory Decree 2270 of December 13, 2019.

Note 5.3. Standards adopted earlier during the annual period ended December 31,2019
During the annual period ended December 31, 2019, the Company did not apply any Standards earlier.
Note 5.4. Standards not yet in force at December 31,2019, issued prior to January 1, 2019

During the annual period ended December 31, 2018 the International Accounting Standards Board IASB issued the following new standards and

amendments:

- Amendment to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, and to IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, changes in accounting estimates and misstatements,
to be applied as of January 2020.

- Amendment to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, to be applied as of January 2020.

- 2018 Conceptual framework, to be appliedas of January 2020.

During the annual period ended December 31, 2017 the International Accounting Standards Board IASB issued the following new standards and

amendments:
- IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts, to be applied as of January 2021.
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Note 5.5. Standards issued during the annual period ended December 31,2018

During the annual period ended December 31, 2018, Colombia enacted Regulatory Decree 2483 of December 28, 2018, to compile and update the
technical frameworks that rule the preparation of financial information set by Regulatory Decree 2420 of 2015, amended by Regulatory Decree 24% of
2015, Regulatory Decree 2131 of 2016 and Regulatory Decree 2170 de 2017. Enactment of this Regulatory Decree allows adopting the International
Financial Reporting Standards authorized by the International Accounting Standards Board that are applicableas of January 1,2019 andall those in force
at December 31, 2018, exception made of the amendmentto IFRS 19 issued in February 2018 and IFRIC 23 issued in June 2017.

During the annual period ended December 31, 2018 the International Accounting Standards Board IASB issued the following new standards and

amendments:

- Amendment to IAS 19, Employee Benefits, to be appliedas of January 2019.

- Amendment to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, to be applied as of January 2020.

- 2018 Conceptual framework, to be appliedas of January 2020.

- Amendment to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, and to IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, changes in accounting estimates and misstatements,
to be applied as of January 2020.

Amendment to IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" (February 2018)

The amendment specifies how a company accounts for a defined-benefits plan. I1AS 19 requires a company to update its assumptions and remeasure its
net defined benefit-related liabilities or assets upon occurrence of a plan event (e.g. a change, reduction or setflement). The amendmentalso clariies
that after a plan event, a company would use such updated assumptions tomeasure the cost of the current service and the netinterest for the remaining
of the reporting period following the plan event.

No material effects resuted from application of this amendment.

Amendment to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations (October 2018)

The amendment has a limited scope seeking to improve the definition of business. It clarifies the definition of business as a comprehensive set of
activities and assets aimed at and managed toprovide goods or services to customers, generating revenue frominvestments (dividends or interests) or
other kinds of ordinary revenue.

No material effects are expected from the application of this amendment.

2018 Conceptual framework (March 2018)

The new conceptual framework, whichis not a standard by itself, integrates and improves certain concepts such as: (i) confirms the purpose of delivering
financial information and clarifies the role of administrationwork, (ii) highlights the importance of delivering information regarding financial performance,
(iiiy improves the concepts todeliver information regarding assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, (iv) introduces a guidance on measurement, and (v)
supports the Council in establishing standards.

No material effects are expected from the application of this conceptua framework.

Amendment to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, and to IAS 8 - Accounting Pdlicies, changes in accounting estimates and misstatements

(October 2018).

Given that certain companies have had difficulty in using the "materiality" concept, the Intemational Accounting Standards Boardintroduced amendments
to this definition to make the issuing of materiality judgments easier, which basically means makinga decision on the information to be included in the
financial statements.

The new definition of materiality states that "information is material if one can reasonably believe that omitting it or misstating it could influence decisions
that primary users make on the basis of general-purposefinancial statements".

No material effects are expected from the application of this amendment.
Note 5.6 Standards applied as of 2018, issued priorto January 1,2018

The following standards started to be applied as of January 1, 2018 according to the adoption date setby the IASB:
- Amendment to IAS40. (a)

- Amendments to IFRS 4. (a)

- Amendments to IFRS 2. (a)

- Annualimprovements cycle 2014-2016. (a)

- IFRS 15-Revenue from Ordinary Activities under Contracts with Customers. (b)

- IFRS9-Financial Instuments. (c)

- IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. (d)
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(@) InColombia, these standards were made part of Regulatory Decree 2420 of December 14, 2015 by means of Regulatory Decree 2170 of December
22, 2017. No material effects resulted from application of these amendments and annual improvements.

(b) InColombia, this standardwas made part of Regulatory Decree 2420 of December 14, 2015 by means of Regulatory Decree 2496 of December 23,
2015. The Company reviewedthe changes tothis IFRS against the rules contained in the previous standards and which were deleted by it, and no
significant effects resulted from application of this IFRS.

(c) The Company started to apply this standard as of January 1, 2014. No material effects resulted from application of this IFRS.

(d) InColombia, this standard was enacted by means of Regulatory Decree 2483 of December 28, 2018.

Amendment to IAS40 - Investment property (issued December 2016).

The amendment sets out that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property, when there is evidence of a change in use, which occurs
if the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property. A change in managementintentions regarding the use of a property is not
evidence of a change in use by itself. The listing of situations that evidence a change in use of investment property provided by the standardwas defined
as a non-exhaustive listing of examples.

The amendments are effective for periods commencing on or after January 1, 2018. Earlier application was permitted. The Company did not consider
early application theredf.

Amendment to IFRS 4 - "Insurance Contracts" (issued September 2016).

The amendment allows entities mainly developing insurance activities an option to continue carrying its accounts under current IFRS and delay the
application of IFRS 9 - "Financial Instruments" until the earlier of application of the new insurance standard or for periods commencing on or after Januayy
1,2021. Additionally, the amendment grants all entities having insurance contracts an option to presentin other comprehensive income and not in proft
orloss the changes in the fair value of qualifying designated financial assets.

The amendments are effective for periods commencing on or after January 1, 2018. Thisamendmentis notapplicable to the Company.

Amendment to IFRS 2 - "Share-based Payments” (issued June 2016)

The amendment relates to the fdlowing aspects:

- Addresses the effects of vesting and non-vesting consolidation conditions on the measurement of the fair value of liabilities incurred from cash-settied
share-based payments.

- Classifies share-based payment transactions thatinclude net settlement features fortax purposes.

- Defines the accounting of share-based payments when the transaction changes from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The amendments are effective for periods commencing on or after January 1, 2018. Earlier application was permitted. The Company did not consider
early application thereof.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Ordinary Activities under Contracts with Customers (issued May 2014).

The standard sets outa unique comprehensive accounting model for ordinary revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
guidelines on recognition of ordinary revenueincludedin IAS 18 - Revenue, IAS 11 - Construction Contracts andrelated interpretations, once applicabe.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognizes the revenue from ordinary activities to describe the transfer of goods or services promised to
customers, in exchangefor an amount that reflect the consideration the entity expects to be entitledto in exchange for such goods or services.

An entity recognizes revenue from ordinary activities pursuant to such basic principle, by applying the fdlowing stages:
- Stage 1: Identify customer contract.

- Stage 2: Identify performance obligations under the contract.

- Stage 3: Define the transaction price.

- Stage4: Allocate the transaction price to perfomance obligations under the contract.

- Stage 5: Recognizeordinary revenuewhen (or in as much as) the entity fulfills a performance obligation.

Pursuant to IFRS 15, revenue is recognized upon fuifillment of a performance obligation. The standard also includes guidance on specific aspects related
with the recognitionof revenue, and requires a higher level of disclosure.

The standard is effective for periods commencing on or after January 1, 2018. The Company did not consider early application thereof.

The Company has reviewed the changes in this Standard as compared to what was required by previous standards, which were repealed by the former.
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Some of the aspects that have been reviewed include:

- Regarding the performance obligation, retail sales represent the only performance obligation; consequently, the Company does not expect an effect
on the recognition of revenue, given that like under prior standards revenue is recognized when control overthe assetis transferred to the customey,
generally upon delivery thereof;

- The Company recognizes revenue fromretail sales measured at the fair value of the consideration received or to be received, including returns and
discounts;

- The Company does not grantvolume discounts to its customers;

- The Company generally grants minor repair warranties but does not offer extended warranties under confracts with customers. The amount of such
warranties is non-material;

- Regarding customer loyalty programs, no material changes are expected since liabilities representing points granted that have not been redeemed
or expired are measured at the fair value of points and recognized as defered revenue;

The Company concluded that services provided to customers are delivered over time, taking into consideration that customers receive and consume
benefits simultanecusly. In line with this definition, revenue from such service contracts will continue to be recognized over time;

- Regarding disclosures and presentation requirements, the Company did not change the notes to the financial statements given that there are no
changes related with judgments applied in the definition of the transaction price, or in the disaggregation of the revenue recognized from contracts
with customers, or in the information on revenue foreach reporting segment.

IFRS 9 - "Financial Instruments" (issued July 2014)

IFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the classification, measurementand derecognition of financial assets andliabilities, as well as new requirements
for hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets.

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (issued December 2016)

This interpretation clarifies the accounting of transactions including the receipt or payment of advance consideration in foreign currency.

The interpretation covers foreign currency transactions when an entity recognizes a non-monetary asset or a non-monetary liability arising from payment
or receipt of advance consideration before it recognizes the related asset, expense or revenue. It does not apply when an entity measures the related
asset, expense or revenue on initia recognition at fair value or at the fair value of the consideration received or paid out on a date other than the date of
initial recognition of a non-monetary asset or a non-monetary liability. In addition, it is notrequired to apply this interpretationto income taxes, insurance
contracts or reinsurance contracts.

The amendments are effective for periods commencing on or after January 1, 2018. Earlier application was permitted. The Company did not consider
early application thereof. No material effects resulted from application of this IFRIC.

Note 5.7 Standards adopted earlier during the annual period ended December 31, 2018
During the annual period ended December 31, 2018, the Company did not apply any Standards earlier.
Note 5.8 Standards not yet in force at December 31, 2018, issued prior to January 1,2018

During the annual period ended December 31, 2016 the International Accounting Standards Board IASB issued the following new standards and
amendments:
- IFRS 16 - Leases, to be applied as of January 2019.

During the annual period ended December 31, 2017 the International Accounting Standards Board IASB issued the following new standards and
amendments:

- IFRS 17 -Insurance Contracts, to be applied as of January 2021.

- IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, to be applied as of January 2019.

- Amendment to IAS28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, to be applied as of January 2019.

- Amendment to IFRS 9, to be applied as of January 2019.

- Annualimprovements tolFRS standards cycle 2015-2017, tobe applied as of January 2019.

During the annual period ended December 31, 2018 the International Accounting Standards Board IASB issued the following new standards and
amendments:
- Amendment to IAS 19, Employee Benefits, to be appliedas of January 2019.

IFRS 16 - Leases (issued January 2016)

The standard sets out the principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases, applicable to lessors and lessees. |tdeletes
the dual accounting modelfor lessees, which makes a distinction between finance lease agreements that are carried in the balance sheetand operating
leases for whichrecognition of future lease instalments is not required. Instead, a single model is developed, in the balance sheet, like the current finance
lease.

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 - Leases and relevant interpretations, and is applicable to periods commencing on or after January 1,2019; earlier application
is permitted, ifIFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been applied. Earlier application was not considered.
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IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (issued May 2017)

This IFRS sets out the principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance confracts, and supersedes IFRS 4 - Insurance
Contracts.

This standard requires a company issuing insurance contracts to disclose such contracts in the statement of financia position as the aggregate of: (@)
cash flows from compliance less current estimates of the amounts the company expects tocollect on premiums, as wel as claims, benefits and expense
payouts, including an adjustment relevant to the timeliness and risk attachedto such amounts; and (b) the contract margin associated with the senice
less the expected gain from providing the insurance coverage.

The expected gain from the insurance coverage is recognized in income during the term when the insurance coverage is provided.

Additionally, it requires a company to differentiate the groups of contracts from which it expects to obtain a gain and those fromwhich it expects a loss,
the latter being recognized in income as soon as the company identifies such expected losses.

On each reporting date, companies are requiredto update cash flows from compliance, using current estimates of theamount, timeliness and uncertainty
of cash flows and discount rates.

Regarding measurement, historic cost changes to current value. This allows including committed cash flows (both rights and liabiliies), and updating them
on each reporting date.

No material effects resuted from application of this IFRS.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainties Over Income Tax Treatments (issued June 2017)

This interpretation clarifies how to account for the income tax regarding the effects of uncertainties, pursuantto IAS 12 - Income tax.

The purpose of the interpretation is to limit the diversity of views under which companies recognize and measure a tax liability or a tax asset when tax
treatments are uncertain, given thatthere is no clarity regarding how to apply thetax law to a certain transaction, or whether the tax authority will accept
the tax treatment given by the company.

No material effects resuted from application of this IFRIC.

Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Asscciates and Joint Ventures (issued October 2017)

The amendment clarifies that a company applies IFRS 9 - Financial Insfruments to long-temn interests in an associate or joint venturethat is part of the
net investment in the associate or joint venture.

No material effects resulted from application of this amendment.

Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (issued October 2017)

This amendment allows companies to measure financial assets terminated early with negative compensation at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, provideda condition is met, instead of at fair value through income.

No material effects resuted from application of this amendment.

Annual improvementto IFRS Cycle 20152017 (issued December 2017)

Include the following amendments:

- IFRS 3 -Business Combinations. Thefollowing paragraph is added: "When aparty to a joint arrangement (as defined in IFRS 11 - Joint Arangements)
obtains control of a business thatis a joint operation (as defined by IFRS 11), and it had title to the rights and obligations arising from the liabilties
related with such joint operation immediately before acquisition date, the transaction is a business combination carried outin stages. Consequently,
the acquirer shall apply the requirements relevant to a business combination carried out in stages, including the remeasurement of the interest
previously held in the joint operation as described in section 42. In doing so, the acquirer shall remeasureall its interest previously held in the jont
operation.

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements. Thefollowing paragraph is added: "A party that participatesin a joint operation, but does not have joint contrd, may
obtain joint control of the joint venturewhose activity is a business, as defined by IFRS 3. In these events, the interests previously held in the joint
operation are not remeasured".

- IAS12-Income Tax. Modifies the basis forthe conclusions regarding the consequences of payments for financia instruments classified as equity in
the income tax.
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- 1AS 23 - Loan Costs. Paragraph 14 is amended as follows: "Where funds are part of a general pool, and they are used to obtain a qualifying asset,
such entity will determine the amount of costs eligible for capitaiization by applying a capitalization rate to payouts related to that asset. The
capitalization rate will be the weighted average of loan costs applicable to all loans received by the entity that are outstanding during the period.
Nevertheless, an entity will exclude from this calculation the loan costs applicable to loans specificaly obtained to fund a qualifying asset unti al
activities required to prepare such asset forits foreseen use or sale have been completed. The amount of borrowing costs that an entity is enfiled
to capitalize during the period shall notexceed total loan costs incurred during the same period.

No material effects resuted from application of these improvements.

Note 6. Business combinations

Note 6.1. Business combinations carried out during the annual period ended December 31,2019
The following business combinations were carried out duringthe annual period ended December 31, 2019:
Note 6.1.1. Ardal S.A. business combination

Seeking to expand operations in Uruguay, on January 3, 2019 subsidiary Mercados Devoto S.A. acquired 100% of the shares of Ardal S.A., a company
engaged in the general products self-service business.

Acquisition price on the date of acquisitionamounted to $1,742 and was fuly allocated to goodwill.

Goodwill was fully allocated to the Uruguay segment and is attributable to the synergies expected from the integration of the operation of stores acquired
in this country.

Expenses associated with acquisition of this company amourted to $129 and relate to professional fees.
The consolidation of Ardal S.A. from the date of acquisition resulted in revenue from ordinary activities in amount of $4,984.

The goodwill has shownthe following variations from the time of business acquisitionto the balance carried at December 31,2019:

Goodwill from the acquisitions at January 3,2019 1,742
Effect of exchange differences (221)
Goodwill at December 31, 2019 (Note 16) 1,521

Note 6.2. Business combinations completed during the annual period ended December 31, 2019

The business combination with Ardal S.A., mentioned in the preceding paragraph, was competed during the annual periodended December 31, 2019.
Note 6.3. Business combinations carried out and completed during the year ended December 31,2018

The following business combinations were carried out and completed during the annual periodended December 31, 2018;

Note 6.3.1. Tipsel S.A. business combination

Seeking to expand operations in Uruguay, on June 20, 2018 subsidiary Mercados DevotoS.A. acquired 100% of the shares of Tipsel S.A., a company
engaged in the food self-service business.

Acquisition price on the date of acquisitionamounted to $586and was fully allocated to goodwill.

Goodwill was fully allocated to the Uruguay segment and is attributable to the synermgies expected from the integration of the operation of stores acquired
in this country.

Expenses associated with the acquisition of this company were not material.
The consolidation of Tipsel S.A. from the date of acquisitionresulted in revenue from ordinary activities in amount of $77 and did not generate any gains.

The goodwill has shownthe following variations from the time of business acquisitionto the balance carried at December 31,2019:

Goodwill from the acquisitions at June 20, 2018 584
Effect of exchange differences (31)
Goodwill at December 31, 2019 (Note 16) 553

39



Note 6.3.2. Tedocan S.A. business combination

Seeking to expand operations in Uruguay, on July 2, 2018 subsidiary Mercados Devoto S.A. acquired 100% of the shares of Tedocan S.A., a company
engaged in the food self-service business.

Acquisition price on the date of acquisitionamounted to $1,055 and was fully allocated to goodwill.

Goodwill was fully allocated to the Uruguay segment and is attributable to the synergies expectedfrom the integration of the operation of stores acquired
in this country.

Expenses associated with the acquisition of this company were not material.
The consolidation of Tedocan S.A. from the date of acquisition resulted in revenue from ordinary activities in amount of $139 and a loss of $4.

The goodwill has shownthe following variations from the time of business acquisitionto the balance carried at December 31,2019:

Goodwill from the acquisition at July 2,2018 1,258
Effect of exchange differences (74)
Goodwill at December 31, 2019 (Note 16) 1,184

Note 6.4. Business combinations carried out during the year ended December 31, 2018
The following business combinations were cartied out duringthe year ended December 31, 2018:
Note 6.4.1. Cheftime business combination

On November 12, 2018, Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo - CBD entered a strategic association with Cheftime to allocate and sell gastronomic
packages online. The agreement entitles Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo - DBC to acquire control over Cheftime. Companhia Brasileira de
Distribuigao - CBD paid $680 for the purchase option to acquire 51% of interests for R$1; the purchase option can be exercised within 18 months,
renewable for a like period to the discretion of the subsidiary orimperativeif certain goals are met. In addition to that amount, Companhia Brasilera de
Distribuigao - CBD disbursed $340 to Cheftimeas a loan convertible into one share of stock if the option is exercised.

Exercising the purchase option is a current enforceable right of Companhia Brasileira de Disfribuicdo -CBD and requires vesting. The exercise of the
option is dependent upon acontingent consideration of meeting the goals set 18 months after execution of the agreement, atthelatest. Such consideration
under the contract is valued in therange of R$20 - R$30. Company estimation is R$20.

Pursuant to the agreement, Companhia Brasileirade Distribui¢do - CBD is entitled to appoint 3 of 5 members of the Board; making decisions regarding
certain important administration issues requires 75% of voting rights.

The price of acquisition as well as the fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of the business acquired at acquisition date and at the closing of the
annual period ended December 31,2018 are as follows:

Temporary fair

Adjustments . .
values at during Final fairvalues
November 12, at November 12,
2018 measul_'ement 2018
period
Property, plant and equipment 587 - 587
Net assets and liabilities measured at fair value 587 - 587
Goodwill arising from the operation amounts to:
Temporary fair Adiustments
values at jduring Final fairvalues
Novezr(r;:):r 12, measur'ement at Novze(ﬂger 12,
period
Consideration transferred 17,781 - 17,781
Less fair value of identifiable net assets (587) - (587)
Goodwill from the acquisition 17,194 - 17,194

Goodwill was fully allocated to the Brazil segment and is attributable to the synergies expected from the integration of the operations in this country.

No expenses associated with the acquisition of this company were incurred.
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Note 6.4.2 James Delivery business combination

On December 26, 2018, Companhia Brasileira de Disfribuicio - CBD executed a stock purchase-sale agreement with James Delivery to acquire 100% of
the shares of stock. Consideration amountsto $16,775 and wil be paid in2019. James Delivery offers a multi-service product order and delivery platfom.

The price of acquisition as well as the fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of the business acquired at acquisition date and at the closing of the
annual period ended December 31,2018 are as follows:

Temporary fair

values at Ad{justmeMs Final fairvalues
December 26, uring at December 26,
2018 measurement 2018
period
Property, plant and equipment 168 - 168
Net assets and liabilities measured at fair value 168 - 168
Goodwill arising from the operation amounts to:
Temporary fair Adiustments
values at {iuring Final fairvalues
Decezrgl;ser 26, measufement at Deczeorr11t8)er 26,
period
Consideration transferred 16,775 - 16,775
Less fair value of identifiable net assets (168) - (168)
Goodwill from the acquisition 16,607 - 16,607

Goodwill was fully allocated to the Brazil segment and is attributable to the synergies expected from the integration of the operations in this country.
No expenses associated with the acquisition of this company were incurred.
Note 7. Cashand cash equivalents

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Cash at hand and in banks 2,460,847 2,605,960
Fiduciary rights (1) 82,199 62,788
Term deposit certificates (2) 16,979 3,279,648
Other cash equivalents (3) 2,649 25,284
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,562,674 5,973,680
(1) Thebalance includes:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Fiducolombia S.A. 36,637 50,785
Fondo de Inversion Colectiva Abierta Occirenta 20,215 5,225
Corredores DaviviendaS.A. 10,952 6,545
Fiduciaria Bogota S.A. 10,036 87
BBVA Asset S.A. 4,297 49
Credicorp Capital 62 97
Total fiduciary rights 82,199 62,788

(2) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiaries CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD, SégisorS.A. and Wilkes Partpagdes S.A. were
not included in the consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2019, since these subsidiaries were sold on November 27,2019. At September
30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified to non-current assets held for trading. At December 31,2018 included $3,257,339 representing fixed-
term deposits of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo— CBD, maturing in less than 90 days as of negotiation date yielding 5.51% EAR.
equivalent to 85.78% of the IDC - Interbanking Deposit Certificate. It also included $21,602 fixed term deposits of subsidiaries Ségisor SA and
Wilkes Partipagdes S.A

(3) The balance represents Monetary Regulation Drafts issued by the Central Bank of Uruguay and subscribed by subsidiaries Grupo Disco del Urnuguay
S.A. and Devoto Hermanos S.A. maturing in less than three months.
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At December 31, 2019 the Parent and its subsidiaries recognized yields from cash at hand and in banks and cash equivalents in amount of $23,770
(December 31, 2018 - $14,871), which were carried as financial revenue as detailed in Note 35. The effective interestrate of yields generated by cash at
hand and in banks and by cash equivaents at December 31, 2019 s 2.36% E.AR.

At December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, cash and cash equivalents were not restricted or levied in any way as to limit availability thereof.

Note 8. Trade receivables and other accounts receivable

The balance of trade receivables and other accounts receivable is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (1)
Trade accounts receivable (Note 8.1) (2) 279,130 657,941
Other accounts receivable (Note 8.2) (1) (2) 135,101 477,610
Total trade receivables and other accounts receivable 414,231 1,135,551
Current 379,921 1,000,267
Non-current 34,310 135,284

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. Theadjustment to this accountreflects the derecognition of the balancereceivable of subsidiaries Grupo Disco del
Uruguay S.A., Mercados Devoto S.A. and Devoto Hermanos S.A. for the commission to gain lease agreements, which should be considered when
measuring the use right. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(2) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiaries CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD, SégisorS.A. and Wilkes Partpagdes S.A. were
not included in the consolidated financial statements at December 31,2019, since these subsidiaries were sold on November 27,2019. At September
30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified to non-current assets held for trading.

Note 8.1. Trade accounts receivable

The balance of trade receivablesis as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Trade accounts (1) 225,112 466,563
Rentals and dealers 54,282 94,346
Employee funds and lending 11,076 37,963
Sale of real-estate project inventories (2) 10,124 -
Accounts receivable from suppliers (3) - 84,893
Other trade receivables 467 -
Impairment of receivables (Note 8.3) (21,931) (25,824)
Trade accounts receivable 279,130 657,941

(1) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasilera de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current assets held for tradng. At December 31, 2018 included trade receivables from customers of Companhia Brasilera de Distribuicgo -
CBD, relevantto saes under paymentterms other than financing (direct credit to consumer with intervention DCCI). It additionally included accounts
receivable of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo - CBD from financial entities or banks, arising from sales on credit cards "Administradoras de
cartdes de crédito", where Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD receives cash in as much as customers pay to the bank the instaments
agreed upon.

(2) The balance receivablerepresents the sale of the Copacabana real-estate project.

(3) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financia
statements at December 31, 2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current assets held for trading. At December 31,2018 the balance represented accounts receivable from suppliers of CompanhiaBrasileia
de Distribuigdo — CBD relevant to the suppliers' contribution arising from purchase volume, price protection and agreements defining a supplie’s
participation in advertising-related expenses.
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Note 8.2. Otheraccounts receivable

The balance of other accounts receivable is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (1)
Employee funds and lending 66,884 77,070
Business agreements 32,017 30,695
Taxes receivable 5,568 627
Money remittances 4,201 6,938
Money transfer services 1,991 572
Tax claims 1,360 1,360
Sale of fixed assets, intangible assets and other assets 720 42,961
Accounts receivable frominsurance companies (2) (3) - 172,392
Accounts receivable fromthe sale of companies (2) (4) - 68,792
Other accounts receivable (1) 22,360 89,405
Impairment loss (2) - (13,202)
Total otheraccounts receivable 135,101 477,610

(1)

The figures differ from those shown at December31, 2018 because of the adjustments arising from the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment tothis account reflects the derecognition of the balance receivable of subsidiaries Grupo Disco del
Uruguay S.A., Mercados Devoto S.A. and Devoto Hermanos S.A. for the commission to gain lease agreements, which should be considered when
measuring the use right. Differences are detailed in Note 52. Decrease is due to that mentioned in (2) below.

The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financia
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current assets held for trading.

At December 31, 2018 represented (a) an account receivable recorded by subsidiary CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD arising from the
willingness of the insurance company to pay for the claim filed regarding the casualty occured on December 27, 2017 at the refrigerated products
distribution center located in the municipality of Osasco in amount of $145,943 and (b) other accounts receivable from minor accidents recorded by
subsidiary Companhia Brasileirade Distribuigio - CBD in amount of $26,449. Decreaseis due to that mentioned in (2) above.

At December 31, 2018the balance represented accounts receivable arising from the exercise of the purchase option on certain fuel stations sod by
subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicao - CBD. The amount of the account receivable is updated from a monetary point of view since the
execution of the agreement on May 28, 2012, by 110% of the IDC (interbanking deposit certificate), with repayment foreseen in 240 monthly
instaiments. Decreaseis due to that mentioned in (2) above.

Note 8.3. Trade receivables and other accounts receivable classified as current and non-current

The balance of trade receivables and other accounts receivable classified as currentand non-currentis as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Trade accounts receivable 225,112 463,471
Rentals and dealers 54,282 94,346
Employee funds and lending 58,636 94,395
Business agreements 32,017 30,695
Taxes receivable 5,568 627
Money remittances 4,201 6,938
Money transfer services 1,991 572
Tax claims 1,360 1,360
Sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and otherassets 720 42,961
Accounts receivable frominsurance companies - 172,392
Accounts receivable from suppliers - 84,893
Other 17,965 46,643
Impairment of receivables (1) (21,931) (39,026)
Total current 379,921 1,000,267
Employee funds and lending 19,325 20,639
Accounts receivable fromthe sale of companies - 68,791
Trade accounts receivable - 3,092
Other 14,985 42,762
Total non-current 34,310 135,284
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(1) The impairmentof receivables is recognized as expense in periodresuts. However, evenif impaired, the Parent and its subsidiaries are of the opinion
that these balances are recoverable, given the extensive credit risk analysis on customers, including creditratings when they are available in credt
databases recognized in the market. During the annual period ended December 31, 2019 the net effect of the impaiment of receivables in the

statement of income represents revenue in amount of $116,821 ($128,411 revenue for the period ended December 31,2018).

The development of the impairment of receivables during the period was as follows:

Balance at December 31,2018 39,026

Recognized impaiment loss 267,682

Receivables written-off (8,476)

Reversal of impairmentloss (276,027)

Reclassifications to non-currentassets held fortrading 1,731

Effect of exchange difference from translation into reporting currency (2,005)

Balance at December 31,2019 21,931
Note 8.4. Trade receivables and other accounts receivable by age
The aging of trade receivables and other receivables, irrespective of impaiment, is as folows:

Overdue
Period Total Notdue < 30days 31-60days 61-90days > 90 days
December 31,2019 436,162 289,127 76,307 17,446 3,511 49,771
December 31, 2018 1,174,608 952,955 116,864 58,373 7,621 38,795
Note 9. Prepaid expenses
The balance of prepaid expensesis:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (1)

Insurance (2) (3) 15,680 27,141
Maintenance 14,812 9,750
Leases (1) (2) 14,430 39,905
Advertising (2) 2,552 25,737
Taxes 71 243
Bank fees (2) - 32,865
Services (2) - 9,890
Licenses in use (2) - 1,797
Other advance payments (2) 5,437 11,312
Total prepaid expenses 52,982 158,640
Current 43,351 143,889
Non-current 9,631 14,751

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to this accountreflects the derecognition of advance payment by subsidiary CompanhiaBrasilera
de Distribuicao - CBD for the commission to gain lease agreements, which should be taken into consideration when measuring the use right.
Differences are detailedin Note 52.

(2) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiaries CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD, SégisorS.A. and Wilkes Partipagdes S.A. were
not included in the consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2019, since these subsidiaries were sold on November 27, 2019. At September
30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified to non-current assets held for trading.

(3) Mainly represents multi-risk insurance policy, $9,425 (December31, 2018 - $8,873); third-party liability insurance, $949 (December31, 2018- $774);

life insurance, $621 (December31, 2018 - $653); transportinsurance, $574 (December 31,2018 - $412) and other insurance, $948 (December 31,
2018 - $814).
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Note 10. Accounts receivable and Other non-financial assets with related parties

The balance of accounts receivable from related parties and the balance of other non-financial assets associated withrelated parties is made as folows:

Joint ventures (1) 44,534 58,812
Grupo Casino companies (2) 10,123 20,643

Accounts receivable Other non-financial assets

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

15,000 -

Controlling entity (3) 387 3,907 - -

Associates (4) - 76,674
Total 55,044

Current 55,044 -
Non-current - 28,316 15,000 -

(1)

160,036 15,000 -

131,720

The balance of accounts receivable is made as follows:

- Involvementin a corporate collaboration agreement $13,523 (December31, 2018 - $7,019) and reimbursement of shared expenses, collection
of coupons and other items $8,778 (December31, 2018 - $36,579) with Compaiiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A.

- Redemption of points in amount of $21,596 (December 31, 2018 - $14,804) and other services in amount of $637 (December 31,2018 - $410)
with Puntos Colombia S.A.S.

The balance of other non-financial assets relates to a payment made to Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. for the subscription of shares. Gven
that at December 31, 2019 Compafia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. had not receivedauthorization from the Colombian Financial Superintendence
to register a capital increase, theamountdisbursedwas not recognized as an investmentin such company.

Mainly relates to the balance receivable (a) for expatriate payments from Casino International in amount of $4,677 (December 31, 2018 - $5,057),
from Distribution Casino France in amount of $101, (December 31, 2018 - $82) and from Casino Services in amount of $7 (December 31, 2018 -
$12,487); (b) for energy efficiency services received from Greenyellow Energia de Colombia S.A.S. in amount of $34 (December 31, 2018 - $527),
(c) for suppliers achievements with International Retal and Trade Servicesin amount of $1,399 (December 31, 2018 - $1,271) and (d) for sewices
provided under the Latin America strategic direction service agreement entered with Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. (*) in amount of $362
(December 31, 2018 - $-).

At December 31, 2019 represented the balance of personnelexpenses receivable from Companhia Brasileirade Distribuigdo - CBD (*). At December
31, 2018 represented the balance receivable arising from the Latin America strategic direction service agreement entered with Casino Guichard-
Perrachon S.A. (*) and the charges arising from the cost sharing agreement and bonuses receivable.

At December 31, 2018, the balance mainly relates to balances with Financiera Itai CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda., mostly charges arising
from trade agreements forthe promotion and sale of financial services offered by Financiera Itai CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda. at the stores
of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicio — CBD. The decrease is because the assets of subsidiaries Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigio — CBD,
Ségisor S.A. and Wilkes Partipagdes S.A. were notincluded in the consolidated financial statements at December 31,2019, since these subsidiaries
were sold on November27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified to non-current assets held for trading.

(*) At December 31,2019, and asresult of the takeover bid mentioned in Note 1, (@) CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuicao - CBD ceased as a subsidary
to become the Company's contraling entity, (b) Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. ceased as the controling entity to become a company of the Casino

Group.
Note 11. Inventories,netand Cost of sales
Note 11.1. Inventories, net

The net balance of net inventories is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Inventories available fortrading (1) 1,758,095 6,420,659
Inventories in transit (1) 50,331 181,338
Materials, small spares, accessories and consumable packaging (1). 8,095 23,846
Inventories of property under construction (2) 87,800 109,823
Raw materials 11,958 3,278
Production in process 779 610
Inventory impairment (3) (16,398) (19,158)
Total inventories 1,900,660 6,720,396

(1) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasilera de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified

to non-current assets held for trading.
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(2) Represents the Montevideoreal estate project, owned by the Parent, in amount of $87,800 (December 31, 2018 - $96,483). For 2018 it also included
the Copacabana real estate project in amount of $8,978, owned by the Parent, which was sold in 2019, and the Figue real estate project, owned by
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD in amount of $4,362. At December31, 2019 the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileirade Distribuigio
— CBD were not included in the consolidated financial statements since this subsidiary was soldon November27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the
balances had been reclassified to non-currentassets held fortrading.

(3) The development ofthe provisionduring the period reported is as follows:

Balance at December 31,2018 19,158
Reversal of impairment provisions (Note 11.2) (4,906)
Impairment loss recognized during the period (Note 11.2) 3,690
(Reclassification) to non-cument assets held for trading (678)
Effect of exchange difference from translation into reporting currency (866)
Balance at December 31,2019 16,398

At December 31, 2019and at December 31,2018 there are no restrictions or liens on the inventories that limit tradabiity or realization thereof, except for
the Montevideo real estate project, regarding which at December 31, 2019 there is a purchase-sale promise under the following terms: delivery of 24.6%
in 2020, 14.4% in 2021 and 52% in 2022. 9% was sold during2019.

Further, inventories are properly insured againstall risks.

Pursuant to Parent's and its subsidiaries' policies, inventories are valued at costor at net realzable value (fair valueless selling costs), whicheveris less.
Adjustments to this valuationare included in the costs of sales forthe period.

Note 11.2. Cost of sales
The following is the information related with the cost of sales, impairment and reversals ofimpairmentrecognized in inventories:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 (1)
Cost of goods sold(1) (2) (3) 11,341,227 10,992,419
(Reversal) impairmentloss, net (4) (5) (2,250) (2,840)
Total cost of sales 11,338,977 10,989,579

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to this cost of goods sold account relates to the derecognition of fixed payments under lease

agreements and the recognition of depreciation of use rights. Differences are detailed in Note 52.
(2) AtDecember 31, 2019 includes $61,746 of depreciation and amortization cost (December 31, 2018 - $53,244).

(3) Asof January 1, 2019, based on reviews to Parent operations, certain items related with food preparation operating processes that until December
31, 2018 were shown as administration expenses and employee benefit expenses, are carried under the cost of goods sold. Such items in amount
of $177.031 were reclassified in the financial statements at December 31, 2018 only for comparison to the financial statements at December 31,
2019. Such reclassification had no material effects on the gross profit.

(4) The circumstances thatgave rise to thereversal of impairment mainly relate to logistic adaptations and optimization of the goods storage space at
the distribution center, delimiting the exposure of goods at the warehouses. Also, they relate to a change in the management of physical counts
(which are now managed through generalinventories instead of revalvinginventories), increase in post-season critical controls, assessment of critical
merchandise and supplementary activities.

(5) Does not include $1,034 relevant tothe impairment of inventories of companies held for trading. Such effect is shown under netgains for the period
from discontinued operations.
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Note 12. Other financial assets

The balance of other financial assets is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Financial assets measured at amortized cost (2) 41,392 40,899

Financial assets atfair valuethrough other comprehensive income (3) 24,914 13,443

Derivative financialinstruments (4) 23,357 113,541

Financial assets measured at fairvalue through income (1) (5) 1,427 652,100

Derivative financialinstruments designatedas hedge instruments (1) (6) 476 75,296

Total otherfinancial assets 91,566 895,279

Current 43,237 141,214

Non-current 48,329 754,065

(1) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasilera de Distribuicdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current assets held for trading.

(2) Financial assets measured at amortized cost mainly relate to investments in bonds issued by Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. which the
Parent has the intention and capability of holding until maturity to obtain contractual cash flows. Such investments are part of the Tarjeta Exio
corporate collaboration agreement. At December 31, 2019 the nomina value amounts to $39,500 (December 31, 2018 - $39,500) and maturities go
from 5 to 8 years yielding CPI +6%.

(3) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are equity investments not held for trading. The detail of these
investments is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Investment in bonds 14,521 13,183
CnovaN.V. (a) 9,222 -
Fideicomiso El Tesoro stages 4A and 4C 448 923 -
Associated Grocers of Florida, Inc. 113 113
Central de Abastos del Caribe S.A 71 71
La Promotora S.A. 50 50
Sociedad de Acueducto, Alcantarillado y Aseo de Barranquilla S.A.E.S.P. 14 14
Carnes y Derivados de Occidente S.AS. - 12
Total 24,914 13,443
(@) Asaresult of the sale of the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD on November 27, 2019, this investment ceased
as an associate to become a financial asset (Note 18).

(4) Derivative financial instruments reflect the fair value of forward and swap contracts to hedge thefluctuation in the exchange rates and interest rates
of liabilities in foreign currency. The fair values of these instruments are estimated based on valuation models commonly applied by market
participants who use variables other than prices quoted, directly or indirectly perceptible for assets or liabilities. In the statement of financial position,
the Parent measures the derivative financial instruments (forwardand swap) at fair value, on each accounting closingdate.

The detail of maturities of these instruments at December 31, 2019 is as follows:
Less than 1 From3to 6 From 6 to 12 months More than 12
month From 1to 3 months months months Total
Forward 3,409 - 5,730 2,775 - 11,914
Swap - (1,353) 3,753 9,043 - 11,443
3,409 (1,353) 9,483 11,818 - 23,357
The detail of maturities of these instruments at December 31, 2018 is as follows:
Less than 1 From3to 6 From 6 to 12 months More than 12
month From 1to 3 months months months Total
Forward 21,145 13,060 4,470 - - 38,675
Swap - - 22,423 24,409 28,034 74,866
21,145 13,060 26,893 24,409 28,034 113,541
(5) At December 31, 2019 financial assets measured at fair value through income represent investments of the Parent in equity securities of Fondo

Valorar Futuro to manageliquidity in amount of $1,295, whichare measured at fair value based on the Fondo's unitvalue. Changes in fair value ae
recognized as revenue or expense in the statement of income. Italso includes legal depositsin amount of $132 relevant to subsidiary Libertad S.A
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The balance at December 31,2018 relatedto:

(a) Balances in certain bank accounts regarding legal and tax deposits not available to subsidiary Companhia Brasileriade Distribuicao - CBD given
that they are restricted to be used for payments under some legal proceedings filed againstit. The balance was monthly updated using an
interest rate, and the variation is recognized as revenue or expense in the statement of income.

Deposit for labor legal proceedings 388,276
Deposit for tax legal proceedings 198,831
Deposit for regulatory legal proceedings 35,228
Deposit for civil legal proceedings 28,405
Total 650,740

(b) Legal deposits in amount of $159 relevant to subsidiary Libertad S.A.

(c) Investments of the Parentin equity securities of Fondo Valorar Futuro to manage liquidity in amount of $1,201, which aremeasured at fair value
based on the Fondo's unitvalue. Changes in fair value are recognized as revenue or expense in the statement of income.

At December 31, 2019 derivative instruments designated as hedge instrument reflect swap transactions carried out by the Parent under contracts
executed with financial entities, whose purpose is the exchange, at specffic intervals, of the difference between the amounts of fixed and variable
interest rates calculated in relation with an agreed-upon nominal principal amount, which turns variable rates into fixed rates and cash flows then may
be determined in local currency. The fair values of these instruments are determined based on valuation models commonly used by market
participants.

The balance relates to the following transactions:

Range of rates for
Nature of Range of rates for hedging
riskinsured Hedged item hedged item instruments Fair value
Swap Interest rate Financial liabilities Libor USD 1M +2.22% 9.06% 476

The detail of maturities of these hedging instruments at December 31,2019 is as follbows:

Less than 1 From1 to 3 months From3to 6 From 6 to 12 months More than 12 Total
month months months
Swap - - - - 476 476

At December 31, 2018 derivative financial instruments designated as hedge instruments referto:

(a) Derivatives designated as hedge instruments that reflect the fair value of swap confracts for 100% of liabilities denominated in US Dollars at a
fixed interest rate, of CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD, exception made of DCCI (Direct consumer credit through an intermediary).
The fair value is measured by exchanging such instruments at a floating IDC rate. The term of these contracts equals that of the debt, and they
hedge both principal and interests. The average annual IDC rate at December31, 2018 was 6.42%. The fair values of these instuments are
determined based on valuation models commonly used by market participants.

The detail of maturities of these instruments is as follows:

Lessthan1 From1to3 From3to6 From6to12 Morethan12
Derivative month months months months months Total

December 31, 2018 Swap - - 839 37,506 36,471 74,816

(b) Derivative instruments designated as hedge instrument reflect swap transactions carried out by the Parent under contracts executed with
financial entities, whose purpose is the exchange, at specificintervals, of the difference between the amounts of fixedand variable interest rates
calculated in relation with an agreed-upon nominal principal amount, which turns variable rates into fixed rates and cash flows then may be
determined in local currency. The fair vaues of these instruments are determined based on valuation models commonly used by market
participants.

The balance relates to the following transactions:

Range of rates for
Nature of Range of rates for hedging
riskinsured Hedged item hedged item instruments Fair value
Swap Interest rate Financial liabilities IBR 3M 4.4%-6.0% 480
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The detail of maturities of these hedging instruments at December 31,2018 is as follows:

Less than 1 From3to 6 From 6 to 12 months More than 12
month From 1 to 3 months months months Total
Swap - - - 480 480
The balance of other financial assets classified as currentand non-cument is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Derivative financialinstuments 23,357 85,507
Financial assets measured at fairvalue through other comprehensive income 14,521 12,735
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 5,227 4,468
Financial assets measured at fairvalue through income 132 159
Derivative financialinstuments designated as hedge instruments - 38,345
Total current 43,237 141,214
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 36,165 36,431
Financial assets measured at fairvalue through other comprehensive income 10,393 708
Financial assets measured at fairvalue through income 1,295 651,941
Derivative financialinstuments designatedas hedge instruments 476 36,951
Derivative financialinstuments - 28,034
Total non-current 48,329 754,065

At December 31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018 there are norestrictions or liens on other financia assets that restrict the tradahility or realization theredf,

exception made of (a) the investment in bonds of Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A., which were issued as part of the business collaboration

agreement on Tarjeta Exito, and (b) legal deposits relevant tosubsidiary Libertad S.A.

At December31,2019, in addition tothe exceptions mentioned in the preceding paragraph, legal and tax deposits of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicao
- CBD, whose use was devoted for the payment of certain proceedings filed againstit, also had restrictions that limited tradability or realization thereof.

None of the assets was impaired at December31, 2019 and December 31,2018.
Note 13. Property, plantand equipment, net

The net balance of property, plant and equipmentis as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (1)
Land 1,013,078 2,406,067
Buildings (1) 1,901,719 4,131,398
Machinery and equipment 951,405 2,893,704
Furniture and fixtures 604,591 1,659,721
Assets under construction 82,196 213,271
Premises 113,362 845,833
Improvements to third party properties 553,014 5,452,094
Vehicles 19,006 21,631
Computers 224,545 813,358
Other property, plantand equipment 16,050 183,281
Total property, plant and equipment 5,478,966 18,620,358
Accumulated depreciation (1) (1,629,026) (6,299,910)
Impairment loss (4,848) (2,933)
Total net property, plant and equipment (2) 3,845,092 12,317,515

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1,2019. The adjustment arises from the reclassification to userights of certain assets and accumulated depreciation theredf,
previously properly recognized as property, plant and equipmentand related to finance leases. Differences are detaied in Note 52.

(2) The decrease is since the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo —CBD were notincluded in the consolidated financial statements
at December 31, 2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified to no

current assets held for trading.
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The development of the cost of property, plant and equipment, and depreciation thereof, during the reporting period is as follows:

Cost

Balance at December 31,2018

Additions

Loan costs

Increase (decrease) from movements between
property, plantand equipment accounts

Increase (decrease) from transfers from
(to) other balance sheet accounts

(Decrease) from transfers (to) investment property
investment activities

(Disposal) of property, plantand equipment

(Derecognition) of property, plantand equipment

(Reclassification) of non-current assets held for
trading

Effect of exchange differences from translationinto
reporting currency

Other changes

Net monetary position result

Balance at December 31,2019

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at December 31,2018

Depreciation expense/cost

Increase (decrease) from transfers from
(to) other balance sheetaccounts

Increase (decrease) from movements between
property, plantand equipment accounts

(Disposal) of property, plantand equipment

Derecognition of depreciation

(Reclassification) of non-current assets held for
trading

Effect of exchange differences from translationinto
reporting currency

Other changes

Net monetary position result

Balance at December 31,2019

Impairment

Balance at December 31,2018

Impairmentloss

Effect of exchange differences from translationinto
reporting currency

Balance at December 31,2019

Land

2,406,067
61,358

(1313)

(8,121)

(1406972
(88,493)
(77)
50,629
1,013,078

1,280

1,280

Buildings

4,131,398
159,633
5,126

14,345
32,845
(16.466)
9417
(602)
(2,364 506)
(123,069)
(2,733)

56,331
1,901,719

974,100
83,986

1
(2,767)
(66)
(118)
(712,848)
(32,803)
(1,118)

18,568
326,935

1,007

1,007

Machinery
and
equipment
2,893,704
209,358

577

(22,107)
72,659

(24.471)
(22,958)

(2,127 865)
(35,050)

7,558
951,405

1,367,120
204,312

(46)

(11,524)
(26,777)
(16,498)

(1,056,664)

(22,064)
6,000
443,859

Furniture
and
fixtures

1,659,721
106,149
369

18,389

34,865

(19,670)
(12,387)

(1,158,383)

(31,788)
(149)
7475

604,591

894,486
115,779

129

9,995
(12,645)
(9,295)

(630,347)

(23,083)
(83)
5,698
350,634

Assets under
construction

213,271
544 406

7,088
(33,204)

(379,161)

(11490)

(259,057)
(3,743)

4,086
82,196

Premises
845,833
52,089
234
3,836

5,126

(6,974)
(330)

(765,312)
(21,140)

113,362

367,573
44119

118
(134)
(2,007)
(267)
(337,681)

(10,597)

61,124

Improvements
to third party
properties

5,452,094
369,752
5,263
6,345

163,811

(45,257)
(9,655)

(5,321,075)

(65,539)
(2,725)

553,014

1,940,685
235,819

(104)
(4,992)
(6,262)
(5,750)

(1,873,691)

(25,362)

260,343

2,933

(372)
2,561

Vehicles

21,631
774

4,045

435

(2,928)
(635)

(4,179)
(2,161
251

1,773
19,006

15,453
2,183

12
1832
(2,234)
(588)
(3,950)
(1,442)

1,702
12,968

Other property,
plant and

Computers equipment Total
813,358 183,281 18,620,358
64,777 19,951 1,588,247
288 - 18,945
322 - (8,029)
8,510 (987) (63,210)
- - (16,466)
(21,219) (2,001) (132,714)
(13,022) - (59,589)
(617,918) (182,933)  (14,208,200)
(19,217) (1,261) (391,461)
(70) - (5,503)
8,736 - 136,588
224,545 16,050 5,478,966
619,894 120,599 6,299,910
67,654 15,949 769,801
(90) (3) 17
(439) - (8,029)
(13,926) (1,646) (65,563)
(13,042) - (45,558)
(483,863) (130,004) (5,229,048)
(15,103) (886) (131,340)
9 - (1,192)
8,060 - 40,028
169,154 4,009 1,629,026
; - 2,933
- - 2,287
- - (372)
- - 4,848

The rate used to determine the amount of loan costs capitalized was 6.323%, calculated with the weighted average of loan costs applicable to borrowings, outstanding at the closing of December 31,2019.
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Assets under construction are represented by those assets not ready for their intended use as expected by the Parent's and its subsidiaries' management,
and on which costs directly attributable to the construction process continue to be capitalized.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment under finance lease are as fallows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Other property, plantand equipment 11,755 12,543
Furniture and fixtures (1) - 2,536
Machinery and equipment (1) - 2,456
Computers (1) - 2,362
Premises (1) - 277
Total property, plant and equipment 11,755 20,174

(1) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current assets held for trading.

The cost of property, plantand equipmentdoes not include the balance of estimated dismantlingand similar costs, since the assessment and analysis
made by the Parent and its subsidiaries defined that there are no contractual or legal obligations requiring such estimationat the time of acquisition.

At December 31, 2018, Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD carried assets delivered as collateral to third parties to secure lawsuits in amount of
$715,467.

Except for the above, at December 31,2019 andat December 31, 2018 no restrictions or liens had beenimposedon items of property, plantand equipment
that limit realization or tradability thereof, and there are no commitments to acquire, buildor develop property, plantand equipment.

During the annual periods ended December31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, no compensations were received fordamaged assets, and no payment
acceptances by insurance companies to compensate fordamagedassets were recognized.

At December 31, 2019 subsidiaries Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas and Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo showedimpairmentlosses on property,
plant and equipment in amount of $394 (land $106 and buildings $288), and $1,893 (land $1,174 and buildings $719), respectively. At December 31,
2018, Uruguayan subsidiary Mercados Devato S.A. recognizedimpairment of property, plant and equipment in amount of $2,933. Information about the
methodology applied to test for impairmentis disclosed in Note 39.

Note 14. Investment property, net

The Parent's and its subsidiaries' investment properties are business premises and plots of land held to generate income from operating lease activiies
or future appreciation of the price thereof.

The net balance of investment properties is made as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Land 313,899 327,844
Buildings 1,470,745 1,443,356
Construction in progress 8,223 7,253
Total cost of investment property 1,792,867 1,778,453
Accumulated depreciation (163,183) (144,828)
Impairment loss (3,464) -
Total investment property, net(1) 1,626,220 1,633,625

(1) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financidl
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current assets held for trading.
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The development of the cost of investment property and depreciation thereof, duringthe reporting period, is as follows:

Cost

Balance at December 31,2018

Additions

(Reclassification) of non-current assets held for trading

Increase arising from transfers from property, plant and equipment accounts
Disposals

Effect of exchange differences on translation into reporting currency

Net monetary position result

Balance at December 31,2019

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at December 31,2018

Depreciation expense

(Reclassification) of non-cument assets held for trading

Effect of exchange differences on translation into reporting currency
Net monetary position result

Balance at December 31,2019

Impairment loss

Balance at December 31,2018
Impairment loss
Balance at December 31,2019

Land

327,844
1,737
(5,316)
(395)
(17,288)
7,317
313,899

Buildings

144,828
31,138
(8,189)

(19,462)
14,868

163,183

Land

1,159
1,159

Constructions
Buildings  in progress

1,443,356
50,082
(21,734)
16,466
(1,952)
(96,324)
80,851
1,470,745

Building
Total
s

2,305 3,464
2,305 3,464

7,253
1,110
(34)

(246)
140
8,223

Total

1,778,453
52,929
(27,084)
16,466
(2,347)
(113,858)
88,308
1,792,867

At December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 there are no limitations or liens imposed on investment property that restrict realization or tradabiity

thereof.

At December 31,2019 and at December 31, 2018 the Parentand its subsidiaries are not committed toacquire, build or develop investment property or to
repair, maintain or improve such property, otherthan existing constructions. Neither there are compensations from third parties arising from the damage

orloss of investment property.

At December 31,2019, subsidiaries Patimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas and Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo showed impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment in amount of $1,273 (land $306 and buildings $966), and $2,191 (land $853 and buildings $1,399), respectively. No impaiment
losses were recognizedat December 31, 2018. Information about the methodology applied to test forimpaiment is disclosed in Note 39.

Note 40 discloses the fair values of investment property, based on the appraisal carried out by an independent third party.

During the annual periods ended December 31, 2019 and December 31,2018 the results at the Parent and its subsidiaries from the use of investment

property are as follows:

Revenue from leases
Operation expenses related to revenue-generating investment properties

Operating expenses related to non-revenue-generating investment properties

Net gain frominvestment properties

Note 15. Use rights, net

January 1 to January 1to
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
244,318 169,430
(42,881) (28,011)
(110,079) (82,937)
91,358 58,482

The Parent and its subsidiaries started to apply IFRS 16 - Leases as of January 1, 2019. As mentioned in the financial statements at the closing of
December 31, 2018, this standards requires recognizinga use right-related asset and a lease iability.

The Parent and its subsidiaries elected to apply the standard retrospectively, as if it had been applied from the start date of all lease agreements, to

disclose comparable effects for each reporting period.
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The balance of use rights, net, is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Userights 2,413,037 7,500,216
Total use rights 2,413,037 7,500,216
Accumulated depreciation (1,109,389) (2,358,816)
Total use rights, net (1) 1,303,648 5,141,400

(1) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financia
statements at December 31, 2019, because this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been
reclassified to non-current assets held for trading.

The development of the cost of use rights and depreciation thereof, during the reporting period, is as folows:

Cost

Balance at December 31,2018 7,500,216
Increase from creations 364,334
Increase from new measurements 387,429
Derecognition (97,813)
Disposals (151)
(Reclassification) to non-cument assets held for trading (5,665,654)
Effect of exchange differences on translation into reporting currency (75,324)
Balance at December 31,2019 2,413,037

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at December 31,2018 2,358,816
Depreciation cost and expense 572,323
Derecognition (62,782)
(Reclassification) to non-cument assets held for trading (1,734,678)
Effect of exchange differences on translation into reporting currency (24,180)
Other changes (110)
Balance at December 31,2019 1,109,389

Note 16. Goodwill

The balance of goodwill is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Spice Investment Mercosur S.A. (1) 1,303,092 1,448,468
Carulla Vivero S.A. (2) 827,420 827,420
Super Inter (3) 453,649 453,649
Libertad S.A. (4) 173,582 177,285
Cafam (5) 122,219 122,219
Other (6) 50,806 50,806
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD (7) - 2,357,021
Total goodwill 2,930,768 5,436,868
Impairment loss (6) (1,017) -
Total goodwill, net 2,929,751 5,436,868

(1) Thebalance includes:

The business combination accomplished by the Parentin 2011 for theacquisition of Uruguayan Spice Investments Mercosur S.A. in amount of
$287,844 (December31, 2018 - $287,844). The value is the cost attributable in the opening balance sheetin exercise of the exemption of not
to restate business combinations.

Goodwill recognized by Spice Investments MercosurS.A. in the acquisition of its subsidiaries in Uruguay, pursuantto options offered by IFRS
1in amount of $227,045 (December 31, 2018 - $259,944).

Goodwill from the business combination carried out by the Parent with Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A. resuitingfrom the acquisition of contrdl at
January 1, 2015 in amount of $781,612 (December 31, 2018 - $894,874).

Goodwill from the business combination carried outby Mercados Devoto S.A. to acquire Sumelar S.A.in 2016 in amount of $1,050 (D ecember
31,2018 -$1,203).

Goodwill from the business combination carried outin 2016 and completed in 2017 by Mercados Devoto S.A. to acquire 5 Hermanos Ltda.in
amount of $2,283 (December 31,2018 - $2,614).
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- Goodwill from the business combination carried out and completed in 2018 by Mercados Devoto S.A. to acquire Tipsel S.A. in amount of $553
(December 31, 2018 - $633).

- Goodwill from the business combination carried out and completed in 2018 by Mercados Devoto S.A. to acquire Tedocan S.A. in amount of
$1,184 (December31, 2018 - $1,356).

Goodwill from the business combination carried out and completed in 2018 by Mercados Devoto S.A to acquire Ardal S.A. in amournt of $1,521
(December 31,2018 - $-).

Relates to goodwill from the business combination with Carulla Vivero S.A. carriedout in 2007. The amountwas determined in the opening statement
of financial positionusing the deemedcost option, pursuant to the exemption of IFRS 1 of not to restate business combinations.

Includes $179,412 from the acquisition of 19 Stiper Inter business establishments carried outin September 2014; $264,027 from the acquisition of
29 Super Inter business establishments carried outin April 2015; and $10,210 from the acquisttion of 7 business establishments carried out between
February 23, 2015 and June 24, 2015.

Refers to goodwill generated from the business combination completed in August 2015 for the acquisition of the operations of Libertad S.A in
Argentina, through the Spanish company Onper Investments 2015 S.L.

Refers to the agreement executed on February 23, 2015, to acquire Cafam stores that had been operatedby the Company since 2010. Business
establishments acquired were subsequently turned into Exito, Carulla and Surtimax stores. Forimpairment testing purposes, as of December 31,
2015 such goodwill was allocated to Exito $80,134, to Carulla $29,075 and to Surtimax $13,010.

The balance includes:

At December 31, 2019 the balance represents minor acquisitions of other business establishments that were subsequently turned into Exito,
Carulla and Surtimax stores. For impairment testing purposes, as of December 31, 2015 such goodwill was allocated to Exito $10,540, to
Surtimax $28,566 and to Super Inter $10,683.

- Goodwill from the business combination with Gemex O&W S.A.S. in amount of $1,017.
At December 31, 2019 the goodwill with Gemex O&W S.A.S. in amount of $1,017, was fully impaired.

The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicio — CBD were not included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31, 2019, because this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been
reclassified to non-curent assets held for trading. At December31, 2018 represented the goodwill from the business combination completed in
August 2015 for the acquisition of the operations of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD in Brazil, through the Spanish company Onper
Investments 2015 S.L. Italso included goodwil from the business combinations completed in 2018 by Companhia Brasieira de Distribuigo - CBD
with Cheftime and James Delivery.

During the annual period ended December 31, 2019 the following was the development of gooduwill:

Cost

Balance at December 31,2018 5,436,868
Goodwill from business combinations 1,619
(Reclassification) to non-cument assets held for trading (2,353,856)
Other reclassifications (2,917)
Effect of exchange differences on translation into reporting currency (212,077)
Net monetary position result 61,131
Balance at December 31,2019 2,930,768

Impairment loss

Balance at December 31,2018 -
Impairment loss 1,017
Balance at December 31,2019 1,017

Goodwill has indefinite useful life on the grounds of the Parent's and its subsidiaries' considerations thereon, and consequently it is not amortized.

Except for that mentioned in subsection (6) above, at December 31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018, goodwill was not impaired. Information about the
methodology applied to testforimpairmentis disclosed in Note 39.
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Note 17. Intangible assets other than goodwill, net

The net balance of intangible assets other than goodwill is made as folows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (1)
Trademarks (3) 219,923 3,237,799
Computer software (1) 172,044 1,331,389
Rights (1) (4) 27,034 1,315,083
Customer-related intangible assets (5) - 32,711
Other 86 84
Total cost of intangible assets other than goodwill 419,087 5,917,066
Accumulated amortization (1) (114,872) (717,265)
Total intangible assets other than goodwill, net(2) 304,215 5,199,801

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to these accounts arises from the classification as use rights of intangible assets other than goodwil
and accumulated depreciation thereof, accumulated at Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicio - CBD and representing costs required to gain lease
contracts which shouldhave been takeninto account when measuringthe useright. In addition, italso arises from the classification as use rights of
certain computer software and amortzation thereof at CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(2) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigio — CBD were not included in the consolidated financil
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassfied
to non-current assets held for trading.

(3) The balance relates to the following trademarks:

December 31, December 31,
Operating segment Banner Useful life 2019 2018

Uruguay Miscellaneous () Indefinite 92,732 106,170
Surtimax-Super Inter  SUper Inter (b) Indefinite 63,704 63,704
Argentina Libertad (c) Indefinite 46,060 47,225
Surtimax-Super Inter ~ Surtimax (d) Indefinite 17,427 17,427
Food Extra (e) Indefinite - 1,504,724
Food Pao de Aclcar (e) Indefinite - 873,981
Food Assai (e) Indefinite - 624,568

219,923 3,237,799

(@) Refers to trademarks of Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A.
(b) Trademark acquired under the business combination carried out with Comercializadora Giraldo Gémezy Cia SA.

(c) Relates to rademarks of subsidiary Libertad S.A. These trademarks were registered during 2016 as result of the progress and further completion
of the Purchase Price Allocation process as part of the acquisitionof control over such subsidiary.

(d) Trademark received upon the mergerwith Carulla Vivero S.A
(e) AtDecember 31, 2018represented trademarks of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo - CBD. These trademarks were registered during 2016
as result of the progress andfurther completion of the Purchase Price Allocation process as part of the acquisition of control oversuch subsidary.

Decrease is due to that mentioned in (2) above.

Such trademarks have indefinite useful lives on the grounds of the Parent's and its subsidiaries' considerations thereon, and consequently they are
not amortized.

(4) At December 31, 2019, the balance represents the following rights:
a) Rights of Libertad S.A. in amount of $48.

(c) Contractsexecuted by the Parentin December 2017 in amount of $2,226, December 2016 inamount of $11,552 and September 2016 inamount
of $13,238 for the acquisition of rights to exploit commercial premises.
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At December 31, 2018, the balance represented the following rights:

(@) Trade rights inamount of $1,834,132 (December 31, 2018 - restated $1,288,047) acquired by Companhia Brasikira de Distribuigao - CBD, in
the food segment, relevant tothe trade usage of paying a "premium" to obtain a lease contract in commercially attractive places.

(b) Rights of Libertad S.A. in amount of $50.

(c) Contracts executed by the Parentin December 2017 in amount of $2,226, December 2016 inamount of $11,552 and September 2016 inamount
of $13,238 for the acquisition of rights to exploit commercial premises.

Such rights have indefinite useful lives on the grounds of the Parent's and its subsidiaries' considerations thereon, and consequently they are not
amortized.

(5) At December 31,2018 the balance related tonon-contractual relations with customers, an intangible recognized by subsidiary Companhia Brasikira
de Distribuigdo — CBD, which is amortizedover an average of 9 years. Decrease is due to that mentioned in (2) above.

The development ofintangible assets other than goodwill during the reporting period is as follows:

Customer-
related
Cost Trademarks Computer Rights intangible Other Total
software assets

Balance at December 31,2018 3,237,799 1,331,389 1,315,083 32,71 84 5,917,066
Additions - 201,455 20,013 - - 221,468
Effect of exchange differences on

translation into the reporting currency (52,980) (11,299) (9,600) (242) (23) (74,144)
Net monetary position result 27,204 - (11,072) - 22 16,154
Transfers 2,517 63,418 1,251 - - 67,186
(Reclassification) to non-cument assets

held for trading (2,983,519) (1,350,319) (1,299,730) (32,469) - (5,666,037)
Disposals and derecognition - (63,193) - - - (63,193)
Other changes (11,098) 593 11,089 - 3 587
Balance at December 31,2019 219,923 172,044 27,034 - 86 419,087
Accumulated amortization
Balance at December 31,2018 703,556 34 13,630 45 717,265
Amortization expense/cost 98,892 847 3,048 356 103,143
Transfers (81) - - - (81)
Effect of exchange differences on

translation into the reporting currency (6,443) (14) (105) (17) (6,579)
Net monetary position result - 27 - 17 44
(Reclassification) to non-cumrent assets

held for trading (623,760) (843) (16,573) - (641,176)
Disposals and derecognition (57,511) - - - (57,511)
Other changes 139 (11) - (361) (233)
Balance at December 31,2019 114,792 40 - 40 114,872

At December 31, 2019 and December31, 20178 intangible assets other than goodwill are not limited or subjectto lien that would restrict realization or
tradability thereof. In addition, there are no commitments to acquire or develop intangible assets other than goodwill.

None of the intangible assets other than goodwill were impaired at December 31,2019.

No impairment of intangible assets other than goodwill was recognized at December31, 2018, exception made of the loss from certain computer software
at the Parent in amount of $3,307 (Note 34).

Information about the methodology applied to test for impairment is disclosed in Note 39.
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Note 18. Investments accounted for using the equity method

The balance of investments accounted for using the equity method is made as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Company Classification 2019 2018 (1)
Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. Joint venture 209,115 203,704
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. Joint venture 1,372 5,600
CnovaN.V. (1) (2) (3) Associate - 425,935
Financiera Itat CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda. (2) Associate - 169,161
Total investmentsaccounted for using the equity method 210,487 804,400

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1,2019. The adjustment to this account relates to the recognition of the effect of applying this IFRS on the investment balance
as shown in the associate's shareholders equity. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(2) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigio — CBD were not included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current assets held for trading.

(3) As aresult of the sale of the assets of subsidiary CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuicdo - CBD on November 27, 2019, thisinvestment ceased as an
associate to become a financial asset (Note 12).

Note 18.1. Non-financial information regarding investments accounted for using the equity method

Information regarding country of domicile, functional curency, main economic activity, ownership percentage and shares held in investments accounted
for using the equity method is as follows:

. Ownership
Functional ez:;::gc percentage
Company Country currency activity Number of shares
December December December December
31, 31, 31, 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. Colombia Colombianpeso  Credit 50% 50% 8.483.420.966 7.913.553.273
i 0, 0,
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. Colombia  Colombian peso EtLijlli)tlilgs 50% 50% Elmer 9.000.000
CnovaN.V. Holland  Euro Trade 0.19% 34.17% 659.383  117.963.047
Financiera Itau CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda. Brazil Brazilian real Investment -% 35.76% - 386.923.764
Note 18.2. Financial information regarding investments accounted for using the equity method
Financial information regarding investments accounted for using the equity method at December 31,2019:
Revenue Income
Non- Non- from from
Companies Current  current  Current  current Shareholders' ordinary  continuing
P assets assets liabilities liabilities equity activities  operations
Compafia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. 3,207,963 81,336 1,160,326 1,745,967 383,006 1,178,777 (11,753)
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. 130,551 24,873 143,867 8,812 2,745 191,725 (6,273)
Financial information regarding investments accounted for using the equity method at December 31,2018:
Non- Non- Revenue Income
Current current  Current  current Shareholders' orz?nrzw corﬁionTling
Companies assets assets liabilities liabilities equity activities  operations
CnovaN.V. 2,609,106 1,061,978 4,227,576 96,363 (652,855) 7,581,440 (122,972)
Financiera Itat CBD - FIC Promotora de VendasLtda. 4,992,357 49,066 4,427,689 8,164 605,570 787,658 176,870
Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. 2,836,770 - 2,464,644 - 372,126 1,094,747 84,258
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. 65,639 30,808 82,331 5,095 9,029 35,489 (5,405)
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Note 18.3. Corporate purpose of investments accounted for using the equity method
The corporate purpose and other corporate information of investments accounted forusing the equity method is the following:

Compaiiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A.

Ajoint business, joint control over which was acquired on October 31,2016. It is a private entity, authorized by the Colombian Financial Superintendence,
incorporated by means of public deed No. 7418 granted on November 30, 1971 before the Notary Firstof Bogota, having its main place of business in
Medellin. The company's main corporate purpose is attracting resources using term-deposits with the primary purpose of engaging in credit active
operations, to ease the trading of goods and services, without affecting operations andinvestments thatit may carry out in compliance with the conditions
or limitations setout by the legal regime applicable to financing companies.

Puntos Colombia S.A.S.

A joint venture established on April 19, 2017 under Colombian law. Its main comporate purpose is the purchase and sale of loyalty points, and the design,
development, implementation, operation and administration of a loyalty program for the development of loyalty strategies applicable to the customers of aliance
partners, through the recognition, accumulation, issue and redemption of loyalty points, as well as the purchase andsale of loyalty points. Its main place of
businessis at Carrera 48 No. 32B Sur- 139, Envigado, Colombia. The company's life span is indefinite.

CnovaN.V.

Incorporated on May 30,2014. Its corporate purposeis participating or carryingout all activities and operations related with or suitable for e-commerce
and regular trade, and the provision of services in the fields of retail sales, advertising, transportation, data communications, business advisory and
business funding. Its main place of business is in Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

Financiera Itau CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda.

A company established jaintly with Ital Unibanco S.A. and Comparhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD in 2004; its main place of business is in Sao
Paulo, Brazil. Its main corporate purpose is to engage in credit, finance and investment activities and the management of credit cards. This associate
was sold on November 27, 2019, along with subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD.

Note 18.4. Otherinformation regarding investments accounted for using the equity method

The reconciliation of summarized financial information reported to the book value of associates and joint ventures in the consolidated financial statements
is:

December 31, 2019

Equity base  Ownership Value of Parent Book
Sharehold to apply percentage ownership value
Companies ers'equity the method (1) Fair value (2)
Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. 383,006 418,230 50.00% 209,115 - 209,115
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. 2,745 2,745 50.00% 1,372 - 1,372

December 31, 2018

Equitybase  Ownership Value of Parent Book
Sharehold to apply percentage ownership value
Companies ers'equity the method (1) Fair value (2)
CnovaN.V. - - 6.56% 9,222 - 425,501
Financiera Itau CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda. 605,570 473,045 35.76% - - 169,161
Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. 372,126 407,358 50.00% 203,679 - 203,679
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. 9,029 9,029 50.00% 5,600 - 5,600

(1) Direct interestof the Parent (Almacenes Exito S.A.).
(2) Amount of investment and goodwill carried in the books of the Parentand its subsidiaries.
Dividends receivedfrom associates and jaint ventures duringthe annual period ended December 31, 2019 amounted to $- (December 31,2018 - $50,449).

There are no restrictions on the capability of the associates and joint ventures to transfer funds to the Parent in the form of cash dividends, or loan
repayments or advance payments.

The Parent has no contingent assets incurred related to its participation therein.
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There are no constructive obligations acquired by the Parent on behalf of associates or joint ventures arising from losses exceeding the interest held in
them.

The investments recognized using the equity method have no restrictions or liens that affect the interestheld in them.

Note 19. Changes in the classification of financial assets

During the annual period ended December 31, 2019 there were no materia changesin the classification of financial assets arisingfroma change in the
purpose or use of such assets.

Note 20. Financial liabilities

The balance of financial liabilities is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (1)

Put option (2) 379,538 435,023

Bank loans (3) (4) 223,368 1,845,638

Letters of credit 10,176 6,616

Finance Leases (1) 3,740 3,839

Total currentfinancial liabilities 616,822 2,291,116

Bank loans (3) (4) 37,238 4,624,057

Finance Leases (1) 6,293 9,497

Total non-currentfinancial liabilities 43,531 4,633,554

(1) The figures differ from those shown at December31, 2018 because of the adjustments arising from the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to these accounts relates to the reclassification of finance leases to lease liabilities regarding cettain
contracts on assets that were properly recorded as finance leases. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(2) Spice Investments Mercosur S.A. isa party to the put optioncontract entered with the owners of non-controllinginterests in subsidiary Grupo Disco
del Uruguay S.A. The exercise price of the option is based on a previously determined formula and the option may be exercised at any time. The
option is measured at fair value. Developmentis shown in Note 40.

(3) In August 2015, the Parent entered into credit agreements with local banks in amount of $3.25 trillion and with foreign banks in amount of $1.21

trillion (USD 400 million atthe exchange rate of $3,027.20 Colombian pesos) for the acquisition of the operations in Brazil and Argentina through the
Spanish company Onper Investment2015 S.L. Such credits are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, where transaction
costs are included in amountof $14,332.

Under both agreements, the Parentis committed to requestapprovalfrom the banks if it requires to carry out the following transactions: encumber
assets, enter into extraordinary agreements with any affiliated company, incur additional debt wherever the resultis breach of the credit agreement
and/or without prior authorization from creditors; creditors shall automatically grant authorization if the occurrenceindex is complied with, measured
using the latest financid statements released by the Parent, among other.

During January 2016 and April 2016, the Parentrequested disbursements in amount of $400,000and $100,000, respectively, against the revalving
trench under the credit agreement executed in July 2015. The revolving creditin amount of $500,000 with a term of two years, and the revoling
cash credit with a term of one year, were restructured in August 2016.

$97,495 of the balance of non-current bank loans were repaid by the Parentin August2016; $55,000 and $500,0000f currentloans were repaid in
November 2016 and December 2016, respectively.

In February 2017 the Parent obtaineda loan in amount of $530,000; in March 2017, $70,000; in April 2017, $158,380;in May 2017, $79,216; and in
September $120,000.

In June 2017 Distribuidora de Textiles y Confecciones S.A.S. obtained a loan from Bancoombia in amount of $60,000 at a rate of IBR 3 months +
2.0% quarterly in arrears, with a term of 5 years and 24-month grace period for repayment of principal.

In February 2017 and in August 2017, the Parent repaid $194,990 (397,495 each month) of the outstanding balance of non-currentbank loans; in
June 2017 repaid $200,000; in August 2017 repaid $50,000; in October 2017 repaid $120,000;in November 2017 repaid $100,000 and in December
2017 repaid $150,000 of current bank loans (syndicated revolving creit).

On December 22, 2017 the Parent obtained a new syndicated revolving credit in amount of USD 450 million, maturing in December 2020. These
resources allowed paying in advance the US Dollarsyndicated credit outstanding at that date in the same amount, maturing in December 2018, Also,
the peso revolving syndicated creditin amount of $500,000 was restructured to extend maturity from August 2018 to August 2020; all other contract
conditions remain unchanged. The Parent's debt level after the above two transactions does not vary; however, the average term of the debt goes
from 2.2 years to 2.9 years, optimizingthe Parent's future payment outflows.

The Parent requested disbursements in amount of $120,000, $350,000 and $30,000 during January, February and May 2018, respectively, against
the syndicatedrevolving credit.
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$97,495, $73,015, $97,495 and $73,015 of the non-current bank loan balance were repaid by the Parent in February, June, August and December
2018, respectively.

$120,000 and $380,000 of the balance of syndicated revolving loans were repaid by the Parentin July and August 2018, respectively.

The balance at December 31, 2018 also includes short-term loans in amount of $794,904 and long-term loans in amount of $361,492 acquired by
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigio - CBD, and long-term loans acquired by subsidiary Segisor S.A. in amount of $1,476,494).

It also includes $182,848 received on December 21, 2018 by subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD under the contractual
commitment to sell 3.86% of the interests in the equity of Via Varejo S.A. through a total return swap transaction(TRS).  Throughthis transaction,
amounts received are subject to further adjustment from the subsequent resale of the shares in the market during the contractterm. Exposure of the
subsidiary to the variation in the market value of underlying assets prevents shares from being deleted from accounting records at December 31,
2018.

During February and March 2019, the Parent requested disbursements in amount of $70,000 and $30,000, respectively, against the revolving trench
under the credit agreement executed on December 21, 2018. The Company requested disbursements in amount of $50,000, $160,000, $100,000
and $120,000 during February, April, June and August 2019, respectively, against the syndicated revolving credi.

In April 2019, the Parent extended a portion of the bilateral creditto April 29,2021, in amount of $158,380.

During February and August 2019, respectively, the Parent repaid $97,495 and $97,495 of the non-current bank loan balance and $84,540 of the US
Dollar bilateral current loan balance. $156,3550f the currentbank loan balance were repaid in June 2019.

The disbursements in amounts of $160,000, $100,000, $120,000and $50,000 against the syndicated revolving credit requested in February, Api,
July and August 2019 were repaid by the Parent in October and November2019.

The outstanding principa balance of the syndicated credit in US Dolars in amount of USD 450 milion obtained in December 2017, the credt in
amount of $158,380 obtained in April 2017, the outstanding balance of the current bank loan in amount of $535,616 and the outstanding balance of
the non-current bank loan in amount of $1,167,535 were repaidin advance by the Parentin December 2019. Such early payments were made based
on existing terms and conditions of the debt agreementsin force at thattime, regarding mandatory repayments as result of the sale of assets.

(4) Inaddition to the decrease explained in the preceding subsection(2), there is an additiona decrease due to the fact that the liabilities of subsidary
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD were notincluded in the consolidated financial statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary
was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassffied to non-cument liabilities held for trading.

Bank loans are denominated in Cdombian pesos at a referenceinterest rate is IBR 3M plus 2%. Finance lease liabilities are denominated in US Ddllars
ata reference interest rate of LIBOR +2.22% monthly in arrears.

Below is a detail of annual maturities of non-current bank loans and finance leases outstanding at December 31, 2019, discounted at present value:

Year Total

2020 23,338

2021 20,193
43,531

Note 20.1. Commitments undertaken under credit contracts (financial obligations)

The purpose of commitments undertaken under credit contractsis to ensure compliance with the financial clauses applicable to debt and loans obtained
in August 2015 and December 2017 that define the capital structure requirements (covenants) and other debtor obligations. Failure to comply with such
financial clauses would result in the banks' promptly climing repayment of debt and loans. At December 31, 2019 no failure to comply with financial
clauses has been reported regarding any interest-bearing debt or loan during the current period.

In December 2019 the Parent repaid in advance the principal outstandingbalance of the US Dollar loan acquired in December 2017. All commitments
acquired at the timethe credits were obtained were extinguished upon payment of such liability. However, obligations acquired remain in force, given that
credit agreements in Colombian pesos remain outstanding (Note 20.2).

Note 20.2. Obligations undertaken under credit confracts (financial obligations)

a. Financial: The Parent is committed to maintain a financial leverage ratio of maximum 3.5x. Such ratio will be measured annually on April 30 based
on audited consolidatedfinancial statements at each period closing.

b. Indebtedness: The Parent is committed to refrain from: (i) incurring new debts in the event of being in default of the financial liability and/or in the

event that incurring the new debt would result in failure to comply with an existing financial liabiity, and (ii) incurring additional debt without the
authorization of creditors.
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Inthe event that the Parent intend to incur additional debt, it shall require the prior authorization of creditors, which shall be deemed automaticaly
granted if the Parent complies with the occurrence indicator, which shall be measured based on the latest separatefinancial statements submited
to the National Registerof Securities and Issuers.

Note 20.3. Net financial debt

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (a) 2018 (b)

Current (liabilities) assets
Current financial liabilities (1) (616,822) (2,320,284) (2,291,116)
Other current financial liabilities (2) (Note 27) (14,984) (905,865) (905,865)
Other current financial assets (3) (Note 12) 23,357 123,852 123,852
Non-current (liabilities) assets
Non-current financial liabilities (1) (43,531) (4,732,106) (4,633,554)
Other non-current financial liabilities (2) (Note 27) (370) (2,583,089) (2,583,089)
Other non-current financial assets (3) (Note 12) 476 64,985 64,985
Contingent Liabilities
Collaterals delivered (4) (Note 41) (4,606) (4,469) (4,469)
Total gross liabilities (656,480) (10,356,976) (10,229,256)
Cash and cash equivalents 2,562,674 5,973,764 5,973,680
Total assets (liabilities), net 1,906,194 (4,383,212) (4,255,576)
Ebitda (5) 979,809 3,566,246
Adjustment to recurring Ebitda (6) (38,554) -
Adjusted recurring Ebitda 941,255 3,566,246
Net liabilities/Adjusted recurring Ebitda 2.03 (1.23)

(@) Amounts shown in the financial statements at December 31,2018, taken as the base toestimate the netfinancial debt, ebitda and the adjusted Net
Debt/Recurring ebitda index.

(b) Figures shown in these consolidated financid statements at December 31, 2019, whichdiffer from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of
the adjustments arising from the retrospective application of IFRS 16 - Leases, adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to these accounts

arises from the reclassification from currentand non-current finance leases to lease liabilities.

The calculation of the consolidated net financial debtincludes:

(1)

Current financial liabilities:

Put option

Bank loans

Letters of credit

Finance leases

Bank overdrafts

Total currentfinancial liabilities

Non-current financial liabilities:

Bank loans
Finance leases
Total non-currentfinancial liabilities

Other current financial liabilities:

Bonds issued
Derivative financialinstruments
Derivative financialinstruments designatedas hedge instruments

Total other current financial liabilities

December 31,
2019

379,538
223,368
10,176
3,740

616,822

December 31,
2019

37,238
6,293
43,531

December 31,
2018

14,964
20

14,984

December 31,
2018

435,023
1,845,638
6,616
32,923
84
2,320,284

December 31,
2018

4,624,056
108,050
4,732,106

December 31,
2018

1,770
8,022

896,073
905,865
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Other non-current financial liabilities:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Derivative financialinstuments 370 -
Bonds issued - 2,581,638
Derivative financialinstruments designatedas hedge instruments
- 1,451
Total other non-current financial liabilities 370 2,583,089
(3) Other current financial assets:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Derivative financialinstuments 23,357 85,507
Derivative financialinstruments designatedas hedge instruments
- 38,345
Total other current financial assets 23,357 123,852
Other non-current financial assets:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Derivative financialinstruments designatedas hedge instruments
476 36,951
Derivative financialinstuments - 28,034
Total other non-current financial assets 476 64,985

(4) At December 31, 2019 the Parent issued financial guarantees to certain of its subsidiaries in amount of $2,631 (December 31, 2017 $2,631) and
subsidiary Exito Viajes y Turismo S.A.S. issued financial guarantees to certain of its suppliers in amount of $1,975 (December 31, 2018 $1,839)
(Note 41).

(5) Under contractterms, the estimation of the Ebitda is as follows:
Operating profit for the last 12 months,
Plus depreciation and amortization and all other expenses notinvolving cash outflows, accrued during the same 12-month period,
Plus dividends distributed by subsidiaries, directly or through special-purpose vehicles, under control of the Parent, effectively received,
Plus proforma dividends of subsidiaries acquired duringthe last 12 months of activity. Proforma dividends are those dividends that woud have
been received if the Parent had acquired or maintained under control a subsidiary during the entire 12-month period.

(6) Relates to excess non-recurring profitas compared to operating profit. Such excess s calculated whennon-recurring operating profitis higher than
10% of total operating profit.

Note 21. Employee benefits

The balance of employee benefitsis as folows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Defined benefit plans 22,062 29,441
Long-term benefit plan 1,836 1,896
Total employee benefits 23,898 31,337
Current 2,978 3,657
Non-current 20,920 27,680

Note 21.1. Defined benefit plans
The Parent and its subsidiaries have the following defined benefit plans:
a. Retirement pension plan
Under the plan, each of Parent's employees will receive, upon retirement, a monthly pension payment, pension adjustments pursuant to lega

regulations, survivor's pension, assistancewith funeral expenses and June and December bonuses establishedby law. Such amount depends on
factors such as: employee age, time of sewvice and salary.
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The Parent is responsible for the payment of retirement pensions to employees who meet the following requirements: (a) employees whoat January
1, 1967 had served more than 20 years (full liability), and (b) employees and former employees whoat January 1, 1967 had served more than 10
years but less than 20 years (partial liability).

Retroactive severance pay plan

Retroactivity of severance pay is estimated for those employees of the Parent to whom labor laws applicable are those prior to Law 50 of 1990, and
who did not move to the new severance pay system. Under the plan, the Parent will pay employees upon retirement a retroactive amount as
severance pay, after deduction of advance payments. This social benefit is calculated over the entire time of service, based on the latest saary
earned.

Retirement bonus upon meeting the requirements toobtain an old-age pension

Up to December 31, 2018, whereveran employee of the Parent and of subsidiaries ExitoIndustrias y Servicios S.A.S. and Logistica, Transpotey
Servicios Asociados S.A.S. met the age and contribution requirements to obtain a retirement pension under the average defined benefit system,
he/she was granted a single $1 cash bonus upon the employee's completion of his/her time of service. The old-age retirement bonus is granted
under a collective bargain agreement. However, during 2019 the Parent and its subsidiaries Exito Industrias y Servicios S.A.S. and Logistica,
Transporte y Servicios Asociados S.A.S. agreed with their employees the elimination of the old-age retirement bonus benefit.

Retirement bonus upon meeting the requirements toobtain a disability pension
Wherever an employee of the Parent or of subsidiaries Exito Industrias y Servicios S.AS. and Logistica, Transportey Servicios Asociados SAS. i

granted a disability pension by the relevant pension administration entity, he/she will be granted a single retirement bonus in amount of $4, provided
aloss of 50% or more of capacity for work was qualified during the term of the labor relation with the Parent. The disability pension bonusis granted

under a collective bargain agreement.

Such benefits are estimated on an annual basis or wherever there are material changes, using the forecasted credit unit. During the annual period ended
December 31, 2019 there were no materia changes in the methods or assumptions applied when preparing the estimations and sensitivity analyses.

Balances and development:

The following are balances and development of defined benefit plans:

Old-age pension

and disability
Retirement Severance retirement T
. otal
pensions pay bonus
Balance at December 31,2018 21,037 1,125 7,279 29,441
Cost of service - 29 151 180
Cost of past service - - (6,865) (6,865)
Interest expense 1,415 67 217 1,699
Actuarial (loss) from changes in experience (221) (96) (27) (344)
Actuarial gain from financial assumptions 700 11 14 725
Benefits directly (paid) by the Parentand its subsidiaries (2,212) (184) (378) (2,774)
Balance at December 31,2019 20,719 952 391 22,062
Variables used to makethe calculations:
Discount rates, salaryincrease rates, inflation rates and death dates are as follows:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Old-age Old-age
pension and pension and
disability Severance " disability
Retirement Severance retirement Retirement pay retirement
pensions pay bonus pensions bonus
Discount rate 6.60% 6.10% 6.40% 7.10% 6.50% 7.10%
Annual salary increase rate 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Future annuity increaserate 3.50% - - 3.50% - -
Annual inflation rate 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Death rate - men (years) 60-62 60-62 60-62 60-62 60-62 60-62
Death rate - women (years) 55-57 55-57 55-57 55-57 55-57 55-57
Deathrate - men 0.001117%-  0.001117% - 0.001117% - 0.001117%-  0.001117% - 0.001117% -
0.034032% 0.034032% 0.034032% 0.034032% 0.034032% 0.034032%
Death rate - women 0.000627%-  0.000627% - 0.000627% - 0.000627%-  0.000627% - 0.000627% -
0.019177% 0.019177% 0.019177% 0.019177% 0.019177% 0.019177%
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Employee turnover, disability and early retirementrates:

December 31, December 31,

Years of service 2019 2018

From O toless than 5 29.98% 34.26%
From 5toless than 10 14.60% 16.68%
From 10to less than 15 8.59% 9.82%
From 15toless than 20 6.41% 7.32%
From 20 to less than 25 4.92% 5.62%
25and more 3.71% 4.24%

Sensitivity analysis:

A quantitative sensitivity analysis regarding a change in a key assumption wouldresultin the following variation of the defined benéfit net liability:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Old-age
pension and Old-age pension
disability and disability
retirement Severance retirement
. bonus . pay bonus
L . L Retirement Severance Retirement
Variation expressed in basis points pensions pay pensions
Discount rate + 25 (357) (7 (5) (360) 9) (133)
Discount rate - 25 368 7 6 372 10 137
Discount rate +50 (702) (13) (11) (709) (19) (261)
Discount rate - 50 749 14 1 757 19 279
Discount rate + 100 (1,359) (26) (21) (1,375) (36) (506)
Discount rate - 100 1,551 28 23 1,567 39 577
Annual salary increase rate + 25 N/A 12 N/A N/A 16 N/A
Annual salary increase rate - 25 N/A (12) N/A N/A (16) N/A
Annual salary increase rate + 50 N/A 25 N/A N/A 33 N/A
Annual salary increase rate - 50 N/A (24) N/A N/A (32) N/A
Annual salary increase rate + 100 N/A 50 N/A N/A 66 N/A
Annual salary increase rate - 100 N/A (48) N/A N/A (63) N/A
Contributions for the next years funded with the Parent's and its subsidiaries' own resources are foreseen as follows:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Old-age
pension and Old-age pension
disability and disability
Severance retirement Severance retirement
Year Retire.ment pay S Retirgment pay bonus
pensions pensions
2019 - - - 2,355 205 748
2020 2,318 271 60 2,354 137 540
2021 2,326 194 51 2,350 267 579
2022 2,309 65 48 2,332 105 688
>2023 34,894 631 449 35,132 725 11,582
Total 41,847 1,161 608 44,523 1,439 14,137

Other considerations:

The average duration of the liability for defined benefit plans at December 31,2019 is 7.8years (December 31, 2018 - 7.6 years).
The Parent and its subsidiaries have no specific assets intended for guaranteeing the defined benefit plans.

The defined contribution plan expenseat December 31, 2019amounted to $41,150 (December 31, 2018 - $58,862).

Note 21.2. Long-term benefit plan

The long-term benefit plan invalves a time-of-service bonus associated to years of service payable to the employees of the Parent and to the employees
of subsidiaries Logistica, Transporte y Servicios Asociados S.A.S.

Such benefit is estimated on an annual basis or wherever there are material changes, using the forecasted creditunit. During theannual period ended
December 31, 2019 there were no materia changes in the methods or assumptions applied when preparing the estimations and sensitivity analyses.

During 2015 the Parent reached agreement with several employees who vauntarily decided to replace the time-of-service bonus with a special singe
one-time bonus.
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Balances and development:

The following are balances and development of the long-term defined benefit plan:

Balance at December 31,2018 1,896
Cost of service 187
Interest expense 116
Actuarial (gain) from changes in experience 2
Actuarial gain from financial assumptions 1
Benefits directly (paid) by the Parentand its subsidiaries (366)
Balance at December 31,2019 1,836

Variables used to makethe calculations:

Discount rates, salaryincrease rates, inflation rates and death dates are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Discount rate 6.30% 6.80%
Annual salary increase rate 3.50% 3.50%
Annual inflation rate 3.50% 3.50%
Deathrate - men 0.001117%-0.034032%  0.001117% - 0.034032%
Death rate - women 0.000627%-0.019177%  0.000627% -0.019177%

Employee turnover, disability and early retirementrates are as folows:

December 31, December 31,

Years of service 2019 2018

From 0 to less than 5 29.98% 34.26%
From 5toless than 10 14.60% 16.68%
From 10toless than 15 8.59% 9.82%
From 15toless than 20 6.41% 7.32%
From 20 to less than 25 4.92% 5.62%
25 and more 3.711% 4.24%

Sensitivity analysis:

A quantitative sensitivity analysis regarding a change in a key assumption wouldresultin the following variation of thelong-term net benefit liability:

December 31, December 31,
Variation expressed in basis points 2019 2018
Discount rate +25 (23) (23)
Discount rate - 25 24 23
Discount rate +50 (46) (45)
Discount rate - 50 48 47
Discount rate + 100 (90) (87)
Discount rate - 100 99 96
Annual salary increase rate + 25 24 24
Annual salary increase rate - 25 (24) (23)
Annual salary increase rate + 50 49 48
Annual salary increase rate - 50 (48) (46)
Annual salary increase rate + 100 101 98
Annual salary increase rate - 100 (93) 91)

Contributions for the next years funded with Company's own resources are foreseen as follows:

December 31,  December 31,

Year 2019 2018

2019 - 348
2020 329 306
2021 221 234
2022 192 175
>2023 1,933 1,754

Total 2,681 2,817



Other considerations:

The average duration of the liability for long-term benefits at December 31,2019 is 5.4 years (December 31, 2018 - 5.2 years).

The Parent and its subsidiaries have not devoted specific assets to guarantee payment of the time-of-service bonus.

The effect on the statement of income from the long-term benefit plan at December 31,2019 was an expense in amount of $82 (December 31, 2018 $84).

Note 22. Other provisions

The balance of other provisionsis made as follows:

December 31,
2019
Legal proceedings (1) 14,889
Taxes other than income tax (2) 8,552
Restructuring (3) 269
Other (4) 9,708
Total other provisions 33,418
Current 14,420
Non-current 18,998

December 31,
2018

357,052
1,945,660
9,296
55,637
2,367,645

36,997
2,330,648

(*) The decrease is because the liabilities of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consalidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified

to non-current liabilities held for frading.

The detail of provisionsis as follows:

(1) Provisions for lawsuits are recognized tocover estimated potential losses arising from lawsuits brought against the Parent andits subsidiaries, related
with labor, civil, administrative and regulatory matters, which are assessedbased on the best estimation of cashoutflows requiredto settle a liabity

on the date of preparation of the financial statements. The balance is comprised of

December 31,
2019
Labor legal proceedings (a) 10,831
Civil proceedings (b) 4,058
Administrative and regulatory proceedings (c) -
Total legal proceedings 14,889

(a) At December 31, 2019 represent:

December 31,
2018

255,095
79,011
22,946

357,052

Lawsuits filed against the Parent on the grounds of collective claims $40, indemnifications $2,350, salary adjustments and social benefts
$475, health and retirement pensions $5,724 and labor relation and sdlidarity $1,995.

Lawsuits filed against subsidiary Libertad S.A. in amount of $86.

Lawsuits filed against Spice Investment Mercosur S.A. and its subsidiaries $171.

Lawsuits filed against Colombiansubsidiaries $30.

At December 31, 2018 represent:

Lawsuits flled against the Parent on the grounds of collective claims $30, indemnifications $2,524, salary adjustments and social benefits
$160, health and retirement pensions $5,135 and labor relation and sdlidarity $2,200.

- Lawsuits filed against subsidiary Libertad S.A. in amount of $112.

Lawsuits filed against Spice Investment Mercosur S.A. and its subsidiaries $491.

Lawsuits filed against Colombiansubsidiaries $51.

Lawsuits filed against subsidiary Companhia Brasikira de Distribuigio - CBD and its subsidiaries amounting to $244,392, which are
updated in line with a table provided by the TST ('Tribunal Superior do Trabaho') plus a 1% monthly interest.

(b) AtDecember 31,2019 represent:

- Lawsuits filed against the Parentin cases related with third party liability in amount of $485, real estate-related proceedings $319, premises
condition-related proceedings $1,412, metrology and technical regulations $269, customer protection $10 and other minor legal

proceedings in amount of $1,240.

Lawsuits filed against Spice Investment Mercosur S.A. and its subsidiaries $9.

Lawsuits filed against Colombiansubsidiaries $314.
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At December 31, 2018 represent:

- Lawsuits filed against the Parent in cases related with third party liability in amount of $1,145, real estate-related proceedings $557,
premises condition-related proceedings $87, metrology and technical regulations $112, customer protection $873 and other minor legal
proceedings in amount of $948.

- Lawsuits filed against subsidiary Companhia Brasieira de Distribuigdo - CBD and its subsidiaries $74,832. This balance includes certan
legal actions seeking the revision of contracts and renewals on lease instalments agreed upon. A provision is recagnized for the difference
between amounts paid and amounts disputed by the counterparty in the legal action, when in the opinion of in-house and external counsels
there is a probability of adjustment to the instaments paid. There are no legal deposits covering said amount; should there be such
deposits, they are recognized as other financial assets.

- Lawsuits filed against Spice Investment Mercosur S.A. and its subsidiaries $210.

- Lawsuits filed against Colombiansubsidiaries $247.

(c) AtDecember 31, 2018 they relate to lawsuits of subsidiary Companhia Brasileirade Distribuigao - CBD, including certain proceedings on the
grounds of fines applied by regulatory agencies of which the most relevant are those of Braziian consumer protection agencies PROCONS,
INMETROand local Mayor's offices, in amount of $22,946.

At December 31, 2019 provisions for taxes ctherthanincome tax represent $7,540 for tax proceedings of the Parentand $1,012 for other proceedngs
of subsidiary Libertad S.A.

Parent's legal proceedings relate to:

- Industry and trade tax in amount of $2,217.

- Taxonreal estate property in amount of $1,296.
- VAT payable in amount of $3,772.

- VAT payable on beer in amount of $255.

At December 31, 2018 the provisions for taxes other than income taxinclude $1,934,825 relevant to tax legal proceedings of CompanhiaBrasikia
de Distribuigao - CBD and its subsidiaries, which are subject to monthly monetary adjustment at index rates usedby each tax authority; $8,632 for
tax legal proceedings of the Parent; and $2,203 for other proceedings of subsidiary Libertad S.A.

Parent's legal proceedings relate to:
Industry and trade tax in amount of $2,217.
- Taxonreal estate property in amount of $2,926.
- VAT payable in amount of $3,234.
- VAT payable on beer in amount of $255.

The most relevant tax lawsuits of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo CBD and its subsidiaries, include:

- Social contribution for the funding of social security - COFINS and socid integration program - PIS: Under the non-cumulative system to calcuiate
PIS and COFINS, a request was filed claiming right to exclude the value of the Impuesto a la Circulaciénde Mercaderias y Servicios - ICMS
(Tax on the Movement of Goods and Services) from the basis to assess these two contributions and other less relevant matters. The provision
amounts to $72,133

- Taxonthe circulation of goods and services (ICMS): By means of a ruling dated October 16, 2014, the Higher Federal Court (STF) defined that
ICMS taxpayers who trade basic basket products are not entitled to fully apply the credits arising from such tax; consequently, with the support
of external advisors, it was deemed appropriate to recognize a provision in amount of $77,165.

- Complementary Law No. 110/2001: Theright of not to recognize the contributions set forth in Complementary Law No. 110/2001, estabished
to support the costs of the Fundo de Garantia do Tempo de Servigo (FGTS) is being discussed through judicial action. The value of the provision
at December 31, 2018 is $73,810.

- Other provisions relate to thefollowing proceedings, in amount of $285,176:

(i) Investigation regarding the failureto apply the Fator Acidentério de Prevencéo (FAP) for 2011;

(i) Investigations related with procurement from suppliers deemeddisqualified from the registry with Secretariada Fazenda Estadual, mistake
in application of aliquot and ancillary obligations by state tax authorities;

(i) Undue credit.

- Provisions for taxes other than income taxin amountof $1,240,748. Provisions recognized relate to proceedings associated with the following

taxes:

- Taxonthe Movement of Goods and Services - ICMS in amount of $1,078,939;

(i) Social Contributionfor the Funding of Social Security - COFINS in amount of $69,108;
(iii) Tax onindustrial products - IPI in amount of $63,277;

(iv) Brazilian tax on real estate property - IPTUin amountof $28,902, and

(vi) Otherin amount of $522.

At December 31,2019 the restructuring provision relates to the reorganization processes announced to Parent's employees of stores, corporate and
distribution centers in amount of $145 and to the employees of Colombian subsidiaries in amount of $124 that will affect the Parent's and this
subsidiary's activities and operations . The provision is based on cash outflows required, directly associated with the restructuring plan. The
disbursement andimplementation date of the plan are expected during the first quarter of 2020. The restructuring provision was recognized in period
results as other expenses.
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At December 31,2018 the restructuring provision relates to the reorganization processes announced to Parent's employees of stores, corporate and
distribution centers in amount of $911, to the employees of Colombian subsidiaries in amount of $4 and to the employees of subsidiary Companhia
Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD in amount of $8,381 that will affect the Parent's and this subsidiary's activities and operations . The provision is
based on cash outflows required, directly associated with the restructuring plan. The disbursement and implementation date of the plan are expected

during the first quarter of 2020. The restructuring provision was recognized in period resuits as other expenses.

(4) The balance of other provisions at December 31,2019 relates to:

- Provision to protect against reduction of goods "VMI" at the Parent in amount of $1,697.

- Other minor provisions at Colombian subsidiaries in amount of $751.
- Closing of Parent stores in amount of $7,260.

The balance of other provisions at December 31,2018 relates to:

- Provisions were recognized in amount of $47,636 as a resut of the Purchase Price Allocation process of subsidiaries CompanhiaBrasileira de
Distribuigdo - CBD and Libertad S.A., coveringexternal counsel fees related with the defense of tax proceedings, whose compensation is tied
toasuccess fee upon the legal closingthereof. Such percentages may vary, in accordance with qualitative and quantitative elements of each

proceeding.

- Provision to protect against reduction of goods "VMI" at the Parent in amount of $2,237.

- Other minor provisions at Cdombian subsidiaries in amount of $332.
- Closing of Parent stores in amount of $5,532.

Balances and development of other provisions during the period are as follows:

Taxes other
Legal incamet Restructuri Oth Total
proceedings income tax estructuring er ota
Balance at December 31,2018 357,052 1,945,660 9,296 55,637 2,367,645
Increase 461,124 87,677 43,579 13,220 605,600
Uses (245) (440) - (925) (1,610)
Payments (328,258) (5,789) (38,138) (9,464) (381,649)
Reversals (notused) (215,161) (203,302) (10,024) (10,903) (439,390)
Increase from value updating based on the passage of
time 63,027 13,600 - - 76,627
Effect of exchange differences from translationinto
reporting currency (2,654) (15,131) (56) (407) (18,248)
(Reclassification) to non-cument assets held for
trading (320,369) (1,813,777) (4,388) (37,462) (2,175,996)
Other reclassifications 373 54 12 439
Balance at December 31,2019 14,889 8,552 269 9,708 33,418

At December 31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018 the Parentand its subsidiaries did not recognize provisions for contracts forconsideration.

Note 22.1. Other provisions classified as current and non-current

The balance of other provisions, classified as currentand non-cument is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Legal proceedings 3,678 4,518
Restructuring 269 9,296
Taxes other than income tax 765 974
Other 9,708 22,209
Total other current provisions 14,420 36,997
Taxes other than income tax 7,787 1,944,686
Legal proceedings 11,211 352,534
Other - 33,428
Total other non-current provisions 18,998 2,330,648
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Note 22.2. Forecasted payments ofother provisions

Forecasted payments of other provisions for which the Parentand its subsidiaries are liable at December 31,2019 are:

Leaal Taxes other than

egal i

proce%dings income tax Restructuring Other Total
Less than 12 months 3,678 765 269 9,708 14,420
From 1to 5 years 11,211 7,787 - - 18,998
5years and more - - - - -
Total estimated 14,889 8,552 269 9,708 33,418

payments

Note 23. Accounts payable to related parties

The balance of accounts payableto related parties and the balance of other financialliabilities with related parties is:

Accounts payable Other financial liabilities

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

Joint ventures (2) 34,806 9,986 39,619 44,860
Controlling entity (3) 33,729 54,447 - -
Grupo Casino companies (4) 12,413 146,481 - -
Members of the Board 47 13 - -

Associates (5)

25,771

Total (1) 80,995 236,698 39,619 44,860

(1

)

The decrease is because the liabilities of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consdidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current liabilities held for frading.

The balance of accounts payablerelates to:

(-) Balance payable to Puntos Colombia S.A.S. arising from the issue of points (accumulations) in line with the change in the loyalty program
implemented by the Company in amount of $34,806 (December 31,2018 - $9,983);

- Balance payable to Compariia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. arising fromintermediation fees in amount of $- (December 31, 2018 - $3).

At September 30, 2019 and at December 31, 2018 the balance of other financia liabilities represents collections received from third parties related
with Tarjeta Exito (Exito Credit Card), owned by Compaiiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. (Note 27).

At December 31, 2019 the balance relates to dividends payable to shareholders.

At December 31, 2019, the balance of accounts payable to the Controlling entity represents:

- Cost sharing agreement entered by and between CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribui¢do - CDB (*) and Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. (*) on
August 10, 2014, whose purpose is the reimbursement of expenses incurred by companies of Grupo Casino and their professional staff to the
benefit of this subsidiary. This agreementwas authorized by the Board of Directors on July 22,2014.

Agency agreement, entered by and between CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD (*) and Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A (*) on Juy
25, 2016 with the purpose of regulating the intermediation services in the procurement of goods.

Cost Reimbursement Agreement” entered by and between Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigéo - CBD (*) and Casino Guichard- Perrachon
S.A. (*) on July 25, 2016 with the purpose of regulating the reimbursement by CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD (*) of expatriate
expenses relevant to Frenchsocial contributions paid by Casino in France.

- Reimbursement of expenses between Companhia Brasileirade Distribuigdo- CBD (*) and Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. (*) related with the
provision of intermediation services in the procurement of goods.

- "Triple S"loan in US Dollars with HSBC, repaid by Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. (*) on behalf of Libertad S.A.

- Liabilities of subsidiary Libertad S.A. related with services provided toexpatriates.

- Consultancy and technical assistance services provided by Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. (*) and Geant Intemational B.V. in amount of $235
and dividends payable in amount of $15,050.

At December 31,2019 the balance mainly relates to a balance payable to Green Yellow Colombia S.A.S. and Green Yellow do Brasil Energia arising
from the provision of energy efficiency to the Parent, and the provision of services in connection with the import of goods by third parties.

At December 31,2018 the balance maly relates to a balance payable to Green Yellow Colombia S.A.S. and Green Yellow do Brasil Energia arising

from the provision of energy efficiency to the Parent and to CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuicdo— CBD (*) and the provision of services in connection
with the import of goods by third parties.
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(5) At December 31,2018 the balance payable mainly relates to balances with Financiera Itati CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda., arising from credit

management expenses.

(*) At December 31,2019, and as result of the takeover bid mentioned in Note 1, (a) CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuicio - CBD ceased as a subsidary
to become the Company's controlling entity, and (b) Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. ceased as the controlling entity to become a company of the Casino

Group.
Note 24. Trade payables and other accounts payable

The balance of trade payables and other accounts payable is as follows:

December 31,
2019
Suppliers (1) (2) 3,859,345
Costs and expenses payable (2) 378,537
Employee benefits (2) 238,232
Tax withholdings payable 60,851
Purchase of assets (2) 41,447
Taxes collected payable (2) 46,074
Dividends payable (2) 8,205
Acquisition of companies (2) -
Other (1) (2) 30,110
Total currenttrade payables and other accounts payable 4,662,801
Other (2) 114
Total non-currenttrade payables and other accounts payable 114

December 31,
2018 (1)

11,165,524
449,734
819,985
67,831
212,719
54,078
54,781
33,550
258,872

13,117,074

40,720
40,720

(1) (1)The figures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arising from the retrospective application of IFRS 16 -
Leases, adopted as of January 1, 2019. Adjustment to these accounts arises from the reclassification to lease liabilities of fixed-payment liabiliies

under lease agreements. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(2) The decrease is because the liabilities of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigao — CBD were not included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassiied

to non-current liabilities held for trading.

Note 25. Lease liabilities

The Parent and its subsidiaries started to apply IFRS 16 - Leases as of January 1, 2019. As mentioned in the financial statements at the closing of

December 31, 2018, this standards requires recognizinga use right-related asset and a lease liability.

The Parent and its subsidiaries elected to apply the standard retrospectively, as if it had been applied from the start date of all lease agreements, to

disclose comparable effects for each reporting period.

The balance of lease liabilities is as follows:

December 31,
2019
Lease liabilities (1) 1,530,231
Current 222,177
Non-current 1,308,054

December 31,

2018
5,435,708

858,349
4,577,359

(1) The decrease is because the liabilities of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consdidated financia
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified

to non-current liabilities held for frading.

Below is a forecast of lease liabilities-related fixed payments at December 31,2019:

Up to one year 389,591
From 1to5years 1,167,759
More than 5 years 1,107,789
Minimumlease liability payments 2,665,139
Future financing (expense) (1,134,908)
Total minimum net lease liability payments 1,530,231
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Note 26. Income tax

Note 26.1. Tax regulations applicable to the Parent and to its Colombian subsidiaries

Income tax requlations in force applicable to the Parent and its Cdombian subsidiaries:

a.

The income tax rate for legal entities is 33% for2019, 32% for taxable 2020, 31% for taxable 2021 and 30% from taxable 2022 onwards.
For 2018 the income tax rate applicable was 33%.

The income tax surcharge levied on domestic companies was eliminated for 2019.

For 2018, the income tax surcharge for domestic companies was 4% applicable on taxable profits higher than $800.

For 2019, the taxable base to assess the income tax under the presumptive income model is 1.5% of the net equity held on the last day of the
immediately preceding taxable period; for taxable 2020 the base will be 0.5% and 0% as of taxable 2021.

For 2018, the taxable base to assess the income tax under the presumptiveincome model was 3.5% of the net equity held on the last day of the
preceding taxable period.

Comprehensive inflation adjustments were eliminated for tax purposes as of 2007, and the tax on occasional gains was reinstated ata current rate
of 10%, payable by legal entities on total occasionalgains obtained during the taxable year.

A tax on dividends paid to individuals residentin Colombia was established as of 2019 at a rate of 15%, triggered when the amount distributed is
higher than 300 UVT ($10 for 2019) when such dividends have been taxed upon the distributing companies. For domestic companies, non-resident
individuals and foreign companies, the tax rate is 7.5% when suchdividends have been taxed upon the distributing companies. When the earnings
that give rise to dividends have not been taxed upon the distributing company, the tax rate applicable to sharehddersis 33% for 2019, 32% for 2020,
31% for 2021 and 30% as of 2022.

A tax on dividends paid to individuals residentin Colombia was established as of 2020 at a rate of 10%, triggered when the amount distributed is
higher than 300 UVT ($11 for 2019) when such dividends have been taxed upon the distributing companies. For domestic companies thetax rate is
7.5% when such dividends have been taxed upon the distributing companies. For non-resident individuals and foreign companies, the tax rate is
10% when such dividends have been taxed upon the distributing companies. When the earnings that give rise to dividends have not been taxed
upon the distributing company, the tax rate applicable to shareholdersis 32% for 2020, 31% for 2021 and 30% as of 2022.

During 2018, a tax on dividends paid to individuals resident in Colombia was levied at a rate of 5% triggered when the amount distributed was
between 600 UVT ($20 for 2018) and 1000 UVT ($33 for 2018) and 10% on higher amounts when such dividends have been taxed upon the
distributing companies. For non-resident individuals and foreign companies, the tax rate is 5% when such dividends have been taxed upon the
distributing companies. When the earnings that give rise to dividends have not been taxed upon the distributing company, the tax rate applicable to
shareholders is 35%.

As of 2017 the tax base adopted is the accounting system pursuart to the accounting technical rules framework in force in Colombia, set forthby
Law 1314 of 2009 in line with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) officially translated and authorized by the Internationd
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), regulated in Cdombia by Regulatory Decree 2450 of 2015, "Single Regulatory Decree on accounting, financial
reporting and information assurance standards", amended on December 23, 2015 by Regulatory Decree 2496, on December 22,2016 by Regulatory
Decree 2131 and on December 22, 2017 by Regulatory Decree 2170, and updated on December 28, 2018 by Regulatory Decree 2483 and on
December 13, 2019 by Regulatory Decree 2270 with certain exceptions regarding therealization of revenue, recognition of costs and expenses and
the accounting effects of the opening balance upon adoption of these standards.

The tax on financial transactions is a permanent tax. 50% of this tax is tax-deductible.

As of 2019, taxes, levies and contributions actually paid during the taxable year or periodare 100% deductibleif they are related with the company's
economic activity including fees paid to business associations.

50% of the industry and trade tax can be taken as a tax discount for taxable 2019 to 2021. 100% can be taken as a tax discount as of 2022.
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Regarding contributions to employee education, payments meeting the following conditions shall be deductible as of 2019: (a) devoted for
scholarships andeducation forgivable loans to the benefit of employees, (b) payments to programs or care centers for the children of employees and
(c) payments to primary, secondary, technical, technological and higher education institutions.

j- VAT on the acquisition, formation, construction or import of productivereal fixedassets may be discounted from the income tax as of 2019.

k. As of 2019, the income withholding tax on payments abroad is 20% on consultancy services, technical services, technical assistance, professional
fees, royalties, leases and compensations, and 33% for management or administration services.

As of 2020 the income tax withholding rate on payments abroad is 0% for services such as consultancy, technical services or technical assistance
provided by third parties with physicalresidence in countries with which Coombia has entered double-taxation agreements.

I As of 2019, taxes paid abroad shall be deemed tax discounts during the taxable year of payment, or during any subsequent taxable period.
m. The annual adjustmentapplicable at December 31, 2019 to the cost of movable assets and real estate deemed fixed assets is 3.36%.

Tax credits of the Parentand its Colombian subsidiaries

Pursuant to tax regulationsin force as of 2017, the ime limit to offset tax losses s 12 years following the year in which theloss was incurred.

Excess presumptive income over ordinary income obtained as of taxable 2007 may be offset against ordinary net income assessed within the following
five (5) years.

Company losses are not transferrable to shareholders. In no event tax losses arising from revenue other than income and occasional gains, and from
costs and deductions not directly related with the generation of taxable income, will be offset againstthe taxpayer's net income.

Pursuant to sections 188 and 189 of the Tax Code, at December 31,2019 the Parentand its subsidiary Marketplace Internacional Exito y Servicios SAS.
assessed theirincome tax liability using the presumptive income method.

Pursuant to sections 188 and 189 of the Tax Code, at December 31, 2019 subsidiaries ExitoIndustrias S.A S., Logistica, Transporte y Servicios Asociados
S.A.S., Depositos y Soluciones Logisticas S.A.S., Almacenes Exito Inversiones S.AS. and Exito Viajes y Turismo S.A.S. assessed their income tax
Ilablllty using the ordinary income method.

(@) Parent's tax credits

At December 31, 2019 the Parenthas accrued $506,677 (December 31, 2018 - $445,924) excess presumptive income over netincome.

The development of the Parent's excess presumptive income over net income during de annual period ended December 31, 2019 is as folows:

Balance at December 31,2018 445,924
Excess presumptive income generated during the period 61,416
Adjustment to excess presumptive income for previous periods (663)
Balance at December 31,2019 506,677

At December 31, 2019, the Parent has accrued tax losses amounting to $643,898 (December 31, 2018 $624,344).

The development oftax losses at the Parentduring the annua period ended December 31,2019 is as follows:

Balance at December 31,2018 624,344
Offsettingagainst taxable incomegenerated during the period 4,910
Adjustment to tax losses from prior periods 14,644
Balance at December 31,2019 643,898
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(b) Tax credits of Colombian subsidiaries

At December 31, 2019 Colombian subsidiaries have not accrued excess presumptiveincome over net income (December 31, 2018 - $4,681). The
detail of excess presumptiveincome over netincome is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Exito Industrias S.AS. - 4,663
Almacenes Exito Inversiones S.A.S. - 18
Total - 4,681
The development of excess presumptive income over net income of Colombian subsidiaries during de annual period ended December 31, 2019 is
as follows:
Balance at December 31,2018 4,681
Almacenes Exito Inversiones S.A.S. (18)
Exito Industrias S.AS. (4,663)

Balance at December 31,2019 -

At December 31, 2019, Colombian subsidiaries have accrued tax losses amounting to $57,038 (December 31, 2018 - $58,185). The detalil of tax
losses is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Gemex O&W S.A.S. 29,391 21,677
Exito Industrias S.A.S. 27,460 36,508
Marketplace Internacional Exito y Servicios S.A S. 106 -
Depdsito y Soluciones Logisticas S.A.S. 81 -
Total 57,038 58,185

The development of tax losses at Colombian subsidiaries during the annua period ended December 31,2019 is as folows:

Balance at December 31,2018 58,185
Gemex O&W S.A.S. 7,714
Marketplace Internacional Exito y Servicios S.AS. 106
Deposito y Soluciones Logisticas S.A.S. 81
Exito Industrias S.AS. (a) (9,048)
Balance at December 31,2019 57,038

(a)Represents $4,429 adjustmert to tax losses from prior periods, less offsettingin amount of ($13,477).

Closing of tax retums

As of 2017 and up to 2019, the general term to close tax returnsis 3 years, and 6 years for taxpayers required to report transfer pricing information. Tax
returns where tax losses are assessed will be closed in 12 years and those including offsetting of tax losses will be closedin 6 years.

As of 2020 the general statute of limitations for income tax returnsis 3 years, and for taxpayers required to file transfer pricing information and for retums
giving rise to loss and tax offsetting is 5 years.

For the Parent, the income tax returns for 2018, 2017 and 2016 showing tax losses and a balance receivable are open for review during 12 years as of
filing of the balance receivable; the incometax for equality CREE return for 2016 wheretax losses a balancereceivable were assessed is openfor review
during 12 years as of filing of the balance receivable.

For subsidiary Exito Industrias S.A.S., the income tax returns for 2018 and 2017, where tax losses were offset and a balance receivable was accrued are
open for review during 6 year as of the filing of the balance receivable; the income tax return for 2016 where tax losses and a balance receivable were
assessed is open for review during 12 years as of filing of the balance receivable; the income tax for equality CREE return for 2016 where tax losses and
a balance receivable were assessed is open for review during 12 years as of filing of the balancereceivable; the income tax returns for 2014 and 2015
and the tax for equality CREE returns for 2014 and 2015 where tax losses and a balance receivable were assessed, are open for review during 5 years
as of filing of the balance receivable.
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For subsidiary Exito Inversiones S.A.S., the income tax retums for 2018, 2017 and 2016, where a balance receivable was accrued are open for review
during 3 year as of the filing of the balance receivable; the income tax return for 2015 where tax losses and a balancereceivable were assessed is open
for review during 5 years as offiling of the balance receivable; the income tax for equality CREE return for 2016 where a balance receivable was assessed
is open for review during 3 years as of filing of the balance receivable; the tax for equality CREE returns for 2015where tax losses and a balance receivable
were assessed, are open forreview during 5 years as offiling of the balance receivable.

For subsidiary Gemex O8E S.A.S., the income tax retums for 2018, 2017 and 2016 showing tax losses and a balance receivable are open for review
during 12 years as of filing of the balance receivable; the income tax for equality CREE return for 2016 is open for review during 12 years as of filing of
the balance receivable. The income tax for equality CREE returns for 2014 and 2015 are open forreview during 5 years as of the filing date.

For subsidiary Logistica, Transporte y Servicios Asociados S.A.S., the income tax returns for 2018 and 2017 where tax losses were offset and resutted
in a balance receivable are open for review for 6 years as of filing of the balance receivable; theincome tax returnfor 2016 where tax losses and a balance
receivable were assessed is open for review for 12 years as of filing of the balance receivable; the income tax return for 2015 where tax losses and a
balance receivable were assessedis open for review for 5 years as of filing of the balance receivable; the income tax for equality CREE return for 2016
showing a balance receivable is open for review for 12 years as of filing of the balance receivable; the income tax for equality CREE return for 2015
showing a balance receivable is openfor review for5 years as of filing of the balance receivable.

For subsidiary Exito Viajesy Turismo S.A.S., the income tax returns for 2018 and 2017 are open for review during 3 years as of filing date; the income
tax return and the income tax for equality CREE return for 2016 were tax losses were offsetis open forreview during 6 years as of filing date; the income
tax returns and income tax for equality CREE returns for2014 and 2015 are open for review during5 years as of filing date.

For subsidiary Marketplace Internacional Exitoy Servicios S.A.S., the income tax review for 2018 is open for review during 3 years as of filing date.

Tax advisors and management of the Parent and its subsidiaries are of the opinion that no additiona taxes will be assessed, other than those carried at
December 31, 2019.

Transfer pricing

Parent transactions with its controlling entity and foreign related parties have been carried out in accordance with the arm's length principle as if they
were independent parties, as required by Transfer Pricing provisions set out by domestic tax regulations. Independent advisors updated the transfer
pricing survey as required by tax regulations, aimed at demonstrating that transactions with foreign related parties were carried out at market values during
2018. For this purpose, the Parent filed an information statementand has the mentioned survey available as of July 11, 2019.

Foreign controlled entities

Under the special regime applicable toforeign subsidiaries that are investment vehicles, as of 2017 the standard sets out that passive revenue obtained
by such vehicles must be included in the year of accrual and notin the yearof effective distribution of profits.

Note 26.2. Tax regulationsapplicable to foreign subsidiaries
Tax regulations in force applicable to foreign subsidiaries foresee the following income tax rates:

- Subsidiaries domiciled in Uruguay apply a 25% rate;
- Subsidiaries domiciled in Argentina apply a 35% rate.
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Note 26.3. Current tax assets and liabilities

The balances of currenttax assets and liabilities recognized in the statement of financial position are:

Current tax assets
December 31,
2019
Income tax balance receivable by Parentand its Colombian subsidiaries (2) 200,696
Tax discounts applied by the Parentand its Colombian subsidiaries (3) 72,239
Industry and trade tax advances and withholdings of Parentand its
Colombian subsidiaries 47,067
Other current tax assets of subsidiary Spice Investment MercosurS.A. 6,098
Tax discounts of Parent from taxes paid abroad 3,738
Current income tax assets of subsidiary Onper Investment2015 S.L. (4) 2,935
Current income tax assets of subsidiary Spice Investments Mercosur S.A. (5) 639
Other current tax assets of subsidiary Onper Investment2015 S.L. (6) 438
Other current tax assets of subsidiary Onper Investment2015 S.L. (7) -
Total currenttax assets (1) 333,850

December 31,
2018

154,686

23,375
29,913
285

4,067
4,613
507,351
724,290

(1) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasilera de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financia
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified

)

to non-current assets held for trading.

The income tax balance receivable of the Parent and its Colombian subsidiariesis comprised of:

December 31,
2019
Income tax withholdings (a) 222,888
Tax discounts 5,653
Less income tax (expense) (Note 26.4) (27,845)
Total income tax balance receivable 200,696

December 31,
2018

207,294

11,892
(64,500)
154,686

(@) Includes the net of income tax payable and balances receivable and taxes withheld applicable to the Parent's and its Colombian subsidiaries'

income tax.

Tax discounts applied by the Parentand its Colombian subsidiaries are as follows:

December 31,
2019
Industry and trade tax 51,281
VAT on productive real assets 20,609
Other 349
Total tax discounts applied bythe Parent and its Colombian subsidiaries 72,239

The balance of current income tax of subsidiary Onper Investment 2015 S.L., related with subsidiaries of the Argentina segment, is comprised of:

December 31,
2019
Current income tax assets 7,598
Current income tax liabiliies (4,663)
Total 2,935

The balance of current income tax assets of subsidiary Spice Investments MercosurS.A. is comprised of:

December 31,
2019
Current income tax assets 2,902
Current income tax liabiliies (2,263)
Total 639

December 31,
2018

5,532
(1,465)
4,067

Balance of other currenttaxes of subsidiary Onper Investment2015 S.L., related with subsidiaries of the Argentina segment.

Balance of other currenttaxes of subsidiary Onper Investment2015 S.L., related with subsidiaries of the Brazil segment.

75



Current tax liabilities

Industry and trade tax payable ofthe Parentand its Colombian subsidiaries
Taxes of subsidiary Onper Investment 2015 S.L. other than income tax (2)
Taxes of subsidiary Spice Investments Mercosur S.A. other than income tax
Tax on real estate of the Parent and its Coombian subsidiaries

Taxes of subsidiary Onper Investment 2015 S.L. other than income tax (3)
Income tax of subsidiary Onper Investment2015 S.L. (4)

Total currenttax (liabilities) (1)

(1) The decrease is because the liabilities of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consdidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified

to non-current liabilities held for frading.

December 31,
2019

68,200
3,040
1,471

199

72,910

(2) Balance of taxes of subsidiary Onper Investment 2015 S.L., related with subsidiaries of the Argentina segment.

(3) Balance of taxes of subsidiary Onper Investment2015 S.L., related with subsidiaries of the Brazil segment.

(4) Balance of current income tax liabilities of subsidiary Onper Investment 2015 S.L related with subsidiaries of the Brazil segment. The balance is

comprised of:

Current income tax liabiliies
Current income tax assets
Total

December 31,
2018

53,023
6,131
648
1,530
204,847
32,520
298,699

December 31,

2018

(106,835)
74,315
32,520
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Note 26.4. Incometax

The reconciliation of accounting income totaxable (loss), and the tax expense estimation are as fdlows:

Earningsbefore income tax

Add

Non-deductible taxes

Non-deductible expenses

Tax on financial transactions

Fines, penalties and litigation

Receivables written-off

Taxes taken on and revaluation

Net income - recovery of depreciation of fixed assets sold
Non-deductible inventory losses

Reimbursement of deduction of income-generating fixed assets arising from the sale of assets
Selling price of fixed assets held less than two years

Less

Effect of accounting results of foreign subsidiaries (1)

IFRS adjustments with no tax effects (1) (2)

Goodwill tax deduction, in addition to the accounting deduction

Recovery of provisions

Tax-exemptdividends received from subsidiaries

Deduction additional 30% on salaries paid to apprentices hired at Company will
Disabled employeededuction

Donation to food banks

Derecognition of gain from the sale of fixed assets reported as occasional gain
Cost of sales of fixed assets held less thantwoyears

Netincome
Offsettingof taxlosses and excess presumptive income
Total net income after offsetting

Presumptive income of the Parent and of certain Colombian subsidiariesfor the current period

Netincome forthe current period of certain Colombian subsidiaries
Net taxable income
Income tax rate

Subtotal income tax (expense)
Occasional gains tax (expense)
Income tax surcharge

Tax discounts

Total income tax (expense)

Taxrevenue prioryear

Total income tax (expense) of the Parent and its Colombian subsidiaries
Total currenttax (expense) of foreign subsidiaries

Total currentincome tax (expense)

January 1to
December 31,
2019

171,134

37,475
24,106
10,526
4,927
3,245
1,653
468

38

(119,316)
(71,629)
(23,832)

(4,304)
(3,987)
(1,740)
(1,665)
(1,420)
(135)

25,544
(13,544)
12,000
61,416
24,211
85,627
33%

(28,257)

412

(27,845)

(237)
(28,082)
(48,175)
(76,257)

January 1to
December 31,
2018 (1)

142,119

427
46,616
8,270
1,611
5,381
50,488
27,794
315
33,798
25,147

1,504
(16,089)
(14,585)
148,743
17,147
165,890
33%

(54,744)
(3,625)
(6,504)

373

(64,500)

2,286
(62,214)
(34,382)
(96,596)

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to the "Effect of accounting results of foreign subsidiaries" account arises from the recognition of the
effect of the application of this IFRS on the results of subsidiaries. The effect on the "IFRS adjustments with no tax effects" account is explained

under (2) below in this Note 26.4.
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(2) IFRS adjustments with no tax effects are:

January 1to

December 31,
2019

Accounting provisions 76,121
Taxed leases 50,067
Taxed dividends of subsidiaries 49,610
Other accounting expenses with no tax effects (a) 49,156
Exchange difference, net 17,630
Untaxed dividends of subsidiaries 3,987
Taxed actuarial estimation 2,938
Net results using the equity method (159,949)
Non-accounting costs for tax purposes (30,163)
Higher tax depreciation overaccounting depreciation (52,551)
Recovery of provisions (39,690)
Excess personnel expenses for tax purposes over accounting
personnel expenses (34,760)
Other accounting (not for tax purposes) (revenue), net (3,488)
Non-deductible taxes (508)
Non-deductible fines and penalties (29)
Total (71,629)

January 1to
December 31,
2018 (a)

78,242
74,227
65,819
33,790
36,973
27,739

2,289
(396,749)
(26,221)
(45,941)
(56,002)

(40,727)
(26,362)
(3,129)

(276,052)

(@) The figures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arising from the retrospective application of IFRS 16 -
Leases, adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to this account results from the tax effect from the non-deductibility of depreciation of
use rights and the financial cost of lease liabilities. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

The components of the income tax expense recognized in the statement of income are:

January 1to

December 31,
2019
Current income tax (expense) (76,257)
Deferred income tax revenue (Note 26.5) (1) 52,961
Total income tax (expense) (23,296)

January 1to
December 31,
2018 (1)

(96,596)
152,395
55,799

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,

adopted as of January 1,2019. Differences are detailed in Note 52.
A detail of the current tax expense of foreign subsidiaries is as follows:

January 1to

December 31,
2019
Uruguay (44,336)
Argentina (3,839)
Total currenttax (expense) (48,175)

January 1to
December 31,
2018

(34,462)
80
(34,382)

The estimation of the presumptive income of the Parentand of certain Colombian subsidiariesis as follows:

December 31,
2019

Net shareholders'equities 4,199,870
Less net shareholders' equities to be excluded (105,475)
Base shareholders' equities 4,094,395
Presumptive income 61,416
Add: Taxed dividends -
Total presumptiveincome 61,416

December 31,
2018

4,334,744
(85,766)
4,248,978
148,714
29
148,743
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The reconciliation of average effective tax rate to applicable tax rate is as follows:

December December
31, 31,
2019 Rate 2018 Rate

Earningsbefore income tax 171,134 142,119
Tax expense at applicable tax rate (56,474) (33%) (52,552) (37%)
Tax effectof tax rates leviedabroad (48,176) (28%) (34,382) (24%)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses to determine taxable loss (27,205) (16%) (65,950) (46%)
Tax effectof adjustment of current taxes from prior periods (237) (-%) 2,286 1%
Tax effect of untaxed revenue to determine taxable loss 65,792 38% 79,459 56%
Other tax effects from the reconciliation of accounting incometo tax expense 37,160 22% 67,321 47%
Tax effectof taxlosses 4,030 2% 61,995 44%
Tax effectfrom changes in taxrates 1,814 1% (2,378) (2%)
Total income tax (expense) revenue (23,296) (14%) 55,799 39%

Note 26.5. Deferred tax

The Parent and its subsidiaries recognize deferred taxes receivable or payable, arising from temporary differences representing a lower orhigher payment
of the current year income tax, estimated at expected recovery rates, providedthere is reasonable expectation that such differences will revert in future.
Should there be any deferred tax asset, an analysis will be made of whether the Parentand its subsidiaries will generate enough taxable income in future
that allow offsetting the asset, in full orin part.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are made as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31,2018 (1)
Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
assets liabilities assets liabilities

Lease liabilities (1) 509,927 - 474,641 -
Tax losses 198,834 - 196,376 -
Excess presumptive income 156,459 - 140,258 -
Tax credits 66,535 - 56,282
Other provisions 18,661 - 14,896 -
Other financial liabilities 4,913 - 2,850 -
Inventories 4,444 - 5,275 -
Trade and other receivables 3,371 - 4,113 -
Employee benefit provisions 1,736 - 3,642 -
Prepaid expenses 943 - 3,681 -
Financial liabilities 622 - 46,168 -
Investmentsin subsidiaries and joint ventures 308 - - (60,657)
Accounts receivable from related parties 128 - - (523)
Accounts payable to related parties 8 - 8,196 -
Other non-financial assets - - - (20)
Non-current assets held for trading - (294) 401 -
Other non-financial liabiliies - (2,725) 3,386 -
Intangible assets other than goodwill - (3,957) (7,654)
Construction in progress - (4,180) - (915)
Trade and other payables - (5,537) (1,209)
Real estate projects - (5,894) (12,372)
Land - (7,070) (9,623)
Other financial assets - (7,343) (37,331)
Other property, plantand equipment - (29,146) - (26,512)
Investment property - (35,671) - (9,517)
Buildings - (122,035) - (91,758)
Goodwill - (145,302) - (185,781)
Userights (1) - (444,594) - (409,357)
Total Parent 966,889 (813,748) 960,165 (853,229)
Colombian subsidiaries (1) 29,497 (32,907) 30,008 (28,947)
Total Colombia segment 996,386 (846,655) 990,173 (882,176)
Uruguaysegment 27,538 - 25,994 -
Argentina segment 8,373 (124,876) 5,076 (122,294)
Brazil segment (2) - - 196,928  (1,489,567)
Total 1,032,297 (971,531) 1,218,171 (2,494,037)
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The breakdown of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the three geographical segments (four in 2018) in which the Parentand its subsidiaries operations
are grouped is as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 (1)
Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Colombia segment 149,731 - 107,997 -
Uruguay segment 27,538 - 25,994 -
Argentina segment - (116,503) - (117,218)
Brazil segment (2) - - (1,292,639)
Total (1) 177,269 (116,503) 133,991 (1,409,857)

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to this account arises from the effects on deferredtax from the temporary difference resulting upon
recognition of use rights and lease liabilities. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(2) The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current liabilities held for frading.

The effect of the deferred tax on the statement of incomeis as follows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Deferred income tax 191,821 150,321
Deferred tax (expense) on occasionalgains (138,860) 2,074
Total deferredincometax revenue 52,961 152,395

The effect of the deferred tax on the statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
(Expense) from derivative financial instruments designated
as hedge instruments and other (1,383) (4,486)
Revenue (expense) from measurement of defined benefit plans 114 (40)
Total deferredincome tax expense (1,269) (4,526)

The reconciliation of the development of net deferredtax liabiities, between December 31,2019 and December 31, 2018 to the statement of income and
the statement of other comprehensive income is as follows:

January 1to

December 31,
2019
Revenue from deferred tax recognized in income for the period 52,961
(Expense) from deferred tax recognized in other comprehensive income for the period. (1,269)
Reclassification of the deferred tax to income for the period from discontinued operations. 1,082,395
Effect of the translation of the deferred tax recognized in other comprehensive income for the period (1) 202,545
Total increase in net deferred tax between December 31, 2019 and December 31,2018 1,336,632

(1) Such effect resulting from the translation at the closing rate of deferred tax assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries is included in the line item
"Exchange difference from translation" in other comprehensive income (Note 30).

No deferred tax assets generated by certain minor investments that showed losses during the current or prior periods have been recognized. The amount
of losses is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Other minor investments (7,628) (11,780)
Total (7,628) (11,780)

Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, for which no deferred tax liabilities have been recognized at
December 31, 2019 amountto $47,725 (December 31, 2018 - $53,361).
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Note 26.6. Effects of the distribution ofdividends onincome tax.

Pursuant to Colombian tax regulations in force, neither the distribution of dividends nor retained earnings influence the incometax rate.
Note 26.7. Non-current tax assets and liabilities

Non-current tax assets

At December31, 2018 the balance of non-current tax assets relates to taxes receivable of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuig&o - CBD, basicaly
the ICMS tax (Tax on the Movement of Goods and Services)and the Socia Security National Tax.

(2)The decrease is because the assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicio — CBD were not included in the consolidated financi
statements at December 31, 2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified to
non-current assets held for trading.

Non-current tax liabilities

A detailed balance by subsidiary is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Libertad S.A. 800 1,547
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo— CBD (1) - 395,467
Total 800 397,014

At December 31, 2019, the balance relates to taxes payable of subsidiary Libertad S.A. for federal taxes and incentive program by instalments.

At December31, 2019 the balance relates to taxes payable of subsidiaries Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD and Libertad S.A for federal taxes
and incentive program by instalments.

(1) The decrease is because the liabilities of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consdidated financial
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current liabilities held for frading.

Note 27. Other financial liabilities

The balance of other financial liabilities is as fdlows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Collections received on behalf of third parties (2) 99,887 131,326
Derivative financialinstuments (3) 15,334 1,770
Derivative financialinstruments designatedas hedge instruments (4) 20 9,473
Bonds issued (5) - 3,477,711
Total (1) 115,241 3,620,280
Current 114,871 1,037,191
Non-current 370 2,583,089

(1) The decrease is because the liabilities of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consdidated financia
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified
to non-current liabilities held for frading.

(2) The balance of collections received on behalf of third parties is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Exito Card collections (a) 39,619 44,860
Non-banking correspondent 26,075 47,340
Revenue received on behalf of third parties (b) 22,076 27,287
Direct trading (marketplace) 3,269 5,000
Other collections 8,848 6,839
Total 99,887 131,326

(a) Represents cdlectionsreceived from third parties related with Tarjeta Exito (Exito Credit Card), owned by Compafiiade Financiamiento Tuya
S.A. (Note 23).
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@)

(b) The balance relates to:

Collections received on behalf of third parties for hotel services, ground transportation, car rentals and reservation of air tickets as part of
the intermediation of Exito Viajesy Turismo S.A.S. as travel agency in amount of $19,341 (December 31, 2018 - 15,508).

- Collections received on behalf of third parties from Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A. and Mercados Devoto S.A. in amount of $2,621
(December 31, 2018 - $2,325).

- At December 31, 2018 it also included insurance premiums, extended warranties, telephone companies cell phone recharges and other
collections by subsidiary Companhia Brasileirade Distribuigéo - CBD on behalf of Financieraltai CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda.
inamount of $9,454.

Derivative financial instruments reflect the fair value of forward and swap contracts to cover the fluctuation in the exchange rates of liabilities in foreign
currency. The fair values of these instruments are estimated based on valuation models commonly applied by market participants who use variables
other than prices quoted, directly or indirectly perceptible for assets or liabilities. In the statement of financial position, the Parentand its subsidiaries
measure the derivative financial instruments (forward and swap) at fair value, on each accournting closing date.

The detail of maturities of these instruments at December 31, 2019 is as follows:

Derivative Less than 3 From3to 6 From 6 to 12 months More than 12 Total

EEEE— months months months

Forward 12,495 1,224 - - 13,719

Swap 282 721 242 370 1,615
15,334

The detail of maturities of these instruments at December 31, 2018 is as follows:

i Less than 3 From3to 6 From 6 to 12 months More than 12

Derivative months months months el

Forward 192 1,506 - - 1,698

Swap - 72 - - 72

1,770

Derivatives denominated as hedge instruments represent:

(@) At December 31, 2019 financia exchange transactions - swap transactions carried out by the Parent and its subsidiaries under contracts
executed with financial entties, whose purpose is the exchange, at specficintervals, of the difference between the amounts of fixed and variable
interest rates calculated in relation with an agreed-upon nominal principal amount, which turns variable rates into fixedrates and cashflows then
may be determined in local currency. The fair values of these instruments are determined based on valuation models commonly used by market
participants.

Swap transactions are used to hedge exchange and/or interestrisks of financial liabilities takento acquire property, plant and equipment. The
hedging ratio is one hundred percent (100%) of the hedged item, takenas the relevant financial liability, in whole or in part.

(b) AtDecember 31,2018 it also included the fair value of swap contracts for 100% of liabilities denominated in US Dollars at a fixed interest rate
of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo— CBD, exception made of DCCls (Direct consumer credits through an intemediary). The fair value is
measured by exchanging such instruments at a floating IDC rate. The term of these confracts equals that of the debt, and they hedge bath
principal and interests. The average annual IDC rate at December 31, 2018 was 6.42%.

The Parent and its subsidiaries document accounting hedging relationships and conduct efficacy testing from initial recognition and over the time of
the hedging relationship unti derecognitionthereof. No inefficacy has been identified during the periods reported.

At December 31, 2019, relates tothe following transactions:

Nature of risk Hedged Range of rates for Range of rates for
Hedging instrument hedged item hedged item hedge instruments Fair value
Financial Libor USD 1M + 2.22% 9.06% 20
Swap Interest rate and exchange rate  liabilities
20
The detail of maturities of these hedging instruments at December 31,2019 is as follows:
Less than 1 From1to 3 From 3 to 6 months From6to 12 More than 12 Total
month months months months
Swap - - 20 - - 20
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At December 31, 2018, relates tothe following transactions:

Nature of risk

Hedginginstrument hedged

Swap Interest rate
Swap Interest rate and exchange rate
Swap Interest rate and exchange rate

Hedged item

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities

The detail of maturities of these hedging instruments at December 31,2018 is as follows:

From1to 3
months
295

Less than 1
month
Swap -

From 3 to 6 months

2,752

Range of rates for Range of rates for
hedged item hedge instruments  Fair value
IBR 3M 5.1%-6.0% 6,890
Libor USD 1M +2.22% 9.06% 21
1.94% t0 9.80% IDC 2,562
9,473
From6to 12 More than 12
months months Total
4,975 1,451 9,473

(5) At December 31, 2018 subsidiary Companhia Brasieira de Distribuigdo — CBD issued bonds to strengthen working capital, and to maintain its cash
strategy and its debtand investment profile extension strategy. Bonds issued were not convertible, had no renegotiation clauses and were unsecured,
exception made of the issue of bonds by subsidiaries, which are endorsed by subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢do - CBD. Amortization

of bonds varies in accordance with the issue.

Subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD was required to maintain financial ratios related with issues released. Such ratios were
estimated based on consolidated financial information prepared pursuantto accounting principles adopted in Brazi, as follows: (i) netdebt (debt less
cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable) not to exceed net shareholders' equity); and (ii) net consolidated debt ratio/Ebitdaless than or
equal to 3.25. The subsidiary complied with such ratios at December 31, 2018.

The balance of other financial liabilities classified as currentand non-currentis as folows:

Collections received on behalf of third parties

Derivative financialinstuments

Derivative financialinstruments designatedas hedge instruments
Bonds issued

Total current

Derivative financialinstruments designatedas hedge instruments
Bonds issued
Total non-current

Note 28. Other non-financial liabilities

The balance of other non-financid liabilities is as follows:

Revenue received in advance (2)

Customer loyalty programs (3)

Advance payments under contracts and other projects
Instalments received under "plan resérvalo"
Repurchase coupon

Extended warranty (4)

Other (5)

Total other current non-financial liabilities (1)

Advance payments under contracts and other projects
Other (5)
Total other non-current non-financial liabilities (1)

December 31,
2019

99,887
14,964
20

114,871
370

370

December 31,
2019

81,763
27,106
9,056
230

85

118,240

669

669

December 31,
2018

131,326
1,770
8,022

896,073

1,037,191

1,451
2,581,638
2,583,089

December 31,
2018

256,885
48,636
7,256
647

176
15,712
9,423
338,735

721
11,236
11,963

(1) The decrease is because the liabilities of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consdidated financia
statements at December 31,2019, since this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been reclassified

to non-current liabilities held for frading.
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(2) Mainly relates to revenue received in advance from third parties on the sale of various products through means of payment, lease of premises and
strategic alliances.

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Gift card 61,854 57,199
Cafam comprehensive card 8,364 7,210
Exchange card 3,620 3,492
Data and telephone minutes purchased in advance 957 979
Fuel card 807 820
Lease of furniture (a) - 182,922
Other 6,161 4,263
Total 81,763 256,885

(@) AtDecember 31,2018 mainly related to advance payments from third parties on rental of gondola ends and luminous paper to display products
at subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribui¢&o - CBD.

(3) At December 31,2019 and at December 31, 2018 relates to customer loyalty programs “Puntos Exito” and “Supercliente Carulla” of the Parert;
“Hipermillas” of subsidiary Mercados Devoto S.A.; “Tarieta Mas” of subsidiary Supermercados Disco del Uruguay S.A. and "Club Libertad" of
subsidiary Libertad S.A. AtDecember 31,2018 it also included the programs “Puntos Exira” and “Pao de Acucar” of subsidiary Companhia Brasilera
de Distribuigéo — CBD.

The following are the balances of these programs included in the statement of financial position:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
"Hipermillas" and "Tarjeta Mas" programs 25,658 26,665
“Puntos Exito” and “Supercliente Carulla” programs 1,138 18,539
Club Libertad 310 513
“Meu Desconto” program (a) - 2,919
Total 27,106 48,636

(4) At December 31, 2018 mainly represented the extendedwarranty plan for customers granted by subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicéo -
CBD.

(5) At December 31, 2018 mainly represented the payment received by subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicao — CBD from "Allpark" under a
car parking serviceagreement.

Note 29. Share capital, treasury shares repurchased and premium on the issue of shares

At December 31, 2019 and at December 31,2018 the Parent's authorized capitd is representedin 530,000,000 common shares with a nominal value of
$10 (*) each; subscribed and paid-in capital amounts to $4,482; the number of outstanding shares is 447,604,316 and the number of treasury shares
reacquired is 635,835 valuedat $2,734.

(*) Expressed in Colombian pesos.

The rights attached to the shares are speaking and votingrights per each share. No privileges have been granted on the shares, nor are they restricted
in any way. Additionally, there are no option contracts on Parent shares.

The premium on placement of shares represents the higher value paid over the par value of the shares, and amounts to $4,843,466 at December 31,
2019 and at December 31, 2018. Pursuant to legal regulations, this balance may be distributed as profits upon winding-up of the company, or upon
capitalization of this value. Capitalization means the transfer of a portion of such premium to a capital account as result of the issue of a share-based
dividend.

Note 30. Reserves, Retained eamings and Other comprehensive income

Reserves

Reserves are appropriations made by the Parent's General Meeting of Shareholders on the results of prior periods. In addition tothe legal reserve, there
is an occasional reserve, a reserve for thereacquisition of shares and a reserve for payment of future dividends.
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Retained earnings

Retained earnings include the effect on shareholders' equity of the convergence to IFRS in amount of $1,070,002 resulting from the opening financial
statement prepared in 2014 under IFRS 1, included in the accounting and financial reporting standards accepted in Colombia, setout in Law 1314 of 2009
inline with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) officially translated and authorized by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
at December 31, 2014, regulated in Colombia by Regulatory Decree 2420 of 2015, "Single Regulatory Decree on accounting, financial reporting and
information assurance standards", amended on December 23, 2015 by Regulatory Decree 2496, on December 22, 2016 by Regulatory Decree 2131 and
on December 22, 2017 by Regulatory Decree 2170 and updated on December 28, 2018 by Reguatory Decree 2483 and on December 13, 2019 by
Regulatory Decree 2270.

Other accumulated comprehensive income

The balance of each component of other comprehensive income in the statement of financial position is as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Gross Gross Net
amount Taxeffect Netamount amount Taxeffect amount

Measurement of financial assets at fair

value through

other comprehensive income (1) (13,203) - (13,203) (7,200) - (7,200)
Measurement of defined benefit plans (2) (5,141) 1,546 (3,595) (4,760) 1,432 (3,328)
Translation exchange differences (3) (1,106,448 - (1,106,448) (597,914) - (597,914)
(Loss) from the hedgingof cash flows (4) (768) 571 (197) (5,978) 1,954 (4,024)
(Loss) from hedging of foreign

business investments (1,459) (1,459) - - -
Share of other comprehensive income of

associates and joint ventures accounted for

using the equity method (5) - - - (41,486) - (41,486)
Total otheraccumulated comprehensive
income (1,127,019 2,117 (1,124,902) (657,338) 3,386 (653,952)
(1) Relates to accumulated gains or losses arising from the valuation at fair value of investments in financial instruments through equity, less amounts

@

®)

transferred to retained earnings upon sale of such investments. Changes in fairvalue are notreclassified toincome for the period.

Represents theaccumulated value of actuarial gains or losses arisingfrom the Parent's and its subsidiaries' defined benefi plans. The netvalue of
the new measurementsis transferredto retained earnings and is not reclassified to income for the period.

Represents the accumulated value of exchange differences arising from the translation of assets, liabilities, equity and results of foreign operations
into the Parent's presentation currency. Accumulated translation differences are reclassified to period results upon disposition of the foreign
operation. Includes the effect of translating deferredtax assets and liabilities in amount of $202,545 (Note 26).

Represents the accumuatedvalue of the effective portion of gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of hedging instruments in a cash
flow hedging. The accumulated value of gains or losses is reclassified to period results only when the hedged transaction has an effect on period
results or a highly-likely transaction is not foreseen to occur, or is included, as part of the carrying value, in a non-financial hedged item.

Value allocated to the Parent of the other comprehensive income fromits investments in associates and joint ventures through directinvestment or
through subsidiaries.

Note 31. Revenue from ordinary activities under contracts with customers

The balance of revenue from ordinary activities under contracts with customers is as follows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 (1)
Retail sales (Note 46) 14,503,846 14,176,353
Service revenue (2) 604,070 551,639
Other ordinary revenue (3) 185,167 142,035
Total revenue from ordinary activities under contracts with customers 15,293,083 14,870,027

(1)

Amounts include the effect of the reclassification of retained earnings at November 30 andat December 31,2018 of subsidiaries Companhia Brasilera
de Distribui¢do - CBD and Gemex O & W S.A.S., respectively, to netincome for the period from discontinued operations.
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(2) The balance of service revenue relates to:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Lease of real estate 229,725 218,848
Distributors 106,241 106,519
Advertising 82,615 72,622
Lease of physical space 56,283 22,603
Commissions 29,586 28,055
Telephone services 27,562 30,937
Non-banking correspondent 20,149 17,970
Other revenue from the provision of services 18,494 19,814
Transport 18,206 13,098
Travel administration fees 8,047 6,513
Money transfer 7,162 7,483
Administrationof real estate - 7177
Total service revenue 604,070 551,639

(3) Other ordinary revenue relates to:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Involvementin collaborationagreement (a) 88,641 67,465
Exploitation of assets (b) 27,692 9,796
Royalty revenue 17,481 10,459
Marketing events 12,971 14,526
Other revenue from Latam strategic direction

(Note 38) 7,851 7,389
Revenue from financial services 3,020 2,389
Other 27,511 30,011
Total otherordinary revenue 185,167 142,035

(@) Relates to the invovementin the corporate collaborationagreement with Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A.

(b) Information for the annual period ended December 31, 2018 includes $18,038 relevant to indemnification received related with the acquistion
contract.

Note 32. Distribution expenses and Administration and sales expenses

The balance of administration and sales expenses is as follows:

January 1to January 1to

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 (1) (2) (3)
Depreciation and amortization (2) 369,341 372,784
Taxes other than income tax 210,822 258,879
Public utilities 203,141 186,634
Fuels and power 186,998 171,428
Advertising 150,927 154,191
Repairs and maintenance 132,401 123,677
Commissions on debitand credit cards 81,332 77,952
Transport 41,416 41,922
Packaging and marking materials 38,533 44,449
Administration of trade premises 35,007 34,072
Professional fees 26,316 27,042
Insurance 26,221 23,947
Outsourced employees 22,453 27,825
Leases (2) 19,812 10,779
Travel expenses 6,291 5,593
Other provisions expense 5,918 7,248
Legal expenses 4,264 4,388
Contributions and affiliations 439 1,623
Other 111,830 86,147

Total distribution expenses 1,673,462 1,660,580



(1) Asof January 1, 2019, based on reviews to Parent operations, certain items related with food preparation operating processes that until December
31, 2018 were shown as administration expenses and employee benefit expenses and that are related with mea preparation operating processes,
are carried under the cost of goods sold. Such items in amount of $58,656 were reclassfied in the fnancial statements at December 31, 2018 only
for comparison to the financial statements at December 31,2019. Such reclassification had no material effects on the gross profit.

The balance of administration and sales expenses is as follows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018(2) (3)
Depreciation and amortization (2) 81,188 66,392
Professional fees 54,297 55,662
Taxes other than income tax 52,420 47,870
Impairment expense 32,466 12,131
Repairs and maintenance 23,138 17,314
Public utilities 12,587 16,848
Outsourced employees 9,505 7,380
Fuels and power 8,907 8,300
Travel expenses 7,590 7,369
Insurance 6,599 5,018
Leases (2) 5,103 12,047
Administrationof trade premises 2,902 2,670
Contributions and affiliations 2,608 2,619
Transport 1,930 2,178
Legal expenses 786 911
Advertising 234 336
Packaging and marking materials 164 325
Other 26,820 16,176
Total administration and sales expenses 329,244 281,546

(2) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to these accounts is due to the recognition of depreciationof use rights and derecognition of fixed
expenses under lease agreements. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(3) Amounts include the effect of the reclassification of retained earnings at November 30 and at December 31, 2018 of subsidiaries Companhia Brasilera
de Distribuicdo - CBD and Gemex O & W S.A.S., respectively, to netincome for the period from discontinued operations.

Note 33. Employee benefitexpenses
The balance of employee benefitexpensesincurred by each significant categoryis as folows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 (1) (2)
Wages and salaries 1,025,633 1,016,758
Contributions to the social security system 34,006 34,850
Other short-term employee benefits 50,484 50,777
Total short-term employee benefit expense 1,110,123 1,102,385
Post-employment benefit expenses, defined contribution plans 92,246 105,897
Post-employment benefit expenses, defined benefit plans (3) (6,795) 307
Total post-employment benefit expenses 85,451 106,204
Termination benefit expenses 8,062 7,792
Other long-term employee benefits 93 (84)
Other personnel expenses 29,084 27,213
Total employee benefit expenses 1,232,813 1,243,510

(1) Asof January 1,2019, based on reviews to Company operations, certain items that until December 31, 2018 were shownas administration expenses
and employee benefit expenses, whichare related with food preparation operating processes, are being recorded under the cost of goods sold. Such
items in amount of $118,386 werereclassified in the financia statements at December 31, 2018 only for comparison to the financial statements at
December 31, 2019. Such redlassification had no material effects on the gross profit.

(2) Amounts include the effect of the reclassification of retained earnings at November 30 and at December 31, 2018 of subsidiaries Companhia Brasikera
de Distribuigdo - CBD and Gemex O & W S.A.S., respectively, to netincome for the period from discontinued operations.
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(3) During 2019, the Parentagreed with the employees on the elimination of the retirement pension-related bonus benefit, which resulted in a significant
change in post-employment benefits and defined benefit plans, showing a decrease of $6,684 at December 31, 2019.

Note 34. Other operating revenue, other operating expenses and other net gains (losses)

Other operating revenue, other operatingexpenses and other net gains include the effects of the most significant events occurred during the period which
would distort the Parent's and its subsidiaries' recurrent profitability analysis; these are definedas significant elements of unusual revenue and expense
whose occurrence is exceptional and the effects of the items that givenits nature are not includedin an assessment of recurring operating performance
of the Parent and its subsidiaries, such as imparment losses, disposal of non-current assets and the effect of business combinations, amongother.
The balance of other operating revenue, other operating expense and other net gains, is as fdlows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 (1) (2)

Other operating revenue
Recurring
Recovery of allowance for trade receivables 37,121 15,688
Reimbursement of ICA+elated costs and expenses 4,622 255
Recovery of other provisions related to civil lawsuits 2,484 2,566
Compensationfrominsurance companies 1,780 2,953
Recovery of other provisions 1,555 3,012
Recovery of other provisions related to labor lawsuits 946 1,582
Recovery of costs and expenses from taxes other than

income tax 50 1,911
Other recurring revenue 362 -
Total recurring 48,920 27,967
Non-recurring
Recovery of other provisions 3,033 41
Recovery of provisions related with reorganization processes 2,389 2,665
Total non-recurring 5,422 2,706
Total other operating revenue 54,342 30,673
Other operating expenses
Restructuring expenses (3) (34,544) (42,440)
Tax on wealth expense (13,463) (12,195)
Tax reorganizationexpense (4) (3,151) -
Provision for tax proceedingexpenses - (255)
Other expenses (5) (34,270) (11,744)
Total other operating expenses (85,428) (66,634)
Other net gains (losses)
Gain (loss) from the sale of property, plantand equipment (6)(5) 5,168 3,248
Derecognition of lease agreements (1) 989 177
Derecognition of propetty, plantand equipment (7) (11,871) (21,021)
Impairment (recovery) of non-current assets (8) (6,768) 2,386
Loss from disposal of other assets (675) (2,523)
Cost of sales for use rights (157) -
Gain from the sale of subsidiaries - 13,542
Gain from the sale of intangible assets - 35
Total othernet (losses) (13,314) (4,156)

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1, 2019. The adjustment to this accountis due to the recognition of revenue arising from the derecognition of use rights and
liabilities from the early termination of lease agreements. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(2) Amounts include the effect of the reclassification of retained earnings at November 30 and at December 31, 2018 of subsidiaries Companhia Brasikera
de Distribuico - CBD and Gemex O & W S.A.S., respectively, to netincome for the period from discontinued operations.

(3) Represents expenses arising fromthe provision in relation with the plan to restructure the Parent and its Colombian subsidiaries thatincludes the

acquisition of the operating excellence plan and corporate retirement plan in amount of $29,800 (December 31, 2018 - $38,169) and expenses
incurred under plan to restructure subsidiary Libertad S.A. in amount of $4,744 (December 31, 2018 - $4,271).
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(4) At December 31, 2019, represents expenses of subsidiaries Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A. in amount of $1,836 and Devoto Hermanos S.A. inamourt
of $1,315 for tax restructuring related with the correction of income tax and VAT payments of previous periods, as a result of adecision of the General
Tax Direction (DGl by its acronymin Spanish).

(5) At December 31, 2019, represents expenses from the restructuring of stores in amount of $2,012; expenses related with the Europa projectin amount
of $20,336; IRFS 6 - Leases implementation expenses in amount of $1,578; Bricks || project expenses in amountof $1,009 and expenses related
with the closure of stores in amount of $9,102.

At December 31, 2018 represents expenses incurred in the closure of shops and stores in amount of $3,172; reorganization of stores $1,592; advisory
expenses $754; expenses incurred in establishing real estate vehicles $463; provision for the closure of stores $5,432 and other minor expenses
$339.

(6) Mainly represents a gain from the sale of property, plant and equipment of subsidiary Libertad S.A. in amount of $4,038. At December 31, 2018
mainly represented a gain from the sale of property, plantand equipment of subsidiary Libertad S.A. in amount of $3,922 and to the loss from the
sale of buildings of the Parentin amount of $769.

(7) AtDecember 31, 2019 includes the closureof the following of Parent stores: Carulla Express Pontevedra $411, Surtimax Funza $97, Exito Castila
$69, Surtimax Metrocar $15 and Surtimax Calle 48 $12. It also includes derecognition of machinery and equipment and fumiture and fixtures,
improvements to leased property and computers arising from the physical count of inventories of properties, plant and equipmentin amount of $7,903;
derecognition of machinery andequipment, furniture and fixtures and computers arising from damage in amount of $779; derecognition of machinery
of the Parent's service stations in amount of $225; derecognition of machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, and computers arising from
casualty at Carlla La Mina and at other buildings in amount of $21; and derecognition of a building at Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercia Viva
Barranquilla in amount of $1,952

For 2018, includes the closure of stores Exito Barranquilla Alto Prado $3,007, Carulla Express OlayaHerrera $473, Surtimax San Carlos $389, Exito
Express Altos de la Carolina $319, Surtimax Los Olivos $309, Exito Express Ciudadela $291, EX|to Express Costade Oro $232, Exito Mini Barzal
$201, Exito Express Avenida 60 $196, Surtmax EI Real $184, Surtimax Ciudad Bolivar $167, Exito Mini Parque de las Cigarras $132, Exito Mini
Yerbabuena $121, Surtimax Olaya$587, Surtimax Villa Luz $77, Surtimax Torices $363 and Surtimax Baranoa $232. It also includes derecognition
of machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, improvements to third party properties and computers arising from the physical count of
inventories of property, plant and equipment, in amount of $11,105, and also includes the closure of five stores of the Uruguayan subsidiary
Merecados DevotoS.A.in amountof $1,799.

(8) At December 31, 2019 represents the goodwill impairment loss at subsidiary Gemex O&W S.A.S. in amount of $1,017; the property-related
impairment loss at Patrimonio Autonomo Viva Sincelejo in amount of $4,084 and at Patimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas in amount of $1,667. At
December 31, 2018 represents the impairment loss at the Parent related with computer software ($3,307); property impairment loss at subsidary
Mercados Devoto S.A. (2,818) and gain from recovery of property impairment loss at subsidiary DevotoHermanos S.A.in amount of $8,511.

Note 35. Financial revenue and expenses

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 (1) (2)

Gain from exchange difference (1) 333,578 51,680
Gain from derivative financial instruments 264,364 219,389
Revenue from interest, cashand cashequivalents 23,770 14,871
Other financial revenue 13,151 11,042
Total financial revenue 634,863 296,982
Loss from exchange difference (1) (402,335) (222,129)
Interest, loans and finance lease expenses (299,931) (318,156)
Loss from derivative financial instruments (250,183) (105,839)
Interest expense from lease liabiliies (1) (119,574) (124,134)
Net monetary position results, effect of the statement of

financial position (3) (25,281) (54,023)
Net monetary position results, effect of the statement of

income (3) (12,673) (10,741)
Commission expense (6,161) (4,724)
Other financial expenses (11,655) (10,328)
Total financial expenses (1,127,793) (850,074)

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted as of January 1,2019. The adjustmentto this account arises from the recognition of interest expense upon measurement of lease liabilies

using the effective interest method. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

(2) Amounts include the effect of the reclassification of retained earnings at November 30 and at December 31, 2018 of subsidiaries Companhia Brasikira
de Distribuigdo - CBD and Gemex O & W S.A.S., respectively, to netincome for the period from discontinued operations.

(3) Represents results arising from the net monetary position of the financial statements of subsidiary Libertad S.A.



Note 36. Share ofincome in associates and joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity method
The share of income in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity methodis as folows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. (5,905) 42,129
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. (4,218) (1,613)
Total (10,123) 40,516

Note 37. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are classified as basic and diluted. The purpose of basic earningsis to give a measure of the participation of each ordinary share of
the controlling entity in the Parent's perfornance during thereporting periods. The purpose of diluted earnings is to give a measure of the participation
of each ordinary share in the performance of the Parent taking into consideration the dilutive effect (decrease in earnings or increase in losses) of

outstanding potential ordinary shares during the period.

At December 31, 2019and at December 31,2018 the Parent has not carried out fransactions with potential ordinary shares, nor after the closing date or

at the date of release of these financia statements.

Below is information regarding earnings and number of shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per basic and dilutedshare:

In period results:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the controlling entity 57,602 253,168
Weighted average of the numberof ordinary shares attributable
to basic earnings per share (basic and diluted) 447.604.316 447.604.316
Earningsperbasic and diluted share attributable to
the shareholders of the controlling entity (in Colombian pesos) 128.69 565.61
January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Net period profit from continuing operations 147,838 197,918
Less: net income from continuing operations attributable to
non-controlling interests 109,433 94,380
Net profit from continuing operations
attributable to the shareholders of the controlling entity 38,405 103,538
Weighted average of the numberof ordinary shares attributable
to basic earnings per share (basic and diluted) 447.604.316 447.604.316
Earningsperbasic and diluted share from
continuing operations attributable to the shareholders of the
controlling entity (in Colombian pesos) 85.80 231.32

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Net period profit from discontinued operations 774,838 1,014,764
Less: net income from discontinued operations attributable to

non-controlling interests 755,641 865,134
Net profit from discontinued operations

attributable to the shareholders of the controlling entity 19,197 149,630
Weighted average of the numberof ordinary shares attributable

to basic earnings per share (basic and diluted) 447,604,316 447.604.316
Earningsperbasic and diluted share from

discontinued operations attributable to the shareholders of

the controlling entity (in Colombian pesos) 42.89 334.29
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January 1to

December 31,
2019
Net period profit from continuing operations 147,838
Weighted average of the numberof ordinary shares attributable
to basic earnings per share (basic and diluted) 447.604.316
Earningsperbasic and diluted share from
continuing operations (in Colombian pesos) 330.29

January 1to

December 31,
2019
Net period profit from discontinued operations 774,838
Weighted average of the numberof ordinary shares attributable
to basic earnings per share (basic and diluted) 447.604.316
Earningsperbasic and diluted share from
discontinued operations (in Colombian pesos) 1,731.08

In total period comprehensive income:

January 1to

December 31,
2019
Net (loss) attributable to the shareholders of the controlling entity (307,135)
Weighted average of the numberof ordinary shares attributable
to the basic (loss) per share (basicand diluted) 447.604.316
(Loss) per basic and diluted share in
total comprehensiveincome(in Colombian pesos) (686.17)

Note 38. Transactions with related parties

Note 38.1. Key management personnel compensation

January 1to
December 31,
2018

197,918
447.604.316

442.17

January 1to
December 31,
2018

1,014,764
447.604.316

2,267.10

January 1to
December 31,
2018

(400,938)

447.604.316

(895.74)

Transactions between the Parent and its subsidiaries and key management personnel, including legal representatives and/oradministrators, mainly relate

to labor agreements executed by and between the parties.
Compensationof key management personnel is as follows:

January 1to

December 31,
2019
Short-term employee benefits (1) (2) 75,707
Post-employment benefits 1,981
Termination benefits 374
Long-term employee benefits 1
Share-based paymentplan (1) -
Total 78,073

January 1to
December 31,
2018

148,574
1,728
1,752

55
22,849
174,958

(1) At December 31, 2018, key management compensation includes benefits granted to the employees of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de

Distribuigéo - CBD (¥).

(2) A portion of short-term employee benefits is reimbursedby Casino Guichard Perrachon S.A. () under a Latin American strategic direction sewice
agreement entered with the Parent. Revenue from Latam strategic direction was recognized during the annud period ended December 31,2019 in

amount of $7,851 (December 31,2018 - $7,389) as described in Note 31.

(*) At December 31,2019, and as result of the takeover bid mentioned in Note 1, (a) CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD ceased as a subsidary
to become the Company's contraling entity, (b) Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. ceased as the controling entity to become a company of the Casino

Group.
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Note 38.2. Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties relate to revenue from retail sales and other services, as well as to costs and expenses related to risk management and
technical assistance support, purchase of goods and services received.

The amount of revenue, costs and expenses arising from transactions withrelated partiesis as folows:

Revenue Costs and expenses

January 1to January 1to January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 2019 2018
Joint ventures (1) 111,594 90,662 98,029 39,920
Associates (2) 105,911 123,296 10,966 -
Grupo Casino companies (3) 20,212 3,600 130,557 80,568
Controlling entity (4) 1,359 8,268 - 68,274
Members of the Board - - 1,465 10,473
Total 239,076 225,826 241,017 199,235

(1) Revenue represents yields of bonds and coupons and energy with Compaiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A., $15,076 (December 31,2018 - $15,119);
involvement in the comorate collaborationagreement with Compariia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A., $88,641 (December31, 2018 - $67,465); kease
of property toCompariiade Financiamiento Tuya S.A., $5,272 (December 31, 2018- $4,417); other services provided to Compafiia de Financiamiento
Tuya S.A., $1,567 (December 31,2018 - $3,505) and to services provided to Puntos Colombia S.A.S., $1,038 (December31, 2018 - $156).

Costs and expenses represent the cost of the loyalty program and liability management paid to Puntos Colombia S.A.S. in amount of $94,569
(December 31,2018 -$37,826), and commissions on means of payment with Compaiiia de Financiamiento TuyaS.A inamount of $3,460 (December
31, 2018-$2,094).

(2) Revenue mainly comes from the reimbursement of expenses arising from the infrastructure contract, commissions on the sale of financial products
and lease of property, transactions carriedout with FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda, a financing company of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicgo -
CBD (*).

(3) Revenue mainly refers to sales of products to Distribution CasinoFrance, provisionof services to Casino International and to Greenyellow Energia
de Colombia S.A.S. and to a supplier centralized negotiation with Intemational Retail Trade and Services.

Costs and expenses mainly represent expenses incurred by Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigao - CBD (*) under the cost sharing agreement, and
to costs related with energy efficiency services received at the Parentand intermediationin the import of goods.

(4) At December 31, 2019 the revenue of the controlling entity represents reimbursement of personnel expenses received from Companhia Brasilera
de Distribuicdo — CBD (*). At December 31, 2018 revenue relates to a Latin America strategic direction service agreement entered with Casino
Guichard-Perrachon S.A (*).

At December 31, 2018 costs and expenses mainly represent the reimbursement of expenses incurred by professionals and companies of Grupo
Casino for the benefit of Companhia Brasieira de Distribuicdo - CBD (*) undera “cost sharing agreement’ and to costs incumed by the Parent for
consultancy and technical assistance services provided by Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. (*) and Geant International B.V.

(*) At December 31,2019, and as result of the takeover bid mentioned in Note 1, (a) CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD ceased as a subsidary

to become the Company's contraling entity, (b) Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. ceased as the controling entity to become a company of the Casino

Group.

Note 39. Impairment of assets

Note 39.1. Financial assets

No material losses from the impairment of financial assets were identified at December 31, 2019 and at December 31,2018. Note 8 contains information
related to the development ofimpairment of trade receivables

Note 39.2. Non-financial assets
At December 31, 2019
The book value of the groups of cash-generating units is made of the balances of goodwill, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, other

intangible assets other than goodwill, net working capital items and finance leaseliabiliies associatedwith working capital items; for subsidiaries domicied
in Uruguay, Argentina and Argertina represents the equity value of such subsidiaries plus the goodwill balances.
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For the purposes of mpairment testing, the goodwill obtained via business combinations, trademarks andthe rights to exploit trade premises withindefinte
useful lives were allocated to the following groups of cash-generating units:

Groups of cash-generating units
Exito  Carulla  Surtimax (1)  Stperinter Todo hogar Surtimayorista (1) Uruguay(2) Argentina (3) Total

Goodwill 90,674 856,495 37,402 464,332 1,017 4174 1,303,092 173582 2,930,768
;Ii'fr:demams with indefinite useful 17427 63,704 92,732 46,060 219,923
Rights with indefinite useful life 19,856 - 1,524 5,606 - - - 48 27,034

(1) Even if trade establishments allocated to Surtimayorista cash-generating unit do not have goodwill acquired through business combinations, this
value allocated for the purpose of impairment testing results from the change of stores in the Surtimax format to this new format; goodwill allocated
to trade establishments of the Surtimax cash-generating unit comes from the business combination in 2007 under the merger with Carulla Vivero
S.A. as disclosed in Note 16.

(2) Note 16 discloses a detail of the goodwill allocated to Spice Investments Mercosur S.A., Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A., Mercados Devoto SA.5
Hermanos Ltda., TipselS.A,, TedocanS.A.and Ardal S.A.

(3) The goodwill generated from the business combination for the acquisition of the operation of Libertad S.A. is detailed in Note 16. Trademarks with
indefinite useful life and rights with indefinite useful life are detailed in Note 16.

The method used for testing was the value in use given the difficulty of finding an active market that enables establishing the fair value of such intangie
assets.

The value in use was estimated based on the expected cash flows as forecasted by management over a five-year period, on the grounds of the piice
growth rate in Colombia (Consumer Price Index - CPI), trend analyses based on historic results, expansion plans, strategic projects toincrease sales and
optimization plans; in addition, for the Argentina segment a forecast period of 10 years was used to more reasonably reflect management's futue
perspectives.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period were inferred using a real growth rate of 0%. Accordingto the Parent, thisis a conservative approach that reflects
the ordinary growth expected for the industry in absence of unexpectedfactors that mightinfluence growth.

The tax rate included in theforecast of cash flowsis the rate at which the Parent expects to pay its taxes duringthe next years. The rate used to estimate
the impairment of goodwill of the Exito, Carulla, Surtimax, Stper Inter, Todo Hogar and Surtimayorista cash-generating units was 32% for 2020, 31% for
2021 and 30% for 2022 onwards, rates in force in Colombia at December 31, 2019.

For goodwill allocated to the Uruguay cash-generatingunit, the tax rate used was 25%. For goodwill allocated to the Argentina cash-generating unt, the
tax rate used was 25%.

Expected cash flows were discounted at the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) using a market indebtedness structure for the type of industry
where the Parent operates; as a result, theweighted average cost of capital (WACC) used in the valuation was 8.6% for 2020, 7.9% for 2021 and 8% for
2022 onwards.

The weighted average cost of capital (WACC) used inthe valuation of the goodwill allocated to the Uruguay cash-generating unit was 11.9%. The weighted
average cost of capital (WACC) used in the valuation of the goodwill allocated to the Argentina cash-generating unit was 63% for 2020, 44% for 2021,
38.7% for 2022, 34% for 2023, 28.7% para 2024, 26.8% for 2025, 24.7% for 2026, 21.7% for 2027, 19.7% for 2028 and 16.7% for 2029 onwards.

The variables that have the greater impact on the detemination of the value in use of the cash-generating units are the discountrate and the perpetua
growthrate. These varables are defined as follows:

(@) Growth rate in perpetuity: The estimation of the growth rateis based on the price growth expectations for the country pursuant to published market
surveys, reason why a reduction in the rate below the expected rate is not deemed reasonable, given that the units' cashflows are expected to gow
to the same level or even 1% above the genera price increase in the economy.

(b) Discount rate: The estimation of the discount rate is based on an analysis of the market indebtedness for the Parent; a change is deemed reasonable
if the discount rate would increase by 1.00%, in which event no impairmentin the value of the groups of cash-generating units would arise.

No impairment in the carrying amount of the groups of cash-generating units was found as a result of this analysis, exception made of the balance of
investmentin Gemex O&W S.A.S., which wasimpaired in $1,017 properly carried with charge to income as detailed in Note 34.
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The method used to testthe impairment of investment properties owned by the Parentand its subsidiaries that are stand-alone trust funds (patrimonios
auténomos) was the revenue apprachgiven its proximity to the fair value of such real-estate property. The result of comparing the result of such testing
to the carrying amounts, was an impairmentin investment properties and in property, plant and equipment of Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo and
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas in amount of $4,084 and $1,667, respectively. The detail of such impairmentis described in Note 13 and in Note 14.

At December 31, 2018

At December 31, 2018 the Parent completed the annual impairment testing by cash-generating units, which is duly supported in the financial statements
at the closing of such year. No impaiment of the carrying amounts of the groups of cash-generating units resulted from this analysis.

However, at September 30,2018 as part of the current modernization process of certain technological platforms, the Parent tested for imparment certain
computer software. Based on the analyses conducted, it was identified that such assets show a high degree of obsolescence, they are useless for the
operation, do not provide economic benefit and additionally the estimated remaining useful life does nat reflect the expected time for realization of the
asset. Consequently, the recoverable value of such assets was defined as $0, and the Parent recognized a $3,307 impairment loss in its financial
statements.

Note 40. Fair value measurement

Below is a comparison of book values and fair values of financial assets and liabilities and of non-financial assets and liahilities of the Parent and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2019 and at December31, 2018 on a periodic basis as required or permitted by an accounting policy; financial assets and
liabilities whose carrying amounts are an approximation of fair values are excluded, considering that they mature in the short term (in less than or up to
one year), namely: trade receivables and other debtors, trade payables and other creditors, callections on behalf of third parties and short-tem financl
liabilities.

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Financial assets
Trade receivables and other accounts receivable atamortized cost 37,018 34,859 36,130 34,064
Investmentsin private equity funds (Note 12) 1,295 1,295 1,201 1,201
Forward contracts measuredat fair value through
income (Note 12) 11,914 11,914 38,675 38,675
Swap contracts measured at fair value through
income (Note 12) 11,443 11,443 74,866 74,866
Derivative swap contracts denominated as hedge instruments
(Note 12) 476 476 75,296 75,296
Investment in bonds (Note 12) 41,524 39,602 40,899 39,983
Investment in bonds throughother comprehensive income (Note 12) 14,521 14,521 13,183 13,183
Equity investments (Note 12) 10,393 10,393 260 260
Non-financial assets
Investment property (Note 14) 1,626,220 2,309,328 1,633,625 2,276,252
Property, plant and equipment, and investment property held
for trading (Note 48) 37,928 37,928 61,696 61,696
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and finance leases (Note 20) 280,815 281,403 6,617,283 6,632,224
Put option (1) (Note 20) 379,538 379,538 435,023 435,023
Bonds and trade papers issued (Note 27) - - 3,477,711 3,432,042
Swap contracts denominated as hedge instruments
(Note 27) 20 20 9,473 9,473
Forward contracts measuredat fair value through
income (Note 27) 13,719 13,719 1,698 1,698
Derivative swap contracts measured at fair value through
income (Note 27) 1,615 1,615 72 72
Non-financial liabilities
Customer loyalty liability (Note 28) 27,106 27,106 48,636 48,636
(1) The development of the put option measurement during the period was:
Balance at December 31,2018 435,023
Changes in fair value recognizedin investments (55,485)
Balance at December 31,2019 379,538
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Assets
Loans at amortizedcost

Investmentsin private equity funds
Forward contracts measuredat fair value

through income

Swap contracts measured at fair value
through income

Derivative swap contracts denominated as
hedge instruments

Equity investments

Investment in bonds

Hierarchylevel

Level 2

Level 1

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Level 1

Level 2

Valuation
technique

Discounted cash
flows method

Unit value

Peso-US Dollar
forward

Operating cash
flows forecast
model

Discounted cash
flows method

Market quote
prices

Discounted cash
flows method

Description of thevaluation technique

Future cash flows are discountedat present value using the marketrate
for loans under similar condions on the date of measuremert in
accordance with maturity days.

The value of the fund unit is given by the preclosingvalue forthe day,
divided by the total number of fund units at the closing of operations for
the day. The fund administrator appraises the assets daily.

The difference is measured between the forward agreed- upon rate and
the forward rate on the date of valuation relevant to the remainingterm
of the derivative financia instrument and discountedat present vaue
using a zero-coupon interestrate. The forward rateis determinedbased
on the average price quoted for the two-way closing price ("bid" and
"ask").

The method uses swap cashflows, forecasted using treasury security
curves of the State thatissues the cumrency in which each flow has been
expressed, forfurther discountat present value, using swap market
rates disclosedby the relevant authorities of each country. The
difference between cash inflows and cash outflows represents the swap
net value at the closing under analysis.

The fair value is calculated based on forecastedfuture cash flows of
transactions using IDC curves and discounting them at present value,
using swap IDC marketrates, both as displayed by BM&F Bovespa.

The fair value of such investments is determined as reference to the
prices listed in active markets if companies are listed; in all other cases,
the investments are measured at the deemed cost as determined in the
opening balance sheet, considering that the effectis immaterial and that
carrying out a measurement using a valuation technique commonly used
by market participants may generate costs higher than the value of
benefits.

Future cash flows are discountedat present value using the marketrate
for investments under similar conditions on the date of measurement in
accordance with maturity days.

Significant input data

Commercial rate of banking institutions forconsumption
receivables without credit card for similar term horizons.
Commercial rate for VIShousingloans forsimiar term horizons.
N/A

Peso/US Dollar exchange rate set outin the forward contract.
Market representative exchange rate on the date of valuation.
Forward points of the Peso-US Dollar forward market on the date
of valuation.

Number of days between valuation date and maturity date.
Zero-coupon interest rate.

Reference BankingIndex Curve (RBI) 3 months.
Zero-coupon TES curve.

Swap LIBOR curve.

Treasury Bond curve.

CPI 12 months

IDC curve
IDC rate for swaps

N/A

CPI 12 months + Basis points negotiated
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Assets

Investment property

Investment property

Investment property

Investment property

Non-current assets classified as held for
trading

Hierarchylevel

Level 1

Level 3

Level 3

Level 3

Level 2

Valuation
technique

Comparison or
market method

Discounted cash
flows method

Realizable-value
method

Replacement
cost method

Realizable-value
method

Description of thevaluation technique

This technique invdves establishing the fair value of goods froma
survey of recent offers or transactions for goods that are simiar and
comparable to those being appraised.

This technique provides the opportunity to identify the increase in
revenue over a previously defined period of theinvestment. Property
value is equivalent to the discounted value of future benefits. Such
benefits representannual cash flows (both, positive and negative)over a
period, plus the net gain arising from the hypothetical sale of the
property at the end of the investment period.

This technique is used wherever the property is suitable for urban
development, applied froman estimation of total sales of a project under
construction, pursuant to urban legal regulations in force and in
accordance with the fina saleable asset market.

The valuation method consists in calculating the value of a brand-new
property, built at the date of the report, having the same quality and
comforts as thatunder evaluation. Such value is called replacement
value; then an analysisis made of property impairment arising from the
passing of time and the careful or careless maintenance the property
has received, which is called depreciation.

This technique is used wherever the property is suitable for urban
development, applied from an estimation of tota sales of a project under
construction, pursuantto urban legal regulations in force and in
accordance with the find saleable asset market.

Significant input data

N/A

Weighted average cost of capital
Growth in lessee sales
Vacancy

Growth in revenue

Realizable value

Physical value of building and land.

Realizable Value
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Liabilities
Financial liabilities and finance leases
measured at amortized cost

Swap contracts measured at fair value
through income

Derivative instruments measured at fair
value through income

Derivative swap contracts denominated as

hedge instruments

Customer loyalty liability

Bonds issued

Lease liabilities

Put option

Hierarchylevel

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Level 3

Level 2

Level 2

Level 3

Valuation
technique

Discounted cash
flows method

Operating cash
flows forecast
model

Peso-US Dollar
forward

Discounted cash

flows method

Market value

Discounted cash
flows method

Discounted cash
flows method

Given formula

Description of the valuation technique

Future cash flows are discountedat present vaue using the marketrate
for loans under similar conditions on the date of measurement in
accordance with maturity days.

The method uses swapcashflows, forecasted using treasury security
curves of the State thatissues the cumrency in which each flow has been
expressed, forfurther discountat present value, using swap market
rates disclosedby the relevantauthorities of each country. The
difference between cash inflows and cash outflows represents the swap
net value at the closing under analysis.

The difference is measured between the forward agreedupon rate and
the forward rate on the date of valuation relevant to the remainingterm
of the derivative financid instrument and discountedat present vaue
using a zero-coupon interestrate. The forward rateis determinedbased
on the average price quoted for the two-way closing price ("bid" and
"ask").

The fair value is calculated based on forecasted future cash flows of
transactions using market curves and discounting them at present value,
using swap marketrates.

The customer loyalty liability is updated in accordance with the point
average market value for thelast 12 months and the effect of the
expected redemption rate, determined on eachcustomer transaction.

Future cash flows are discountedat present vaue using the marketrate
for bonds in similar conditions on the date of measurementin
accordance with maturity days.

Future cash flows oflease contracts are discounted using the market
rate for loans in similar conditions on confract startdate in accordance
with the irrevocable minimum term.

Measured at fair value using a given formua under an agreement
executed with non-controlling interests of Grupo Disco, usinglevel 3
input data.

Significant input data

Reference BankingIndex (RBI) + Negctiated basis points.
LIBOR rate + Negotiated basis points.

Reference BankingIndex Curve (RBI) 3 months.
Zero-coupon TES curve.

Swap LIBOR curve.

Treasury Bond curve.

CPI 12 months

Peso/US Dollar exchange rate set outin the forward contract.
Market representative exchange rate on the date of valuation.
Forward points of the Peso-US Dollar forward market on the
date of valuation.

Number of days between valuation date and maturity date.
Zero-coupon interest rate.

Swap curves calculated by Forex Finance

Market Representative Exchange Rate (TRM)

Number of points redeemed, expired and issued.
Point value.
Expected redemption rate.

CPI 12 months

Reference BankingIndex (RBI) + basis pointsin accordance
with risk profile.

Net income of Supermercados Disco del Uruguay S.A. at 31
December 2014 and 2015

US Dollar-Uruguayan peso exchange rateon the date of
valuation
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Valuation
Hierarchylevel technique Description of the valuation technique Significant input data

Liabilities
US Dollar-Colombian peso exchange rateon the

date of valuation
Total shares Supermercados Disco del Uruguay S.A

Material non-observable input data and a valuation sensitivity analysis on the vauation of the "put option contract' refer to:

Sensitivity ofthe input data

Material non-observable inputdata Range (weighted average) on the estimation of the fair value
Put option Net income of Supermercados Disco del Uruguay S.A. at Asignificant increase in any of input
December 31, 2019 $102,115 data severally considered would resutt
Ebitda of Supermercados Disco del Uruguay S.A., consolidated in a significantly higher measurement
over 12 months $146,837 of the fair value.
Net financial debt of Supermercados Disco del Uruguay S.A.,
consolidated over 6 months ($131,523)
Fixed contract price $454,431
US Dollar-Uruguayan peso exchange rate on the date of
valuation $37.31
US Dollar-Colombian pesoexchangerate on the date of valuation $3,277.14
Total shares Supermercados Disco del Uruguay S.A. 443.071.575
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The Parent identifies whether transfers between fair value hierarchy levels have occurred, through a change in valuationtechniques, in sucha way thet
the new measurement is the most accurate picture of thenew fairvalue of the appraised asset or liability.

Changes in hierarchies may occur if new information is available, certain information usedfor vauation is no longer available, there are changes resuting
in the improvement of valuation techniques or changes in market conditions.

There were no transfers betweenlevel 1 and level 2 hierarchies during the year.

Note 41. Contingentassets and liabilities

Note 41.1. Contingent assets

No material contingent assets have been recognized by the Parentand its subsidiaries at December 31,2019 and at December 31,2018.

Note 41.2. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities at December 31, 2019 and at December31, 2018 are:

(@) The following proceedings are underway, seeking that the Parentbe exempted from paying the amounts claimedby the complainant entity:

Administrative discussion with DIAN amounting to $27,360 (December 31, 2018 - $18,483) regarding notice of special requirement
112382018000126 of September 17, 2018informing of a proposal to amend theincome tax return for 2015.

- Resolutions by means of which the District Tax Direction of Bogota issued to the Company an official revision settlement of the industry and
trade tax for the bimonthly periods 4, 5 and 6 of 2011 on the grounds of alleged inaccuracy in payments, in amount of $11,830 (December 31,
2018-$11,830).

Resolutions issued by the District Finance Direction of Bogota by means of which the industry and trade tax return of the Company for the
bimonthly periods 2, 3,4, 5 and 6 of 2012 wereamended on the grounds of allegedinaccuracy in payments in amount of $5,000 (December 31,
2018 - $5,000).

Official assessment No. 212 of June 19, 2019 issued by the Official Sub-directorate of the Cundinamarca Governor's Office, by means of which
such authority defined an official return regarding consumption of beers, siphons, refajos and beer mixtures with less than2.5 degrees of alcohd
for the period January to December 2016 and levied a penalty of $4,099 (December 31,2018) on the grounds of not having filed the return.

- Claim on the grounds of failure to comply with confract conditions, asking for damages arising from the purchase-sale of a property in amount
of $2,600 (December 31, 2018 - $-).

- Resolutions by means of which a penalty was imposed on the grounds of inadequate offsetting of the Carulla Vivero S.A. 2008 income taxin
amount of $1,088 (December 31,2018 - $1,088).

- Resolution and official assessment imposing penalties on the Parent on the grounds of errors in the self-assessment of contributions to the
Social Security Systemin amount of $940 (December 31,2018 - $940).

(b) Other proceedings:

Parent's third-party liability lawsuit amounting to $1,800 (December 31, 2018 - $1,531) for alleged injuries to a customerat Exito Santa Matta
store premises.

(c) Other contingent liabilifies:

On June 1, 2017 the Parent granteda guaranteeon behalf of its subsidiary Aimacenes Exito Inversiones S.A.S. in amount of $2,631 to cover a
potential failure to comply with its obligations with one of its main suppliers.

- On August 15, 2019 and October 31, 2018 subsidiary Exito Viajes y Turismo S.A.S. issued guarantees in amount of $341 and $1,634,
respectively, to certain suppliers to protect against potential failure in issuing travel tickets. Guarantees issued amounted to $1,838 at
December31, 2018.

These contingert liabilities, whose nature is that of potential liabilities, are not recognizedin the statement of financial position; instead, they are disclosed
inthe notes to the financial statements.
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Note 42. Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Below is a detail of financial assets and liabilities that are shown offsetin the statement of financial position:

Gross value of
related financial

Gross value of liabilities Net value of
financial assets recognized financial assets

Year Financial assets recognized recognized
2019 Derivative financialinstruments and hedging (Note 12) (1) - - 23,833
2018 Derivative financialinstruments and hedging (Note 12) (1) - - 188,837

Gross value of

Gross value of related financial Net value of
financial liabilities assets recognized financial liabilities

Year Financial liabilities recognized recognized
2019 Derivative financialinstruments and hedging (Note 27) (1) - - 15,354
Trade payables and other accounts payable (2) 1,369,121 139,438 1,229,683
2018 Derivative financialinstruments and hedging (Note 27) (1) - - 11,243
Trade payables and other accounts payable (2) 1,216,651 106,614 1,110,037

(1) The Parent and its subsidiaries camy out derivative transactions and enter hedging “foward" and "swap" contracts to hedge against fluctuation in
exchange rates and interestrates on accounts payable and financial liabilities. Such items are measured at fair value. Note 40 discloses the far
value of these financial instruments. For 2019, the valuation of derivative financial instruments comprises intrinsic value plus temporary value, reason
why right and obligation may not be individualized.

(2) The Parent and its subsidiaries have executed offsetting agreements with suppliers, arising from the acquisition of inventories. Such items are
included in trade payables.

No uncleared amounts related to collateras or other financial instruments have been recognized in the Parent's and its subsidiaries' statement of financial
position.

Note 43. Dividends declared and paid

At December 31, 2019

The Parent's General Meeting of Shareholders held on March 27, 2019, declareda dividend of $139,706, equivalentto an annual dividend of $312.12 per
;ggge (*), payable in four quarterly instaliments and enforceable between the sixth and tenth working day of April, July and October 2019, and Januay
(*) Expressed in Colombian pesos.

Dividends paid during the annual period ended December 31,2019 amounted to$131,967.

Dividends declared and paid during the annual periodended December 31, 2019to the owners of non-confrollinginterests in subsidiaries are as folows:

Dividends Dividends

declared paid
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo - CBD (*) 90,225 5,870
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls 20,834 20,834
Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A. 20,222 19,019
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio 7,564 7,998
Exito Viajes y Turismo S.A.S. 3,831 3,831
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial 3,522 4,466
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Laureles 1,566 1,638
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Viva Barranquila 1,476 3,355
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo 1,392 1,772
Patrimonio Auténomo San Pedro Etapa | 1,243 1,418
Total 151,875 70,201

(*) At December 31,2019, and as result of the takeover bid mentioned in Note 1, (a) CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD ceased as a subsidary
to become the Company's contrdling entity, (b) Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. ceased as the controling entity to become a company of the Casino
Group.
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At December 31, 2018

The Parent's General Meeting of Shareholders held on March 23, 2018, declareda dividendof $108,857, equivalentto an annual dividend of $243.20 per
share (*), payable in four quarterly instalments and enforceable between the sixth and tenth working day of April, July and October 2018, and Januay
2019.

(*) Expressed in Colombian pesos.

Dividends paid during the annual period ended December 31,2018 amounted to$87,072

Dividends declared and paid during the annual period ended December 31, 2018 to the owners of non-contrdling interests in the following subsidiaries
are:

Dividends Dividends

declared paid
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo - CBD (*) 157,393 184,497
Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A. 22,310 12,024
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio 7,894 4,900
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial 2,704 1,878
Exito Viajes y Turismo S.A.S. 2,457 2,457
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo 2,316 1,919
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls 2,223 10,123
Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial Viva Barranquila 2,017 2,817
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Laureles 1,617 1,557
Patrimonio Autonomo San Pedro Etapa | 1,028 802
Exito Industrias S.A.S. 76 76
Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Palmas - 604
Total 202,035 223,654

(*) At December 31,2019, and as result of the takeover bid mentioned in Note 1, (a) CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD ceased as a subsiday
to become the Company's contraling entity, (b) Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. ceased as the controling entity to become a company of the Casino
Group.

Note 44. Leases

Note 44.1. Finance leases when theParent and its subsidiaries are the lessees

The Parent and its subsidiaries have executed finance lease agreements on property, plant and equipment. Total minimum instaments and present
values thereof under finance lease agreements are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Up to one year 3,819 3,932
From 1to5years 6,784 10,628
Minimuminstalmentsunderfinance leases 10,603 14,560
Future financing expense (570) (1,223)
Total net minimum instalments on finance leases 10,033 13,337

No contingent instalments were recognized in income during the period.
Note 44.2. Operating leases when the Parent and its subsidiaries are the lessees

At December 31,2018 the Parent and its subsidiaries had operating leases as lessee, mainly related with trade premises, vehicles and machinery. During
2019, such lease contracts were accounted for as required by IFRS 16, which was refrospectively adopted as of January 1,2019.

Contracts that continue to be recognizedas operating leases relate to leases whose underlying assets are low-cost assets, such as furniture and fixtures,
computers, machinery and equipment and office equipment, lease contracts regarding all underlying assets withterms of less than one year, and lease
contracts on intangible assets, which were excepted from the requirements of IFRS 16. Lease of stores with a variable rental instalment are aso
recognized as operatingleases and are excepted from the requirements of IFRS 16.

At December 31, 2019the lease expense and costarising from the operating lease contracts recognized in income amountedto $23,831 (December 31,
2018 - $35,725).
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Note 44.3. Operating leases when the Parent and its subsidiaries are the lessors

The Parent and its subsidiaries have executed operating lease agreements on investment properties. Total future minimuminstalments underirrevocable
operating lease agreements for the reporting periods are:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Uptoone year 150,683 164,310
From 1to 5 years 207,459 177,057
More than 5 years 241,973 216,218
Total minimum instalments underirrevocable operating leases 600,115 557,585

The Parent and its subsidiaries made an analysis and concluded that operating lease agreements may not be cancelled during its term. Prior agreement
of the parties is needed to terminate, and a minimum cancellation payment is required rangingfrom 1 to 12 monthly instalments, or a fixed percentage on
the remaining term.

At December 31, 2019 revenue from leases recognized in income amounted to $286,008 (December 31, 2018 - $241,451) including revenue from the
lease of investment property in amount of $244,318 (December 31, 2018 - $239,851). Contingent instalments included in the revenue from leases
amounted to $157,869 (December 31, 2018 - $153,730).

Note 45. Seasonality of transactions

The Parent's and it susbsidiaries' operation cycles indicate certain seasonality in operating and financia results; for the Parent and its Colombian
subsidiaries, there is a concentration during the last quarter of the year, mainly because of Christmas and "Special Price Days", which is the second most
important promotional event of the year; forforeign subsidiaries there is a concentration during the first half of the year, mainly arising from carnivals and
Easter, and during the last quarter of the year, because of Christmas.

Note 46. Information on operating segments

For organizational andmanagement purposes, until September 30, 2019 the parentand its subsidiaries are focused on seven operating segments divided
in four geographic segments, namely Colombia (Exito, Carulla, Surtimax-Super Inter and B2B), Brazil (Food), Uruguay and Argentina. For each of these
segments there was financial information that was used on an ongoing basis by senior management for making decisions on the operations, allocation of
monetary resources and strategic approach.

As a result of the decision to sell the shares held by the Parent in subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD, as mentioned in Note 1.2,in
future the Brazil operation will notbe deemed an operating segment. Additionaly, this subsidiary was sold on November 27, 2019.

Total assets and liabilities by segmentare not specifically reported internally for management purposes and consequently they are not disclosed in the
framework of IFRS 8 - Operatingsegments.

As result of the above, reportable segments include development of the following activities:

Colombia:

- Exito: The most significant products and services in this segment come solely from retailing activities, with stores under the banner Exito.

- Carulla: The most significant products and services in this segment come solely from retailing activities, with stores underthe banner Carulla.

- Surtimax-Super Inter: The most significant products and services in this segment come solely from retailing activities, with stores under the banners
Surtimax and Sdper Inter.

- B2B: The most significant products and services in this segment come solely from retaiiing activities in B2B format and with stores under the banner
Surti wholesaler.

Argentina:

- The most significant products and services in this segment come solely from retailing activities in Argentina, with stores under the banners Libertad
and Mini Libertad.

Uruguay:

- The most significant products and services in this segment come solely from retailing activities in Uruguay, with stores under the banners Disco,
Devoto and Géant.

Accounting policies of segments being reported are the sameas the Parent's accounting policies described in Note 4.

The Parent discloses information by segment pursuant to IFRS 8 - Operating segments, which are defined as a component of an entity with separate
financial information assessed by senior management on an ongoing basis.

102



Retail sales by each of the segments for the annual periods ended December 31, 2019 and December31, 2018 are as follows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,
Geographic segment Operating segment 2019 2018

Colombia Exito 7,644,593 7,258,985
Carulla 1,552,076 1,519,237
Surtimax-Super Inter 1,200,891 1,290,234
B2B 632,283 535,155
Argentina 925,062 1,036,864
Uruguay 2,554,885 2,544,430
Total sales 14,509,790 14,184,905
Eliminations (5,944) (8,552)
Consolidated total (Note 31) 14,503,846 14,176,353

Below is additional information by geographic segment:

At December 31, 2019

Colombia Argentina (1) Uruguay(1) Total Eliminations (2) Total
Retail sales 11,029,843 925,062 2,554,885 14,509,790 (5,944) 14,503,846
Trade margin 2,757,850 329,853 869,860 3,957,563 (3,457) 3,954,106
Total recurring expenses  (2,197,115) (310,611) (682,409) (3,190,135) 3,536 (3,186,599)
ROI 560,735 19,242 187,451 767,428 79 767,507
Recurring Ebitda 1,007,467 34,172 238,064 1,279,703 79 1,279,782

At December 31, 2018

Colombia Argentina (1) Uruguay(1) Total Eliminations (2) Total
Retail sales 10,603,611 1,036,864 2,544,430 14,184,905 (8,552) 14,176,353
Trade margin 2,630,181 385,099 868,617 3,883,897 (3,449) 3,880,448
Total recurring expenses  (2,127,177) (351,630) (682,312) (3,161,119) 3,450 (3,157,669)
ROI 503,004 33,469 186,305 722,778 1 722,779
Recurring Ebitda 933,607 46,102 235,489 1,215,198 1 1,215,199

(1) Forinformation reporting purposes, non-operating companies (holding companies thathold interests in the operating companies) are allocated by
segments to the geographic area to which the operatingcompanies belong. Shoud a holding company hold interests in various operating companies,
itis allocated to the most significant operating company.

(2) Relates to the balances of transactions caried out between segments, which are eliminated in the process of consolidation of financial statements.

Note 47. Financial risk management policy

The Parent's and its subsidiaries' financial instruments are classifiedaccording toits nature, features and the purpose for which they have been acquied
orissued.

The Parent and its subsidiaries maintain instruments measured at fair value through income, with the purpose of holding them for investment or risk
management in the case of derivativefinancial instruments not classified as cash flow hedge instruments.

The Parent and its subsidiaries use derivative financial instruments justas a positive defense measure againstidentified risks. Total underlyingassets
and liabilities under financial instrument contracts are limited to the amount of actual assets and liabilities entailing an underlying risk. The only purpose
of transactions with financial derivative instrumentsis to reduce the exposure to fluctuation of interestrates and foreign exchange rates and maintain a
proper structure of the financial position.
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At December 31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018 the Parent's and its subsidiaries' financial instruments are representedby:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) 2,562,674 5,973,680
Trade receivables and other accounts receivable (Note 8) 414,231 1,135,551
Accounts receivable fromrelated parties (Note 10) (1) 55,044 160,036
Other financial assets (Note 12) 91,566 895,279
Total financial assets 3,123,515 8,164,546
Financial liabilities

Accounts payable to related parties (Note 23) (1) 80,995 236,698
Trade payables and other accounts payable (Note 24) 4,662,915 13,157,794
Financial liabilities (Note 20) 660,353 6,924,670
Lease liabilities (Note 25) 1,530,231 5,435,708
Other financial liabilities (Note 27) 115,241 3,620,280
Total financial liabilities 7,049,735 29,375,150
Net (liability) exposure (3,926,220) (21,210,604)

(1) Transactions with related parties refer to transactions between the Parentand its associates, joint ventures and other related parties, and are canied
in accordance withmarket general prices, terms and conditions.

Considerations of riskfactors thatmay influence the Parent'sbusiness

General risk management framework

The Parent has implemented a Comprehensive Risk Management system that covers the various risk managementlevels: strategic, tactic or business-
related and operating.

Activities, roles and accountabiliies are defined in the risk management model implemented by the Parent and endorsed by the Auditand Risk Commitee,
in the context of risk policy guidelines.

During 2019 an amendment to the strategic risk matrix was submitted for consideration based on the updating of the Parent's strategy, whichresulted in
changes in risk categories, creation of an additional category related with compliance with the protection of personal data and changes in the matrix
qualification. Risks at this level were reviewed by the Auditand Risk Committee and endorsedby the Board of Directors.

Inaccordance with such control architecture, controls have been implemented at all levels, processes and areas of the Parent, through a set of defined
principles, regulations, procedures and verification and assessment mechanisms.

Some of the monitoringmechanisms put in place to achieve control purposes are:

- The self-control program, which allows a self-assessment of the most critical risks and key contrds, carried out half-yearly by process leaders, ad
a definition of corrective action plans wherever deviations are identified.

- A compliance process from which the system for the prevention and control of money-laundering and the financing of terrorism, the transparency
program and the system for protection of personal data are managed in a comprehensive manner.

- Periodic risk managementreports.

- And all other control systems managed from the various processes that make the first and second defense line.

Risk management and internal contra system reporting bodies:

- Atastrategic level: Board of Directors, Audit and Risk Committee, Presidency Committee and Senior Management Committee.
- Atatactic level: Business responsible parties and Risk Internal Committee.

- Atanoperating level: Process owners through self-control.

Internal audit, in an independent and objective mamner, conducted a risk-based assessment focused on compliance with business goals, focused on
improving risk management, control and governance for the Parent's most significant processes, systems and/or projects.

The Board of Directors, through the Audit and Risk Committee, supervised information and financial reporting processes; risk management comprehensive
management; internal control system and architecture, including monitoring of Internal Audit's and Statutory Audit's activities; compliance with rues
applicable to the Parent, transparency program, personal data protection system and system for the prevention and control of money-laundering and
financing or terrorism. Also, transactions among related parties and the resolution of conflicts of interests between senior management and the Board of
Directors were submitted to the consideration of the Audit Committee.

Financial risk management
Besides derivative instruments, the most significant of the Parent's financial liabilties include debt, finance lease liabilities and interest-bearing loans, trade

accounts payable and other accounts payable. The main purpose of such liabiliiesis financing Parent's and its subsidiaries' operations and maintaining
proper levels of working capital and net financia debt.
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The most significant of the Parent's and its subsidiaries' financial assets include loans, trade debtors and other accounts receivable, cash and shorttem
placements directly resulting from day-to-day transactions. The Parent and its subsidiaries also have other investments classified as financial assets
measured at fair value, which, according to the business model, have effects in income for the period or in other comprehensive income. Further, other
rights may arise from transactions with derivative instruments and will be carried as financialassets.

The Parent and its subsidiaries are exposed to market, creditand liquidity risks. Parent's and its subsidiaries' management monitor the way such risks
are managed, through the relevant bodies of the organization designed for such purpose. The scope of the Board of Directors' activities includes a
financial committee that oversees such financial risks and the financial risk management corporate framework that is most appropriate. The financia
committee supports Parent's and its subsidiaries' management in that financial risk assumption activities fall within the approved corporate policies and
procedures framework, and that suchfinancial risks are identified, measured and managed pursuant to such comporate policies.

Financial risk management related to all transactions with derivative instruments is carried out by teams of specidists with the required skills and
experience who are supervised by the omganizational structure. Pursuant to the Parent's and its subsidaries' corporate policies, no transactions with
derivative instruments may be carried out solely for speculation. Even if accounting hedge models not always are applied, derivatives are negotiated
based on an underlying element that in fact requires such hedging in accordance with internal analyses.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees on the policies applicable to manage each of theserisks, which are summarized below:

a. Creditrisk
A credit risk is the risk that a counterpart fails to comply with his obligations taken on under a financial instrument or trade agreement, resulting in
financial loss. The Parentand its subsidiaries are exposed to creditrisk arising from their operating activities (particularly from trade debtors) and

from their financial activities, including deposits in banks and financial insfitutions and other financia instruments. The book value of financia assets
represents the maximum exposure tocreditrisks.

Cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk arising from balances with banks and financial entities is managed pursuant to corporate policies defined for such purpose. Surplus
funds are only invested with counterparties approved by the Board of Directors and within previously established jurisdictions. On an ongoing besis,
management reviews the general financial conditions of counterparties, assessing the most significant financial ratios and market ratings.

Trade receivables and other accounts receivable

The credit risk associated with trade receivables is low giventhat most of the Parentand its subsidiaries sales are cash sales (cashand credit cards)
and financing activities are conducted under trade agreements thatreducethe Parent's and its subsidiaries' exposure to risk. In addition, there ae
administrative collections departments that permanently monitor ratios, figures, paymentbehaviors and risk models by each third party.

There are no trade receivables thatindividually are equivalent to or exceed 5% of accounts receivable or sales, respectively.
Guarantees

The Parent and its subsidiaries do not grant guarantees, collaterals or letters of credit, nor they issue filled-in or blank securities, or other liens or
contingent rights in favor of third parties. Exceptionally they may impose liens, depending on the relevancy of the business, the amount of the
contingent liability and the benefitto the Parent or its subsidiaries. At December 31, 2019 the Parent has executed a blank promissory notein favor
of a third party who stands surety for Almacenes Exito Inversiones S.A.in amount of $2,631 to cover a potential failure to comply.

b. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, namely changes in exchange rates, interest rates or stock prices, have a negative effect on
Company revenue or on the value of the financial instruments itholds. The purpose of market risk management is to manage and control exposure
to this risk within reasonable parameters while optimizing profitahility.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, or the future cash flows of financial instruments, fluctuate due to
changes in market interestrates. The Parent's and its subsidaires' exposure to the interestrate risk is mainly related to debt obligations incumed at
variable interest rates or indexed to an index beyondthe control of the Parentand its subsidiaries.

Most of the Parent's and its subsidiaries' financial liabiliies are indexedto market variable rates. To managethe risk, the Parent and its subsidiaries
execute financial exchange transactions via derivative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) with previously approved financial institutions, under
which they agree on exchanging, at specificintervals, the difference between the amounts of fixed interest rates and variable interest rates estimated
over an agreed upon nominal principal amount, which turns variable rates into fixed rates and cash flows may then be determined.
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Currency risk

Currency riskis the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financia instruments fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. TheParents and
its subsidiaries' exposure to exchange rate risk is attached to liability transactions in foreign currency associated withlong-term debt liabilities and
with the Parent's and its subsidiaries' operating activities (wherever revenue and expenses are denominatedin a currency other than the functional
currency), as well as tothe Company's net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Parent and its subsidiaries managetheir exchange rate risk via derivative financial instruments (namely forwards and swaps) wherever such
instruments are efficient to mitigate vaatility.

Wherever the nature of the hedge is not economic, Parent's and its subsidiaries' policy is to negatiate the conditions of derivative instruments in such
away that they correlate with the terms of the underlying elements that are the purpose of the hedge, seeking to maximize the efficacy inthe exposure
to such variables. Not all financial derivatives are classifiedas hedging transactions; however, Parent's and its subsidiaries' policy is not tocany out
transactions solely for speculation, and consequently even if not classified as hedge accounting, derivative financial instruments are associated to
an underlying element and a notional amount that expose the Company to variations in exchange rates.

At December 31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018, the Parent andits subsidiaries had hedged almost 100% of their purchases and liabilities in foreign
currency.

Stock price risk

Share capital issued, premium on the issue or placement of shares and all other equity reserves attributable to the shareholders of the controling
entity are included for the purposes of managing the Parent's stock price. The main purpose of managing Parent's equity is to maximize the value
to shareholders.

The Parent manages its equity structure and makes the required adjustments as a function of changes in economic conditions and requirements
under financial clauses. To maintain and adjustits capital structure, the Parent may also modify the payment of dividends to shareholders, reimburse
capital contributions or issuenew shares.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Parent and its subsidiaries face difficulties to fulfil its obligations associated with financid liabilities, which are settied
by delivery of cash or other financial assets. Parent's approachto manage liquidityis to ensure, in as much as possible, thatit will always have the
liquidity required to meetits obligations at maturity, both under ordinary or stress circumstances, withoutincurringunacceptable losses or putting its
reputation at risk.

The Parent and its subsidiaries manage liquidity risks by daily monitoring their cash flows and maturities of financial assets and liabilities, and by
maintaining proper relations with the relevant financial institutions.

The purpose of the Parent and its subsidiaries is to maintain a balance between business continuity and the use of financing sources through short-
term and long-term bank loans according to needs, unused credit lines available from financial institutions and finance leases, among other
mechanisms. At December 31, 2019 approximately 36% of Parent's and its subsidiaries' debt matures in less thanone year (December 31,2018 -
27%) taking into consideration the book value of loans included in the accompanyingfinancial statemerts.

The outstanding principa balance of the syndicated credit in US Dolars in amount of USD 450 milion obtained in December 2017, the credt in
amount of $158,380 obtained in April 2017, the outstanding balance of the current bank loan in amount of $535,616 and the outstanding balance of
the non-current bank loan in amount of $1,167,535 were repaid in advance by the Parentin December 2019.

The Parent and its subsidiaries haverated as low the concentration of the liquidity risk with no great restriction for the payment of financial liabilties
maturing within twelve months of the closing of the annual period ended December 31,2019. Access to financing sources is properly assured.

The following table shows a profile of maturities of the Parent's and its subsidiaries' financial liabilities based on non-discounted contractual payments
arising from the relevant agreements.

Less than 1 From1to 5 More than 5
At December 31, 2019 Total
year years years
Finance lease liabilities, gross 3,819 6,784 - 10,603
Other relevant contractual liabilities 226,612 42,484 - 269,096
Total 230,431 49,268 - 279,699
Less than 1 From1to 5 More than 5
At December 31, 2018 Total
year years years
Finance lease liabilities, gross 3,932 10,628 - 14,559
Other relevant contractual liabilities 4,895,470 3,581,745 1,122,903 9,600,118
Total 4,899,402 3,592,373 1,122,903 9,614,677
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Sensitivity analysis for 2019 balances

From a statistica standpoint, the Company assessed the potential changes in interest rates of financial liabilties and other significant contractual

liabilities.

Assuming complete normality and considering 10% variation in interest rates, three scenarios have been assessed:
- Scenario |: Latestinterestrates known at the closing of 2018.
- Scenario Il: Anincreaseof 0.4134% is assumed for the Banking Reference Rate and an increase of 0.1763% is assumed for LIBOR at 90 days.
Allincreases on the latest published interest rate.
- Scenario lll: Areduction of 0.4134% is assumed forthe Banking Reference Rateand a reduction of 0.1763% is assumed for LIBOR at 90 days.
All reductions on the latest published interest rate.

The sensitivity analysis did not result in significant variance among the three scenarios and consequently they are not perceptible when rounding
amounts to millions. Potential changes are as follows:

Balance at
December 31,
Operations Risk 2019 Market forecast
Scenario | Scenarioll  Scenario lll
Loans Changes ininterestrates 260,606 260,592 260,882 260,302
Finance leases Changes ininterestrates 10,033 9,970 9,993 9,946
Total 270,639 270,562 270,875 270,248

Insurance policies

At December 31, 2019, the Parentand its subsidiaries have acquired the following insurance policies to mitigate the risks associated withthe entie

operation:

Insurance lines of coverage

All risk, damages and loss of profits

Transport of goods and money

Third party liability

Director's and officers' third-party liability
insurance

Deception and financial risks

Group life insurance and personal accident
insurance

Vehicles

Cyber risk

Coverage limits

In accordance with replacement and
reconstruction value, with a maximum limi of
liability for each policy.

In accordance with the statement of
transported values and a maximum limit per
dispatch. Differential limits and sub limis
apply by coverage.

Differential limits and sub limits apply by
coverage.

Differential limits and sub limits apply by
coverage.

Differential limits and sub limits apply by
coverage.

The insured amount relates to the numberof
wages defined by the Company.

There is a defined ceiling per each coverage

Differential limits and sub limits apply by
coverage.

Coverage

Losses or sudden and unforeseen damage
and incidental damage sustained by covered
property, directly arising from any event not
expressly excluded. Covers buildings,
furniture and fixtures, machinery and
equipment, goods, electronic equipment,
facility improvements, loss of profits and
other property of the insured party.

Property and goods owned by the insured
that are in transit, including those on whichit
has an insurable interest.

Covers damages to thid partiesin
development of the operation.

Covers claims against directors and officers
arising from error or omission while in office.

Loss of money or securities in premises or in
transit.

Willful misconduct of employees that resultin
financial loss.

Death and total and permanent disability
arising from natural or accidental events.

Third party liability.

Total and partial loss - Damages.

Total and partial loss - Theft

Earthquake

Other coverages as described in the policy

Direct losses arising from malicious access to
the network and indirect losses from thid
party liability whose persona data have been
affected by an event coveredby the policy.
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e.

Derivative financialinstuments
As mentioned above, the Parent and its subsidiaries use derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposure, with the main purpose of hedging
exposure to interest raterisk and exchange rate risk, tuming the financial debt into fixed interest rates and domestic exchange rates.

At December 31, 2019, the reference value of these contracts amounted to USD 266.85 million and EUR 2.45 million (December31, 2018 — USD
838.09 million and EUR 54.35 million). Such transactions are generally contracted under identical conditions regarding amounts, terms and
transaction costs and, preferably, with the same financial insfitutions, always in compliance with the Parent's and its subsidiaries' limits and policies.

Pursuant to the Parent's and its subsidiaries' policies, swaps may be acquired with restriction, with prior authorization of the Parent andits subsidiaries.

The Parent and its subsidiaries have designed and implemented intemal controls toensure that these transactions are carried outin compliance with
previously defined policies.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is estimated under the operating cash flow forecast model, using government treasury secuity
curves in each country and discounting them at present value, using market rates for swaps as disclosed by the relevant authorities in such countries.

Swap market values were obtained by applying market exchange rates valid on the date of the interim financial information availeble, and the rates
are forecasted by the market basedon currency discount curves. A convention of 365 consecutive days was used to calculate the coupon of foreign
currency indexed positions.

Note 48. Non-currentassets and liabilities held for trading and Discontinued operations

Non-current assets and liabilities held for trading

As of June 2018, Parent management started a plan to sell certain property to structure projects that allow using such real estate property, increase the

potential future seling price and generate resources to the Parent. Consequently, certain property, plantand equipmentand certain investment property
were classifiedas non-currentassets held for frading.

Based on the approval granted by the General Meeting of Shareholders to the Board of Directors regardingthe sale of theindirectinterest of the Parent
in subsidiaries Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD, Ségisor S.A. and Wilkes Partipagdes S.A., the balance of such investments carried in these
subsidiaries was classified under non-current assets held for trading at September 30,2019. Later, such indirect interest was sold on November 27, 2019.

The balance of non-current liabilities held for trading, included in the statement of financial position, is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (1)
Property, plant and equipment (2) 27,773 51,577
Investment property (3) 10,155 10,119
Assets of Via Varejo S.A (1) (4) - 23,511,145
Total 37,928 23,572,841

The balance of non-currentliabilities held for trading, included in the statement of financial position, is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 (1)
Liabilities of Via Varejo S.A. - 19,618,293
Total - 19,618,293

(1) Thefigures differ from those shown at December 31, 2018 because of the adjustments arisingfrom the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,

adopted by this subsidiary as of January 1, 2019. Differences are detailed in Note 52.
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(2) Represents the following real estate property:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Hotel Cota plot of land and project 16,489 16,489
Lote Villa Maria 11,284 -
Lote NAR (a) - 20,546
Lote Parana (b) - 9,301
Lote John Boyd (b) - 5,241
Total 27,773 51,577

(2) Thedecrease is becausethe assets of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD were not included in the consolidated financia
statements at December 31, 2019, because this subsidiary was sold on November27, 2019. At September 30, 2019 the balances had been
reclassified to non-current liabilities held for trading.

(b) Plots of land sold during 2019.

(3) Represents the following real estate property:

September 30, December 31,

2019 2018
Lote La Secreta (land) 5,960 5,960
Kennedy trade premises (building) 1,640 1,640
Kennedy trade premises (land) 1,229 1,229
Lote Casa Vizcaya (land) 595 595
Pereira Plaza trade premises (building) 556 556
Lote La Secreta (construction in progress) 175 139
Total 10,155 10,119

(4) The assets and liabilities of Via Varejo S.A were sold on June 15, 2019.
Parent and its subsidiaries believe that these assets will be sold in 2020.

No revenue or expense havebeen recognized in incomeor in other comprehensive income related with the group of assets for disposal.

Discontinued operations

On the grounds of that mentioned above regardingthe sale on November 27, 2019 of the indirect interest held by the Parent in subsidiary Companhia
Brasileira de Distribuigio — CBD and in holding subsidiaries Ségisor S.A. and Wilkes Partipagdes S.A., the retained earnings of these subsidiaries at
November 30, 2019 are shownin the consolidated statement of income at December 31, 2019 under net income of discontinued operations, as an tem
separate from other consolidated income of the Parentand its subsidiaries.

In August 2019 the Parent decided to close the commercia operation of subsidiary Gemex O&W S.A.S. On the grounds of this decision, retained earnings
of this subsidiary at September 30, 2019are shown in the consolidated statement of income under the netincome of discontinued operations, as an item
separate from other consolidated income ofthe Parentand its subsidiaries.

The effect of such discontinued operations in the consolidated statement ofincome is as follows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 (1)
Via Varejo S.A. net gain (Note 48.1) (1) 510,072 93,248
Net income of Companhia Brasikira de Distribuigado- CBD (Note48.2) (1) 276,229 934,342
Net (loss) of Gemex O & W S.A.S. (Note48.3) (11,463) (12,826)
Net gain fromdiscontinued operations 774,838 1,014,764

(1) The figures differ from those shown at December31, 2018 because of the adjustments arising from the retrospective applicationof IFRS 16 - Leases,
adopted by this subsidiary as of January 1, 2019. Differences are detailed in Note 52.

Note 48.1. Via Varejo S.A.

On November 23, 2016, the Board of Directors of subsidiary Companhia Brasikira de Distrbui¢&o — CBD approved that the Administration Board started
the process to sell the interestin Via Varejo S.A. in line with its long-term strategy of focusing on the development of the food segment.
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Pursuant to IFRS 5 - Non-Current Assets Held for Trading and Discontinued Operations, the Parentis of the opinion that given the effort applied, the sde
was highly likely, which involved the presentation of Via Varejo S.A.'s (and its subsidiary Cnova ComercioElectronico S.A's) net results after taxes in
one single line in the statement ofincome and the balances of assets and liabilities as held fortrading and discontinued operations.

As result of the efforts applied duringmore than one year, finally the assets and liabilities of ViaVarejo S.A. available for sale weresold on June 15, 2019.

The effects of the sale of the assets and liabilities of Via Varejo S.A. are:

Selling price 2,132,244
Cost of sales (1,629,872
Result of the discontinued operation 502,372
The net result of the sale of the discontinued operation is attributable

to:

Owners of the controlling entity 9,929
Non-controlling interests 492,443

Below is the result of Via Varejo S.A.'s discontinued operation:

January 1to

December 31,
2019

Net result of the discontinued operation 7,700
Net result of the sae of the discontinued operation 502,372
Total net gain from the discontinued operation 510,072
Profitis attributable to:
Owners of the controlling entity 3,671
Non-controlling interests 506,401

Below is a summary cash flows of the discounted operation of Via Varejo S.A.:

January 1to

December 31,
2019
Net cash flows (used in) operating activities (2,182,437)
Net cash flows (used in) investment activities (193,443)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (538,169)
Translation difference (66,114)
Net development of cash and cash equivalents (2,980,163)

January 1to
December 31,
2018

93,248

93,248

(1,966)
95,214

January 1to
December 31,
2018

683,537
(479,533)
(80,464)
(221,634)
(98,094)

Note 48.2. CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD, Ségisor S.A. and Wilkes Partipagdes S.A.

On September 12, 2019, the General Meeting of Sharehdders endorsed the authorization given by the Board of Directors to the offer submitted by Casino
Guichard-Perrachon S.A. regarding the purchase of the indirectinterestand control over subsidiary Companhia Brasieira de Distribuigio — CBD through
Segisor S.A. On the grounds of such approval, the assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries were classified under non-current assets held for trading
and net earnings after tax were shown under net income from discontinued operations in the statement of income. The offer was achieved later, on
November 27, 2019, and the shares that the Parentindirectly held in the operating subsidiary Companhia Brasieira de Distribuigéo - CBD and in holding

subsidiaries Ségisor S.A.y Wilkes Partipagdes S.A were then sdd.

The effects of thesale of the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD, SégisorS.A. and Wikes

Partipacoes S.A. are:

Selling price 4,027,576
Cost of shares (4,040,628)
(Result) of the sale of shares (13,052)
Result of the conversion into Colombian pesos of the proceeds of the
sale

of shares 24,972
(Result) of the hedging of cash flows provided by the transaction (9,600)
Net result of the sale of the discontinued operation 2,320

The net result of the sale of the discontinued operation is attributable to:
Owners of the controlling entity 2,320
Non-controlling interests -
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Below is the result of the discontinued operation of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD, Ségisor S.A. and Wilkes Partipagdes SA.:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Net result of the discontinued operation 289,281 934,342
(Result) of the saleof shares (13,052) -
Total net gain from the discontinued operation 276,229 934,342
Profitis attributable to:
Owners of the controlling entity 25,277 162,498
Non-controlling interests 250,952 771,844

Below is the result of the discontinued operation of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD, Ségisor S.A. and Wilkes Partipagdes S.A.:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Revenue from ordinary activities 32,778,161 40,141,725
Cost of sales (25,698,830) (30,716,831)
Gross profit 7,079,331 9,424,894
Distribution, administration and sales expenses (5,808,880) (7,307,554)
Gain from investments accountedfor

using the equity method (7,368) 22,958
Other (expenses) revenue, net (176,074) (30,374)
Profit from operating activities 1,087,009 2,109,924
Financial revenue and expenses, net (610,924) (829,472)
Earningsbefore income tax 476,085 1,280,452
Tax (expense) (186,804) (346,110)
Net period profit from the discontinued operation 289,281 934,342

Below is a summarized cash flow of the discontinued operation of Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicio — CBD, Ségisor S.A. and Wilkes Partipacdes
SA:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Net cash flows (used in) operating activities (525,046) 2,318,529
Net cash flows (used in) investment activities (223,750) (1,817,338)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 7,668,301 24,280
Translation difference (35,882) (222,125)
Net development of cash and cash equivalents 6,883,623 303,346

Note 48.3. Gemex O & W S.A.S.

In August 2019 Parentmanagement decided to reorganize the activities of subsidiary Gemex O & W S.A.S. As partof such reorganization, this subsidiary
ceased its trading and operating activities related with the direct sale of products through sales catalogues.

Under IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Trading and Discontinued Operations, discontinuity of this operation invaves the presentation of net earnings
after tax of subsidiary Gemex O & W S.A.S. as an item of netincome from discontinued operations in the statement of income.
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Below is the result of the discontinued operation of GemexO & W S.AS.:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Revenue from ordinary activities 15,006 24,418
Cost of sales (12,208) (13,107)
Gross profit 2,798 11,311
Distribution, administration and sales expenses (8,867) (16,510)
Other (expenses) revenue, net (708) (75)
(Loss) from operating activities (6,777) (5,274)
Financial revenue and expenses, net (4,449) (1,682)
(Loss) beforeincome tax (11,226) (6,956)
Tax (expense) (237) (5,870)
Net period (loss) from thediscontinued operation (11,463) (12,826)
(Loss) attributable to:

Owners of the controlling entity (9,751) (10,902)
Non-controlling interests (1,712) (1,924)

Below is a summarized cash flow of the discontinued operation of Gemex O & W S.A.S.:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Net cash flows (used in) provided by
operating activities (333) 399
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
investment activities 285 (376)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 1 4
Net development of cash and cash equivalents (47) 27

Note 49. Facts and circumstances that extend to more than one year the selling period of investment properties held for trading

Progress in the selling process

At December 31,2019, external factors out of the control of Parent management related with the general shrinking of the real-estate market dynamics, as
well as the failure to achieve offers that were reasonable and of benefit to the Parent caused management to reconsider the origina selling schedue
whose completion had been forecasted for the first half of 2019.

Some of the external factors that influenced the sale transaction schedule atthe closing of December 31, 2019 were:

During the end of 2018, the national politics environment arising from the most polarized nation-wide elections in the recent history of the country,
namely the elections to the National Congress on March 11, 2018 and the Presidential Elections on May 27,2018 (firstround) and on June 17, 2018
(second round), resulted in the general uncertainty ofinvestors and the decrease of investors' appetite for real-estate property.

Economic indicators relevant to construction as prepared by the National Department of Statistics (DANE by its Spanish acronym) evidenced thet at
the closing of 2018 the sector reacheda weak 0.3% YTD growth as compared to 2017, and only grew by 0.9% duringthe last quarter of 2018.

The beginning of 2019 was not positive; the real-estate market expectedrecovery signs and particularly the construction industry; general dynamics
contracted and resulted in a decrease in proposals of potentia investors willing to acquire assets. During the first quarter of 2019, the industry
contracted even more (-5.6%) as compared to the same period of 2018 (-0.9%). According to economic studies by the Camara Colombiana de la
Construccion - CAMACOL, even if the granting of housing and other construction licenses slowly recovered by 1.2%as compared to thefirst quarter
of 2018, a significantdecrease (-11.8%) was carried forward.

Neither the Economic Indicators Around Construction (IEAC) prepared by the National Department of Statistics - DANE were encouraging since they
showed that during the first quarter 0f2019 (January to March), the GDP at constant prices grew by 2.8% as compared tothe same quarter of 2018;
however, a 5.6% decrease in the added vaue of the construction segment was identified when analyzing the result of the added value by large
segments of the industry. Such resultis mainly explained by the annual negative variation in the subsegments of construction of residential and non-
residential buildings (-8.8%) and the added value of specialized activities (-5.9%).
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Since June 2018, actions takenby Parent managementto accomplish thesale of real-estate assets have been concrete and focusedon each property,
seeking to guarantee the feasibility of the sale, ensure that propertyis cured and obtain added-value economic proposals.

In pursuing this effort, the Parentretained independent realtors who joined the internal teams of expertsin the market potertial. Developments are as
follows:

(@) Lote La Secreta: negotiated with buyer for delivery during thefirst quarter of 2020.

(b) Kennedy Trade Premises: theindependent retailer has been hired and is in the process of offering the property to the present lessor in pursuance of
the preferential rights under the lease contract.

(c) Pereira Plaza Trade Premises: in process of analyzing offers submitted by interested parties.
(d) Hotel Cota plot of land and project: analysis of offers by interested parties in process.

(e) Lote Casa Vizcaya: negotiated with buyer for delivery during the first quarter of 2020.

The Parent continues strongly committed to the selling process of suchassets.

Note 50. Relevantfacts

At December 31, 2019

General Meeting of Shareholders

The Company's Generd Meeting of Shareholders was held on March 28, 2019, to resolve, among other topics, on the approval of the Management
Report, approval of separate and consolidated financial statements at December 31,2018 and approva of dividend distribution to shareholders.

Sale of Via Varejo S.A.

As result of the efforts made over more than one year, on June 15, 2019 the assets and liabilities of Via Varejo S.A, classified under assets held for
trading, were sold. Theeffects of this transaction are disclosed in Note 48.1.

Proposal to acquire the interest of the Parentin subsidiary CompanhiaBrasileira de Disfribuigdo -CBD by its contrdling entity Casino Guichard-Perrachon
S.A.

On July 24, 2019, as partof its plan to simplify the investment structure, Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A submitted to the Parenta proposalto purchese
through Segisor S.A. the indirectinterest in and control over its subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo - CBD at a price set from BRL 109 per
share.

Takeover bid issued by its subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo- CBD

On July 24, 2019, subsidiary Companhia Brasieira de Distribuicéo - CBD issued, through one of its subsidiaries, a takeover bid on 100% of the shares of
its Parent Aimacenes Exito S.A., at a price of $18,000 (*) per share.

This takeover bid shall be filed with the Colombian Financial Superintendence oncethe Parent has approved the offer of Casino Guichard-Perrachon SA
to buy the indirect interestin and control over its subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo - CBD.

(*) Expressed in Colombian pesos.

Start of the process to assess the sale of the shares held in Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo -CBD

The Audit and Risk Committee of the Parentmet on July 30, 2019 to start the process of assessing the sale of the indirect interestin and control over
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo -CBD, in accordance with the terms of the purchase proposal submitted by Casino Guichard-Perrachon SA
Independent financial advisors and counsels were appointed as partof the process to analyze the purchase proposal and present recommendations to
the Board of the Parent not later than August 31,2019.

Amendment to the proposal to acquire the interest held by the Company in subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo -CBD by its controling enfity
Casino Guichard-PerrachonS.A.

On August 19, 2019, Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. submitted to the Parent a new offeramending that originally submitted on July 24,2019 regarding
the purchase of the indirect interest and control over its subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD through Segisor S.A. The new price
offered is BRL 113 per share, translated into US Dollars at the average exchange rate of the 30 common days ending on the fifth calendar day prior to
the closing of the transaction.
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Completion of the process toassess the sale of the shares held in Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo -CBD

On August 26, 2019 the Audit and Risk Committee of the Parentissued a positive assessment tothe Board of Directors regarding the offer submitted by
Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A regarding the purchase at BRL 113 per share of the indirect interest and control over subsidiary Companhia Brasilera
de Distribuigdo — CBD through Segisor S.A., on the grounds that the offer meets the standards, principles and criteria set by the Policy on Transactions
with Related Parties of the Company, corporate guidelines and the law.

Call to an extraordinary meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders

On August 27, 2019, and as a result of the positive assessmentby the Auditand Risk Committee of the Parent regarding the offer submitted by Casino
Guichard-Perrachon S.A. on the purchase of the indirect interest and control over subsidiary Companhia Brasileirade Distribui¢do — CBD through Segisor
S.A., the Board of Directors and the CEO of the Company calledan extraordinary meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on September
12, 2019.

Authorization to accept the offer on the sale of the shares held in Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD

On September 12, 2019 the Board of Directors of the Parentheld a meetingto deliberate on and assess the terms and conditions of the offer submited
by Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A regarding the purchase of the indirect interest and contral over subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo —
CBD through Segisor S.A.

As part of the deliberation and assessment process regarding the terms and conditions of the offer, the Board took into consideration the assessment
carried out by the Audit and Risk Committee and the opinions of independent advisors retained by the Parent as well as the principles and criteria set by
the Policy on Transactions with Related Parties, and other aspects such as the classification of the transaction under assessment, the pricetheredf, the
coincidence with market condiions and the convenience of the transaction to the Parent.

On the grounds of the andysis carried out, the Board of Directors adopted the assessment, conclusions and recommendations of the Audit and Risk
Comnmittee of the Parent regarding the transaction, as the Board considered that the transaction meets the standards, principles and criteria set by the
Policy on Transactions with the Parent's Related Parties, corporate guidelines and the law, and consequently it proposed the approval thereof by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Based on the above, the Board of Directors approved the transactionand authorized the CEO and the legal representatives of the Parentto enter and
execute, withoutlimitation as to the amourts, all actions required to complete the transaction.

Extraordinary meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders

During an extraordinary meeting held on September 12,2019, the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Parent decided, among other, on the following
matters:

- Authorized the Board of Directors of the Parent to deliberate and decide on the authorization to approve the offer submitted by Casino Guichard
Perrachon S.A. regarding the purchase of the indirect interest and control over subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD through
Segisor S.A.

- Approved the authorization by the Board of Directors of the offer submitted by Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. regarding the purchase of the indirect
interest and contrd over subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD through Segisor S.A.

- Authorized the CEO and other legal representatives of the Parentto enter and execute, without limitationas to the amounts, all actions required to
complete the transaction.

Classsification of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD as a non-current asset held for trading

Based on the approval grantedby the General Meeting of Shareholders to the Board of Directors regarding the sale of the indirect interest in subsidiaries
Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo — CBD, Ségisor S.A. and Wilkes Partipagdes S.A., the balance of such investments carried in these subsidiaries
was classified under non-current assets held for trading at September 30, 2019.

Filing before the Colombian Financial Superintendence of the takeover bid by subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD for the shares of
the Company

On October 19, 2019 Sendas Distribuidora S.A., a subsidiary of CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribuigéo — CBD, publishedin Colombia the first takeover bid
notice regarding Parent shares.

Upon publication of such notice, subsequent to the authorization granted on October 17, 2019 by the Colombian Financial Superintendence, and as
foreseen in sections 6.2.1 and 6.2.2 of the share purchase agreement executed with Casino Guichard-Perrachon S.A. on September 12,2019 regarding
the purchase of the indirect interest and control held over subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo — CBD through Segisor S.A, the French
shareholders agreement, the shareholders agreement with Wilkes and the shareholders agreement with CBD automatically terminated with no further
formalities, with the consequence that as of October 17, 2019 the Company handed over the indirect confrol it held on subsidiary Companhia Brasilera
de Distribuigao — CBD through Segisor S.A.
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Sale of subsidiary Companhia Brasileira de Distribuicdo— CBD

On November 27,2019 the Parentsdd its indirectinterestin subsidiaries Companhia Brasileira de Distribuigdo —CBD, Ségisor S.A y Wilkes Partipagdes
S.A. The effects of such transaction are disclosed in Note 48.2.

Acceptance of the takeover bid.

On November 27, 2019, based on the results of the takeover bid dated July 24,2019, Sendas Distribuidora S.A., a subsidiary of Companhia Brasilerade
Distribuicao — CBD becamethe Parent's controlling entity with a share of 96.57% in its capital stock.

Because of such change in contrd, and based on Colombian commercia regulations, the Parent has fallen in grounds for dissolution since more than
95% of its capital stock belongs to one single shareholder. The Parenthas an 18 month-term to overcome this situation, as of the date in was created.

Investigation at Via Varejo S.A.

As disclosed in Note 48.1, on June 15,2019 the Parent, throughits subsidiary Companhia Brasileirade Distribuicdo — CBD (*), soldthe 6.778% interest
it held in subsidiary Via Varejo S.A. Retained earnings of this subsidiary were shown in the consolidated statement of income under net resuits of
discontinued operations, as an item separate from the consolidated results of the Parent and its subsidiaries, and assets and liabilities were shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position as part of the non-current assets held for frading and non-current liabilities held for trading, as items separate
from other consolidated assets and liabilities of the Parentand its subsidiaries as required by IFR5.

On December 12, 2019 Via Varejo S.A. published a relevant fact and communicated that, during the second phase of an independent investigation
conducted as a response to anonymous complaints regarding alleged accourting irregularities, the Investigations Committee informed management of
the finding of hints of fraud and deficiencies in internal controls that might resultin material misstatements in its financial statements. Based in this repot,

the Investigations Committee appointed by Via Varejo S.A defined a third phase of the investigation to continue assessing the effect of the potentia
adjustments on the financial statements.

At December 31, 2019 the process to identify the effect of the accounting adjustments has not been completed.

(*) At December 31, 2019, and as result of the takeover bid mentioned in Note 1, Companhia Brasileirade Distribuicdo - CBD ceased as a subsidiary to
become the Parent's confrolling entity.

At December 31, 2018

General Meeting of Shareholders

The Company's Generd Meeting of Shareholders was held on March 23, 2018, to resolve, among other topics, on the approval of the Management
Report, approval of separate and consolidated financial statements at December 31,2017 and approva of dividend distribution to shareholders.

Sale of interest in the equity of Via Varejo S.A.

An agreement was reached on December 21, 2018 to sell 3.86% of the interest in the equity of Via Varejo S.A. through a total-return swap (TRS)
transaction. Through this transaction, amounts received are subject to further adjustment from the subsequent resale of the shares in the market during
the contract term.

Contribution to Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Mals

On December 28, 2018 the Parent made an additiona confribution of the following assets to Patiimonio Auténomo Viva Malks, as part of the memorandum
of understanding executed on December 23, 2016 with Fondo Inmobiliario Colombia:

Fiduciary interests:

- Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Villavicencio,
- Patrimonio Auténomo Centro Comercial,
- Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Sincelejo, and
- Patrimonio Auténomo San Pedro Etapa |.

Real estate property:
- Lote Sincelejo, and
- Fontibon real estate property

With the mentioned contributions, the Parent remains the trustor with 51% of interest in Patrimonio Auténomo Viva Malls, but changed its interest in
contributed Patrimonios from 51% to 26.01%
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Note 51. Events after the reporting period
No events have occurred subsequentto the date of the reporting period that entail significant changes in the Parentand its subsidiaries.
Note 52. Information regarding the adoption of IFRS 16

The Parent and its subsidiaries started to apply IFRS 16 - Leases as of January 1,2019. This standard requires recognizing a use rightassetand a lease
liability.

Use rights assets are assets representing the right of the Parent and its subsidiaries as lessees to use an underying asset during the term of a lease
agreement. The liability represents future payments under the lease agreement.

The Parent and its subsidiaries elected to apply the standard retrospectively, as if it had been applied from the start date of all lease agreements. For
comparison purposes, the Parent and its subsidiaries have prepared the financial statements of prior periods including the effects of adopting IFRS 16.

As aresult of adoption:

Use right assets were recognized,

Lease liabilities were recognized;

Lease expenses were eliminated (fixed payments underlease agreements);

Depreciation of userights was recognized,

Interest expense was recognized upon measurement of lease liabilities using the effectiveinterest method.

Fixed payments made and new amendments tothe lease agreement were recognized under leaseliabilities.

The effects on deferredtax arising from temporary differences resulting upon recognitionof use rights and lease liabilities were recognized.
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The effects shown in the statement of financial position at December 31, 2019 are:

December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5,973,680
Trade receivables and other accounts receivable 1,000,267
Prepaid expenses 143,889
Accounts receivable fromrelated parties 131,720
Inventories 6,720,396
Other financial assets 141,214
Tax assets 724,290
Non-current assets held for trading 23,572,841
Total currentassets 38,408,297
Non-current assets

Trade receivables and other accounts receivable 135,284
Prepaid expenses 14,751
Accounts receivable from related parties 28,316
Other financial assets 754,065
Property, plant and equipment, net 12,317,515
Investment property, net 1,633,625
Userights, net 5,141,400
Goodwill 5,436,868
Intangible assets other than goodwill, net 5,199,801
Investments accounted for using the equity method 804,400
Tax assets 2,302,451
Deferred tax assets 133,991
Other non-financial assets 398
Total non-currentassets 33,902,865
Total assets 72,311,162
Current liabilities

Accounts payable to related parties 236,698
Financial liabilities 2,291,116
Employee benefits 3,657
Other provisions 36,997
Trade payables and other accounts payable 13,117,074
Lease labilities 858,349
Tax liabilities 298,699
Other financial liabilities 1,037,191
Other non-financial liabiliies 338,735
Non-current liabilities held for trading 19,618,293
Total currentliabilities 37,836,809
Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities 4,633,554
Employee benefits 27,680
Other provisions 2,330,648
Trade payables and other accounts payable 40,720
Lease labilities 4,577,359
Deferred tax liabilities 1,409,857
Tax liabilities 397,014
Other financial liabilities 2,583,089
Other non-financial liabilities 11,963
Total non-curmrentliabilities 16,011,884
Total liabilities 53,848,693
Shareholders' equity 18,462,469
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 72,311,162

December 31,
2018 without IFRS16 Difference
5,973,680
1,000,298 31 M
156,829 (12,940) (2)
131,720
6,720,396
141,214
724,290
20,289,112 3,283,729 (3)
35,137,539 3,270,758
135,284
59,912 (45,161) (2
28,316
754,065
12,334,581 (17,066) (4)
1,633,625
- 5,141,400 (5)
5,436,868
5,767,176 (567,375)  (6)
814,039 (9,639) (7)
2,302,451
67,512 66,479 (8)
398
29,334,227 4,568,638
64,471,766 7,839,396
236,698
2,320,200 (29,084) (9)
3,657
36,997
13,226,708 (109,634) (10)
- 858,349 (5)
298,699
1,037,191
338,735
16,458,772 3,159,521  (3)
33,957,657 3,879,152
4,732,106 (98,552)  (9)
27,680
2,330,648
40,720
- 4,577,359  (5)
1,433,191 (23,334) (8)
397,014
2,583,089
11,963
11,556,411 4,455,473
45,514,068 8,334,625
18,957,698 (495,229)
64,471,766 7,839,396
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(1) The adjustmentrepresents the derecognition of the balance receivable of subsidiaries Grupo Disco del Uruguay S.A., Mercados Devoto S.A and

Devoto Hermanos S.A. for the commissionto gain lease agreements, which was taken into consideration when measuring the use right. The

differences as compared to the figures shown on December 31,2018 are as follows:

Trade accounts receivable
Other accounts receivable (a)
Total otheraccounts receivable

Current
Non-current

(@) The balance of other accounts receivable is as follows:

Employee funds and lending

Business agreements

Taxes receivable

Money remittances

Money transfer services

Tax claims

Sale of fixed assets, intangible assets and other assets
Accounts receivable frominsurance companies
Accounts receivable from the sale of companies
Other accountsreceivable

Impairment loss

Total otheraccounts receivable

December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16

657,941
477,610
1,135,551

1,000,267
135,284

December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16

77,070
30,695
627
6,938
572
1,360
42,961
172,392
68,792
89,405
(13,202)
477,610

December 31,
2018 without IFRS 16

657,941
477,641
1,135,582

1,000,298
135,284

December 31,
2018 without IFRS 16

77,070
30,695
627
6,938
572
1,360
42,961
172,392
68,792
89,436
(13,202)
477,641

(2)The adjustmentrepresents the derecognition of an advance payment by subsidiary CompanhiaBrasileira de Distribui¢do - CBD for the commission to
gain lease agreements, which was taken into consideration when measuring the use right. The differences as compared to the figures shown on

December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Maintenance

Lease expenses
Insurance

Advertising

Taxes

Bank fees

Public utilities

Licenses inuse

Other advance payments
Total prepaid expenses

Current
Non-current

December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16

9,750
39,905
27141
25,737

243
32,865

9,890

1,797
11,312

158,640

143,889
14,751

December 31,
2018 without IFRS16

9,750
98,006
27,141
25,737

243
32,865

9,890

1,797
11,312

216,741

156,829
59,912

The adjustment represents the recognition of adjustments arising from the retrospective application of IFRS 16 - Leases by Via Varejo S.A The
differences as compared to figures shown on December 31, 2018are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Investment property

Assets of Via Varejo S.A

Total non-currentassets held for trading

Liabilities of Via Varejo S.A.
Total non-currentliabilities held for trading

December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16

51,577
10,119
23,511,145
23,572,841

December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16

19,618,293
19,618,293

December 31,
2018 without IFRS 16

51,577
10,119
20,227,416
20,289,112

December 31,
2018 without IFRS 16

16,458,772
16,458,772
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(4) The adjustment represents the reclassification to use rights of certain assets and accumuated depreciation thereof that used to be propery
recognized as property, plant and equipment related to financeleases. The differences as compared to the figures shown on December 31, 2018

are as follows:

December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16
Land 2,406,067
Buildings (1) 4,131,398
Machinery and equipment 2,893,704
Furniture and fixtures 1,659,721
Assets under consfruction 213,271
Premises 845,833
Improvements to third party properties 5,452,094
Vehicles 21,631
Computers 813,358
Other property, plantand equipment 183,281
Total property, plant and equipment 18,620,358
Accumulated depreciation (6,299,910)
Impairment (2,933)
Total net property, plant and equipment 12,317,515

The adjustmentrelates to the recognition of use rights and a lease liability.

December 31,
2018 without IFRS 16

2,406,067
4,167,695
2,893,704
1,659,721
213,271
845,833
5,452,094
21,631
813,358
183,281
18,656,655
(6,319,141)
(2,933)

12,334,581

The adjustmentto these accounts arises from the reclassification to use rights of intangible assets other than goodwill and accumulated amortization
thereof that represented costs required to gain lease contracts which should be considered when measuringthe use right. In addition, it also arises
from the classification as use rights of certain computer software and amortization thereof. The differences as compared to the figures shown on

December 31, 2018 are as follows:

December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16
Trademarks 3,237,799
Computer software 1,331,389
Rights 1,315,083
Customer-related intangible assets 32,711
Other 84
Total cost of intangible assets other than goodwill 5,917,066
Accumulated amortization (717,265)
Total intangible assets other than goodwill, net 5,199,801

December 31,
2018 without IFRS16

3,237,799
1,460,509
1,861,168
32,711

84
6,592,271
(825,095)
5,767,176

The adjustment represents the recognition of the effects of application of this standard on the equity of investments accounted for using the equity

method. The differences as comparedto the figures shown on December 31, 2018 are as follows:

December 31,
Company 2018 with IFRS 16
Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. 203,704
CnovaN.V. 425,935
Financiera Itat CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda. 169,161
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. 5,600
Total investments accounted for using the equity method 804,400

December 31,
2018 without IFRS16

203,704
435,574
169,161

5,600
814,039

The adjustmentrepresents the effects on deferred tax from the temporary difference resulting upon recognition of use rights andleaseliabilities. The

differences as compared to the figures shown on December 31,2018 are as follows:

December 31,2018 with IRFS16  December 31, 2018 without IRFS 16

Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
assets liabilities assets
Colombia segment 107,997 - 41,518
Uruguay segment 25,994 - 25,994
Argentina segment - (117,218) -
Brazil segment - (1,292,639) -
Total 133,991 (1,409,857) 67,512

Deferred tax
liabilities

(117,218)
(1,315,973)
(1,433,191)
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(9) The adjustmentrepresents the reclassification to finance leases of liabilities regarding certain contracts on assets that were properly reclassified as

finance leases. The differences as compared to the figures shownon December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Bank loans

Put option

Finance leases

Letters of credit

Total currentfinancial liabilities

Bank loans
Finance leases
Total non-currentfinancial liabilities

December 31,

2018 with IFRS 16

1,845,638
435,023
3,839
6,616
2,291,116

4,624,057
9,497
4,633,554

December 31,
2018 without IFRS16

1,845,638
435,023
32,923
6,616
2,320,200

4,624,056
108,050
4,732,106

(10) Adjustment to these accounts arises from the reclassification to lease liabiliies of fixed-payment liabilities under lease agreements. The
differences as compared to the figures shown on December 31,2018 are as follows:

Suppliers

Employee benefits

Costs and expenses payable

Dividends payable

Tax withholdings payable

Purchase of assets

Taxes collected payable

Acquisition of companies

Other

Total trade payables and otheraccounts payable

The effects shown in the statement ofincome for the annual period ended December 31, 2018 are as fdlows:

Continuing operations

Revenue from ordinary activities under contracts with customers
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distribution expenses
Administrationand sales expenses
Employee benefit expenses

Other operating revenue

Other operating expenses

Other net (losses)

Profit from operating activities

Financial revenue

Financial expenses

Share of profits in associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method.

Profit from continuing operations before income tax

Tax expense

Net period profit from continuing operations

Net period profit from discontinued operations

Net period profit

Profit attributable to the shareholders of the controlling entity

December 31,

2018 with IFRS 16

11,165,524
819,985
449,734
54,781
67,831
212,719
54,078
33,550
258,872

13,117,074

January 1to
December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16

55,036,170
(41,719,518)
13,316,652

(5,154,174)
(742,226)
(4,613,300)
123,714
(287,618)
93,338
2,736,386

620,963
(2,005,209)

63,474
1,415,614
(296,181)
1,119,433

93,249
1,212,682

253,168

December 31,
2018 without IFRS 16

11,262,261
819,985
449,734
54,781
67,831
212,719
54,078
33,550
271,769

13,226,708

January 1to

December 31,

2018 without
IFRS 16

55,036,170
(41,768,641)
13,267,529

(5,481,496)
(758,317)
(4,613,300)
123,714
(287,618)
86,715
2,337,227

619,533
(1,453,455)

67,168
1,570,473
(338,441)
1,232,032

(59,088)
1,172,944

279,403

Difference

49,123
49,123

327,322
16,091

6,623
399,159

1,430
(551,754)

(3,694)
(154,859)
42,260
(112,599)
152,336
39,737

(26,236)
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(11) The adjustment relates to the derecognition of fixed payments under lease agreements and the recognition of the depreciation of use rights. The
differences as compared to the figures shown on December 31,2018 are as follows:

Cost of sales:

January 1to January 1to

December 31, December 31,

2018 with IFRS 16 2018 without IFRS16

Cost of goods sold 41,723,644 41,772,157
(Reversal) impairment recognized during the period (4,126) (3,516)
Total cost of sales 41,719,518 41,768,641
Distribution expenses:

January 1to January 1to

December 31, December 31,

2018 with IFRS 16 2018 without IFRS16
Depreciation and amortization 1,289,008 768,884
Fuels and power 628,767 628,767
Advertising 623,823 623,823
Public utilities 541,668 541,668
Commissions on debitand credit cards 386,732 386,732
Taxes other than income tax 352,764 352,764
Repairs and maintenance 339,459 339,459
Outsourced employees 234,430 234,430
Lease expenses 94,902 933,492
Other provisions expense 88,991 88,991
Professional fees 79,579 79,579
Legal expenses 70,722 70,722
Transport 70,524 70,524
Packaging and marking materials 44,785 44,785
Insurance 36,777 36,777
Administrationof trade premises 34,071 34,071
Travel expenses 21,084 21,084
Impairment expense 13,178 13,178
Contributions and affiliations 1,623 1,623
Other 201,287 210,143
Total distribution expenses 5,154,174 5,481,496
Administrationand sales expenses:
January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,

2018 with IFRS 16 2018 without IFRS16
Depreciation and amortization 194,100 200,159
Professional fees 139,982 139,982
Outsourced employees 107,936 107,936
Taxes other than income tax 54,432 54,432
Public utilities 53,736 53,736
Repairs and maintenance 28,378 28,378
Travel expenses 20,251 20,251
Lease expenses 5,659 15,628
Impairment expense 12,131 12,131
Fuels and power 10,602 10,602
Other provisions expense 7,545 7,545
Insurance 6,211 6,211
Legal expenses 3,651 3,651
Transport 2,915 2,915
Administrationof trade premises 2,670 2,733
Contributions and affiliations 2,626 2,626
Advertising 336 336
Packaging and markingmaterials 325 325
Other 88,740 88,740
Total administration and sales expenses 742,226 758,317
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(12) The adjustment represents the recognition of revenue arising from the derecognition of use rights and liabilities from the early termination of lease
agreements. The differences as comparedto the figures shown on December 31, 2018 are as follows:

January 1to January 1to

December 31, December 31,
2018 with IFRS16 2018 without IFRS16
Gain from the sale of property, plant and equipment 94,296 94,296
Gain from the sale of subsidiaries 13,542 13,542

Recovery of impairment of intangible assets and of property,

plant and equipment 2,386 2,386
Gain from the sale of intangble assets 35 35
Derecognition of property, plantand equipment (21,021) (21,021)
Loss from disposal of other assets (2,523) (2,523)
Derecognition of lease agreements 6,623 -
Total othernet (losses) 93,338 86,715

(13) The adjustment represents the recognition of interest expense upon measurement of lease liabilities using the effective interest method. The
differences as compared to the figures shown on December 31,2018 are as follows:

January 1to January 1to
December 31, December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16 2018 without

IFRS 16

Loss from exchange difference (39,742) (388,804)
Interest, loans and finance lease expenses (374,432) (392,342)
Interest expense, bonds (206,338) (206,338)
Expense from the amortized cost of loans and accounts receivable (169,864) (169,864)
Loss from derivative financial instruments (105,839) (105,839)
Commission expense (55,210) (55,210)
Interest expense - suppliers (21,564) (21,564)
Net monetary position results, effect of the statement of

financial position (10,741) (10,741)
Net monetary position results, effect of the statement of income (54,023) (54,023)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (562,726) -
Other financial expenses (48,730) (48,730)
Total financial expenses (2,005,209) (1,453,455)

(14) The adjustmentrepresents the recognition of the effects of application of this standard on theincome of subsidiaries that are accounted for using the
equity method. The differences as compared to the figures shown on December 31, 2018 are as follows:

January 1to January 1to

December 31, December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16 2018 without IFRS16
Financiera Itati CBD - FIC Promotora de Vendas Ltda. 60,285 63,979
Compafiia de Financiamiento Tuya S.A. 42,129 42,129
CnovaN.V. (37,327) (37,327)
Puntos Colombia S.A.S. (1,613) (1,613)
Total 63,474 67,168

(15) The adjustment represents the recognition of the effects of application of this IFRS on deferred tax revenue. The differences as compared to the
figures shown on December 31, 2018are as follows:

January 1to January 1to

December 31, December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16 2018 without IFRS 16
Current income tax (expense) (381,437) (381,438)
Deferred income tax revenue (a) 85,256 42,997
Total income tax (expense) (296,181) (338,441)

(@) The difference as compared to the figures shown at December 31, 2018 regarding the effect of the deferred income tax on the statement of
income are as follows:

January 1to January 1to

December 31, December 31,
2018 with IFRS16 2018 without IFRS 16
Deferred income tax 83,182 40,923
Deferred occasional gains tax 2,074 2,074
Total deferredincometax revenue 85,256 42,997
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The effects shown in the statement of comprehensive income for the annual period ended December 31, 2018 are as follows:

January 1to
December 31,
2018 with IFRS 16
Net period profit 1,212,682
Other comprehensive income for the period

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
period results,

net of taxes
(Loss) from new measurements of defined benefit plans (351)
(Loss) from investments in equity instruments (104,756)
Total other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to period results,

net of taxes (105,107)

Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to period
results,

net of taxes
(Loss) from translation exchange differences (1,365,493)
Gain from the hedging of cash flows 9,052

Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method that will be reclassified to

period results (66,463)
Total other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to period results, net

of taxes (1,422,904)
Total other comprehensive income (1,528,011)
Total comprehensive income (315,329)

January 1to

December 31,

2018 without
IFRS 16
1,172,944

(351)
(104,756)

(105,107)

(1,412,473)
9,052

(52,521)

(1,455,942)
(1,561,049)
(388,105)

123



